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YEAR

FIRMLY
OVERCOMING

DIFFICULTIES

Becamex |JC

CEASELESS CONSTRUCTION

& - ‘ﬂ‘, 1.11{
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With over 17 years of accompanying the
development of Binh Duong, Becamex IJC is proud
to be a pioneer in creating quality living spaces and
a civilized community. Under the spirit of “Ceaseless
construction,” Becamex |JC brings sustainable
values, continues to innovate and reach further,
contributing to building a modern and prosperous
Binh Duong.

The year 2024 marks a significant reversal point for
the real estate industry. After the recession of 2022
- 2023, with many difficulties, the residential real
estate market saw a positive recovery in 2024 as
trading became more active, supply improved, and
real estate prices tended to increase. However, the
real estate market only recovered partially in 2024.
Hanoi and a few other provinces in the North were

Bl ) ne2024

rare bright spots in the real estate market, while
provinces in the South remained sluggish. Generally
affected by the slow recovery of the real estate
market, Becamex IJC’s business operations in 2024
faced many difficulties, with both revenue and profit
decreasing compared to 2023.

The 2024 annual reportis themed “Firmly overcoming
difficulties,” aiming to demonstrate steadfastness in
the face of challenges, continued development, and
enhancement of the Becamex IJC brand. In 2025,
leveraging its abundant land fund and the recovery
of the real estate market, Becamex IJC will continue
to create products and services that bring value to
the community and promote the prosperity of Binh
Duong province.
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SOLID GROWTH POTENTIAL

Becamex IJC is a member of the Becamex Corporation ecosystem.
The Company has access to a large land fund and stable revenue
from BOT traffic operations and real estate leasing. This is not only a

competitive advantage but also a driving force that helps the company

maintain sustainable growth in the long term.

SUPERIOR CAPACITY

Throughout 17 years of development, Becamex I|JC has continuously
expanded its operations in many fields, from developing BOT traffic projects
and investing in technical infrastructure to leasing real estate and providing
commercial services. With each project deployed, Becamex IJC has
affirmed its capacity by handing over large-scale real estate and transport
infrastructure projects that meet high standards of engineering, aesthetics,
safety and environmental protection. As a result, Becamex IJC is always
highly appreciated and trusted by customers, contributing to enhancing the
brand and affirming its firm position in the Binh Duong area.

EFFECTIVE COST CONTROL

Negatively impacted by the slow recovery of the real estate market, Becamex
IJC has flexibly controlled costs, optimized capital sources and gradually
reduced borrowing to reduce interest rate pressure, thereby maintaining
stable profit margins compared to the industry average. This clearly reflects
the financial management capabilities and effective operational strategies
of the enterprise.
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OUTSTANDING FIGURES

MESSAGE

2 People : projects
s | memloern | s Chairman of the Board of Directors
Billion VND : Billion VND

5 1 51 l 7 8 43 Dear Esteemed Shareholders, Partners, and Employees
OWNER'S EQUITY TOTAL ASSETS In 2024, with the motto “Firmly overcoming difficulties,” Becamex IJC continues to affirm its important
..................................................................................................................................................... role in real estate and infrastructure development in Binh Duong province. Amidst the common difficulties

of the market, Becamex IJC still maintains stability in business operations.

Billon VND Billion VND Over the past year, the real estate market has experienced a slow recovery, especially in the Southern
1 1 70 5 54 region. Despite this, Becamex IJC has strived to overcome these challenges, maintaining production and
, business activities. The company’s total revenue reached VND 1,170 billion, a decrease compared to
TOTAL REVENUE PROFIT AFTER TAX the previous year, but still reflecting the company’s resilience and fortitude in the face of economic and

market fluctuations.

Stepping into 2025, with a strategy to exploit abundant land resources along with the recovery of the
real estate market, we will continue to create quality products, meet the needs of the community and
contribute to promoting the prosperity of Binh Duong province. Becamex IJC is committed to not only
creating value for shareholders but also contributing to the socio-economic development of the region
and the country.

The Company believes that, with the consensus and continuous efforts of all officials, employees, and the
support from strategic partners, Becamex IJC will continue to grow strongly, build a strong community
and achieve sustainable success in the future.

Sincerely, thank you, esteemed shareholders, partners and allemployees foraccompanying and supporting

us during the past time. The Company hopes to continue receiving your s JRReiaNC d cooperation in the
5 g‘ﬂ-ﬂiﬂﬁgi

next steps.
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PROMINENT PROJECTS

B)BECAMEX 1JC
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e "rf' Investor: Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

Investment form: Implementing investment in the development of workers’ housing,
commercial townhouses

Project scale: 905 houses
Land use area: 149,409.3 m2

+  Project location: Lots HL - F1 to HL - F16, Hoa Loi Residential area, Hoa Phu Ward, Thu
Dau Mot City, Binh Duong

IJC Hoa Loi Housing Area

Total project investment: VND 1,800 billion

) 2024 )
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PROMINENT PROJECTS
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* Investor: Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

+ Investment form: Implementing investment in the development of luxury villa
*  Project scale: 99 villas

+ Land area for business: 53,746.09 m2

+  Project location: Lots N7 + N8, New urban area, Hoa Phu Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh
Duong

+  Total project investment: VND 1,265 billion

Sunflower Detached Villa Area

(s ) 2024



PROMINENT PROJECTS
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* Investor: Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

Investment form: Implementing investment in the development of luxury villas and
apartments.

+  Project scale: 1,442 apartments and 87 villas
+ Land area for business: 52,738.3 m2

+  Project location: Lots N4+N6, New urban area, Hoa Phu Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh
Duong

Sunflower Il Housing Area (Extended)

Total project investment: VND 3,000 billion

o) 2024 .
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PROMINENT PROJECTS
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* Investor: Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

Investment form: Implementing investment in the development of apartment buildings,
commercial apartments

+  Project scale: 616 apartments and 56 kiosks.

+ Land use area: 21,338 m2
+  Project location: Ton Duc Thang Street, Hoa Phu Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong

Total project investment: VND 1,580 billion

Aroma Apartment

o) 2024




PROMINENT PROJECTS

/3D BECAMEX 1JC

Investor: Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

Investment form: Meeting the housing and business townhouse needs of workers and
residents of Bau Bang

Project scale: 916 land plots
Land use area: 143,424 m2

Project location: Plot C1-C11, DC road, Residential area 5C, Lai Uyen commune, Bau Bang
district, Binh Duong province

Lai Uyen Hamlet 5C Residential Area +  Total project investment: VND 1,377 billion

) 2024 (s ) I i




PROMINENT PROJECTS

B BECAMEX 1JC

* Investor: Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

Investment form: 60 townhouses

Business land area: 6,462 m2

Project location: Plot P6, new urban area, Hoa Phu Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong
+  Total project investment: VND 294 billion

Prince Town commercial town

s ) 2024




PROMINENT PROJECTS

C B BECAMEX 1JC

Investor: Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company
Investment form: 314 townhouses
Business land area: 36,354 m2

Project location: Plots P1, P2, P3, New urban area, Hoa Phu Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh
Duong

Total project investment: VND 1,400 billion

Prince Town Il residential area (Extended)

B (:)  ei2024 (o).

-25040003




TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1: GENERAL INFORMATION 22
OvervieW Of BeCaMeX I C 24
_Establishment and development process 30 .
Business lines, Business areas 34 .
_Management model, Management apparatus structure 38 .
List of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies 42
Introduction to the Board of Directors 44 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS
Introduction to the Board of Genenral Directors 48
Introduction to the Board of Supervisors 52
CHAPTER 2: COMPANY OPERATION REPORT >4 IJC/Becamex IJC Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company
Summary Of S-year ﬂnancial information 56 .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. .
Overview of the macroeconomic and real estateindusty 58 et SO o S
_Report of the Board of General Directors 64 BOD Board of Directors
BOS Board of Supervisors
CHAPTER 3: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 82 s L .
Report of Board of Directors 84 R .
Report of Board of SUpeIVISOrs 93 . FS Financial statements
Bick M TR 5
IS ......... a nagemen ...... e por ................................................................................................................................................................ 96 ........ JSC Joint Stock Company
Qe star et o 102
Compliance withthe law 103 GDP Gross domestic product
Transactions, remuneration, and benefits of the BOD, the BOS, and the Boardof 6D s cPl Consumerpriceindex
Assessment Of Corporate governance Compllance 1 ‘I 8 ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... HCMC Ho Chi Minh City
CHAPTER 4: SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 120 O&E Officers and employees
..?F’.?F?.'.r.'.?.l.)..lfQ?Y?F?PTT.T?ﬁ?é?? ......................................................................................................................................... 122 ....... IMF International Monetary Fund
Sustainable development Strategic Vision 124 ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... WB World Bank
Key issues related to sustainable deve|opment goa|s 13 ) U RPOUORUUUUUUURUPURUUUUUUUI .. 115 Sy
“Responsibility to the local community 143 FED A Y,
CHAPTER 5: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 142

A |
- Rggl:)?t 2024 Mésomoos




01

GENERAL INTRODUCTION

1. Overview of Becamex IJC

2. Establishment and development e ||| ES‘E EI !m“
process e U :"-~. i

3. Business lines, Business location

4. Governance model,
Management apparatus structure

5. List of subsidiaries,
lliated companies

—Introduction to the Board of
Supervisors




GENERAL INTRODUCTION
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Enterprise name: CONG TY CO PHAN PHAT TRIEN HA TANG KY THUAT Head office No. 230 Binh Duong Avenue, Phu Hoa Ward, Thu Dau Mot City,
Binh Duong Province

International enterprise name BECAMEX INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Phone number (0274) 3848 789
Abbreviated enterprise name Becamex IJC

Website www.becamexijc.com
Business registration No, 3700805566 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Binh
certificate number Duong province for the first time on 2007-07-02, the 15th change issued on 2025- Email info@becamexijc.com

02-13

Stock code IJC
Charter capital VND 3,777,483,840,000

Logo /_‘) BECAMEX IJC M
() 2024 -
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GENERAL INTRODUCTION

°_< Overview of Becamex IJC )
VISION >

Our endeavor to create green living

spaces is the guiding principle for our

journey to become the leading civil

real estate and transport infrastructure
developer in Binh Duong province.

< MISSION >

Creating smart new values for a

prosperous, friendly and sustainable
life.

) nei2024

REPUTATION

Theword TRUST isthe mostimportant
factor, and this is the foundation for
trust, the key factor for cooperation
and mutual success.

FLEXIBILITY

Flexibility is one of the core factors to
create success. Flexibility is based on the
criteria and goals of providing the best
value services to partners and customers
without being bound by rigid processes
and principles.

PROFESSIONALISM

We aim not only for profits and business, but
also for a journey to cultivate corporate culture,

understand customer needs and put the “Heart’

4

into each service, bringing good values to both

CORE
VALUES

DEVELOPMENT

Development is not only in terms
of profit or scale, but also includes
the growth of people and corporate
culture, environment.

partners and customers.

INNOVATION

Innovation is one of the prerequisites
for businesses to survive and thrive
in today’s fiercely competitive
environment.

=7 )



GENERAL INTRODUCTION

a—( Overview of Becamex 1JC )

STOCK INFORMATION

Shareholder structure (as of 2024-12-31)

OWNERSHIP
RATIO/
CHARTER
(%) CAPITAL

NUMBER
OBJECT OF
SHARES

NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLD-

ERS . o
Major shareholders

(owning 5% or more 187,977,424 49.76% 1 1 0
(of charter capital

CO CAU cO PONG

Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company
is listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (“HOSE"),
Vietnam on 2010-04-05.

Stock code: 1JC
Financial year ends on: 2024-12-31
Independent audit company: A&C Auditing and Consulting

Company Limited

Domestic 187,977,424 49.76% 1 1 0
Adjusted closing price as of 2024-12-31: VND 13,850/share
Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
Other shareholders 189,770,960 50.24% 15,052 81 14,971
STOCK INFORMATION: Domestic 171,643,353 45.44% 14,924 58 14,866
Foreign 18,127,607 4.80% 128 23 105
Total number of shares issued: 377,748,384
shares 377,748,384 100.00%
- Number of shares outstanding: 377,748,384 Domestic 359,620,777 95.20% 14,925 59 14,866
shares
+ Number of freely transferable shares: Foreign 18,127,607 4.80% 128 23 105

372,911,732 shares

+ Number of shares restricted from transfer:
4,836,652 shares

- Number of treasury shares: 0 shares

List of major shareholders
As of 2024-12-31

OWNERSHIP RATIO/
NUMBER OF SHARES
CHARTER CAPITAL (%)

Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock
Corporation

Share type: Common share
Par value of shares: VND 10,000/share
Treasury stock transactions: None

187,977,424 49.76%
Other securities: None

49.76%
Pursuant to Official Dispatch No. 6057/UBCK-PTTT dated 2023-09-28

/
\\"",,,, of the State Securities Commission, the maximum foreign ownership
\\ // ratio in the Company is: 49%.

SHAREHOLDER As of 2024-12-31, the Company's foreign ownership ratio is 4.8%

STRUCTURE
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W
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GENERAL INTRODUCTION

Q—CEstablishment and development process)

210.92 billion

from stock issuance

Increased charter capital
for the first time from
VND 337.47 billion to VND
548.39 billion. Becamex
IJC was recognized by
Binh Duong Department of
Construction as meeting
the  requirements  for

Becamex [IJC shares
were officially listed on
the Ho Chi Minh City
Stock Exchange (HOSE)
on 2010-04-05, with an
initial listing volume of
54,838,905 shares. Stock
code: IJC.

Established IJC Company
Limited, with Becamex
IJC owning 100% of the
charter capital.

Terminated the operation
of the Company’s branch
in Ho Chi Minh City and
Hanoi City.

800 billion vND

Stock issuance

Established WTC company.
Issued shares to increase
charter capital according
to Resolution No. 02/NQ-
PHBCD of the General
Meeting of Shareholders
dated 2020-06-19, from

+1,259.16

billion
Public stock offering

arried out procedures to
issue additional shares
to the public according
to Resolution No. 01/
NQ-BHBCD of the 2023
Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders dated 2023-
04-07, increasing charter

real estate  exchange VND 1,371 billion to VND  capital from VND 2,518
operations. 2,171 billion. billion to VND 3,777 billion.
2007 2009 2011 2014 2016 2023
2012
2008 2010 2015 2020 2024

Established Becamex Trade
Company Limited,  with
Becamex IJC owning 100% of

Recognized by the SSC
as a public company.
Bureau Veritas granted

337.47 billion vND

Initial Charter Capital

2,192.61 billion

from stock issuance

Reduced charter capital

to1,37 Thillion VND 347.73 billon

Stock issuance

Binh  Duong  Provincial the ISO  9001:2008 the charter capital. Renamed
i Increased charter  capital imi .
People’s Committee issued quality management ; UND 598389 bill p IJC Company leltgd Carried out procedures Carried out procedures to
system certificate. rom . illion to to Becamex Hospitality to reduce charter capital issue shares to pay dividends

Decision No. 1131/Qb-
UBND approving the plan
to transfer the National
Highway 13 project
under the Investment and
Industrial Development
Company into Becamex
Infrastructure Development
JSC (Becamex IJC) with an
initial charter capital of VND
337.47 billion.

VND 2,741 billion. Additional
issued 219,355,620 shares
were officially listed on the Ho
Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
according to Decision No.
45/2011/Qb-SGDHCM  dated
2011-04-18. Established a
branch in Hanoi City.

Company Limited. according to Resolution No. according to Resolution No.

02/NQ-DHDBCD of the General 01/NQ-DHDCP of the 2022

Meeting of Shareholders dated Annual General Meeting of

2016-10-17, from VND 2,741 Shareholders dated 2022-04-15

billion to VND 1,371 billion. from retained profit after tax in
2021, increasing charter capital
from VND 2,171 billion to VND
2,518 billion.

(=0 ) 2024



GENERAL INTRODUCTION

a—c Business lines, Business areas ) Real estate business

Currently, Becamex IJC is one of the leading civil real estate developers in Binh Duong with a
BUSINESS LINES large land fund and diverse products in segments from popular, average to high-end to meet the
diverse needs of the market. This sector contributes approximately 50% of IJC’s total annual
revenue. Becamex IJC’s goal is to focus on developing housing areas around industrial parks
and residential areas of Becamex IDC Corporation, VSIP Joint Venture Company and other units

REAL ESTATE invested by the Corporation. Because it develops in parallel with industrial parks, IJC does not
spend time or money to develop the land fund because the land has been completed by industrial
BUSINESS park development units in terms of site clearance as well as infrastructure construction. This has

helped the Company not to be subject to site clearance risks affecting the projectimplementation
process. Up to now, with the Binh Duong real estate market having grown strongly in recent
years and forecast to continue to develop due to favorable factors in the coming time, owning
a large land fund ready for business, with a variety of segment products, can bring significant
revenue to IJC in the coming years.

Toll collection

TOLL
COLLECTION

This segment ranks second in revenue and profit contribution to the company. Revenue from
this activity comes from toll collections at two BOT stations on National Highway 13, located in
the areas of Thuan An City and Thu Dau Mot City, with toll collection rights extending until 2037.
National Highway 13 is a vital route connecting the southern provinces, with a high volume of
traffic. This creates significant development potential for the toll collection sector on this route.

Becamex IJC is implementing a plan to complete the investment procedures and construction of
_. |BEOAM Ex 'Jc the project: Adjustments to the Project to Upgrade and Expand National Highway 13 from the Vinh
' Phu Welcome Gate (Km1+315) to the intersection with Le Hong Phong Street (Km15+018.28).

BUSINESS LINES

BUSINESS
COOPERATION

Business cooperation

Revenue from business cooperation is recorded from the cooperative investment in the Becamex
City Center project. This is a business cooperation project with the Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation, with an area of over 61,000 m2 and a total investment of
up to VND 2,500 billion. The Becamex City Center project is a complex of service facilities such as
office buildings, luxury apartments, shopping centers, 5-star hotels, recreational resorts, parking
lots, parks, and many other amenities.

OTHER Other business
BUSINESSES

Revenue from other business activities is recorded from activities such as construction, the
operations of three member units - Becamex Hospitality Company Limited and Becamex Trade
Company Limited, WTC Binh Duong One Member Limited Company, worker housing leasing,
financial income, income recorded from affiliated companies, etc. In addition, the Company is
carrying out investment procedures, contributing capital to the construction of Ring Road 4 of
Ho Chi Minh City from Thu Bien Bridge — Saigon River (phase 1) and carrying out investment
procedures, contributing capital to the construction of the Ho Chi Minh City - Thu Dau Mot - Chon
Thanh expressway (section through Binh Duong province).

(2] 2024




GENERAL INTRODUCTION

e ( Business lines, Business areas )

BUSINESS AREAS

Phi Gido

S
,./!’_\ ey

The Company mainly operates in Binh Duong province, specifically, the traffic
toll stations are located in Thuan An City and Thu Dau Mot City. The real estate

projects invested by the Company are located in districts in the province,
including: Thu Dau Mot City, Ben Cat, Bau Bang, Tan Uyen, and Bac Tan Uyen.

(- ) 2024

BAC TAN UYEN

Worker
Housing: A59,
A13

IJC Suoi Tre
Tan Binh

BAU BANG

Residential

Area of
Hamlet 5C

BEN CAT

Residential

Residentfial Area of
Areao Hamlet 2,
Hamlet 5B Thoi Hoa, Lot

THU DAU MOT CITY

Prince Town
Townhouse

Aroma
Apartment

Sunflower
Villa

Sunflower Il

Hoa Loi

IJC Hoa Loi Hoa Loi
. IJC Urban
Prince Town Il Residential Resettlement Resettlement
Area Area, Blocks A,
Area Area, Block E

B,C, G




GENERAL INTRODUCTION

0—( Management model, Management apparatus structure )

3 m BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

. GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS /» The BOS plays an independent role in the Company’s governance model with the
function of representing the GMS in inspecting and supervising the legality, accuracy,
The GMS is the highest decision-making body including all shareholders of the and honesty in the management and administration of the Company’s business
Company. The GMS meets regularly once a year to decide on matters within its operations. BOS members have a term of 05 years, appointed by the GMS. The Head

of the BOS heads the BOS. The functions, duties, powers, and responsibilities of the
Head of the BOS and the BOS members are implemented in accordance with legal
regulations, the Company’s Charter, and the Organization and Operation Regulations
i of the BOS for each period.

.‘ BOARD OF DIRECTORS » The Becamex |JC BOS for the 2022-2027 term includes 03 members: 01 Head of
\the BOS and 02 BOS members.

authority in accordance with the law and the Company’s Charter.

» The Board of Directors (BOD) is the management body of the Company,
fully authorized to act on behalf of the Company to decide and exercise rights

and obligations that do not fall under the authority of the General Meeting of *

Shareholders (GMS). BOD members serve a term of 05 years, elected and 4 . BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

dismissed by the GMS. The Chairman of the BOD heads the BOD. The functions, e

duties, powers, and responsibilities of the Chairman and BOD members are » Under the supervision of the BOS, the Board of General Directors is responsible
implemented in accordance with the law, the Company’s Charter, and the to the BOD and the GMS for directly implementing and managing business
Organization and Operation Regulations of the BOD for each period. operations, while ensuring that the Company operates in compliance with legal
» The Becamex IJC BOD for the 2022-2027 term includes 05 members: regulations, operates effectively for the benefit of the Company, shareholders and
01 Chairman of the BOD, 01 Vice Chairman of the BOD, 02 BOD members, related parties, according to the strategy and business plan approved by the BOD

and the GMS.

» The Becamex |JC Board of General Directors at the end of 2024 consists
of 05 members: 01 General Director, 03 Deputy General Directors and 1 Chief
Accountant. The members play a role in building and making strategic orientation
recommendations; business plans, budgets; developing human resources and

parties. \_ operating the Company to achieve the set plan.
» With the orientation of “Establishing a BOD with experience and professional

and 01 independent BOD member. The BOD members operate with a spirit
of responsibility and prudence, possessing sufficient information to serve
the decision-making process, for the highest and long-term interests of the
Company and all shareholders, while also considering the interests of related

management capacity” according to the Best Corporate Governance ¢

Principles, while ensuring thoroughness and comprehensiveness for each ’5 B FUNCTIONAL DIVISIONS,

BOD decision. Becamex IJC always strives to achieve diversity in expertise,

skills, experience and leadership qualities... The BOD works on the principle of DEPARTMENTS, AND COMMITTEE

collective leadership, but each member will ensure not to participate in voting
on issues in which that member or related party of that member has related
transactions with Becamex IJC. BOD Members are individually responsible for

The functional divisions, departments, and committee are responsible for advising

their work and jointly responsible to the GMS, before the law for documents the Board of General Directors on management and direction in the field in charge,
resolutions, and decisions of the BOD regarding the operational situation and implementing and concretizing tasks according to the instructions of the Board of
\development of the Company. ) General Directors on the Company'’s production and business operations.

| ! “ i . Lt
Al 2024 7 I
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GENERAL INTRODUCTION

MANAGEMENT APPARATUS STRUCTURE
Management model, Management apparatus structure )
Professional departments:

»  Financial Management Department »  Technical Department

» Legal Department » Fee Management Department

»  Administration — Human Resources » IT Section
GENERAL MEETING OF

SHAREHOLDERS

Department » Business and Project Development Department

- )

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

INTERNAL AUDIT

COMMITTEE OFFICE OF BOD

GENERAL DIRECTOR

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR CHIEF ACCOUNTANT

ADMINISTRA- TECHNICAL LEGAL FEE BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL
TION - HR MANAGEMENT IT SECTION PROJECT MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT

[
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GENERAL INTRODUCTION

e—c List of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies )

Company
Name

. Subsidiary Company

Becamex
Trade
Company
Limited (BTI)

Becamex Tower,

230 Binh Duong

Avenue, Phu Hoa
Ward, Thu Dau
Mot City, Binh

Duong Province

Main Business Sector

Trading in commercial
center, tourism, passenger
transportation, and air
and train ticket agency

operations.

Actually
Contributed

Charter Capital

20,000,000,000

Company»s
Ownership
Ratio

100%

Becamex
Hospitality
Company
Limited (BHI)

Becamex Hotel,

230 Binh Duong

Avenue, Phu Hoa
Ward, Thu Dau
Mot City, Binh

Duong Province

Restaurant and catering
services, event organization,

and hotel services business.

12,000,000,000

100%

WTC Binh

Duong One
3 Member
Limited

Company

811 Hung Vuong
Street, Hoa Phu
Ward, Thu Dau

Mot City, Binh

Duong Province

Associated Company

- Organizing trade
promotion exhibitions and
seminars domestically and

internationally.
- Providing consulting
services for international

trade promotion strategies

and business management.

5,000,000,000

100%

Becamex
Binh Phuoc

Infrastructure

Development

Joint Stock

Company

National Highway

14, Group 8§,
Hamlet 3, Minh
Thanh Ward,
Chon Thanh

Town, Binh

Phuoc Province

Investing in the construction

and business of industrial

park infrastructure

1,798,375,000,000

31.77%

()
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GENERAL INTRODUCTION

°—( Introduction to the Board of Directors )

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

No. ‘ FULL NAME ‘ POSITION ‘

Chairman of the Board of
1 Mr. Do Quang Ngon .
Directors

Year of birth 1970

MR. QUANG VAN VIET CUONG
Vice Chairman of BOD

Qualification Bachelor of Arts in English

Work experience

Time Workplace Position

2009-2018 Director of Investment
Department

Deputy General Director

Investment and Industrial Development
Joint Stock Corporation

Investment and Industrial Development
Joint Stock Corporation

NOTE 2019-present

Appointed on 2022-04-15

Positions held in other organization — Deputy General Director: Investment and Industrial

) Vice Chairman of the Board of
2 Mr. Quang Van Viet Cuong Direct
irectors

Appointed on 2022-04-15

Development Joint Stock Corporation (BCM)
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors: Becamex Urban

3 Ms. Vo Thi Huyen Trang Member of the Board of Directors

Appointed on 2022-04-15

Development Joint Stock Company (UDJ)
Chairman of the Board of Directors: Binh Duong Trade and

4 Mr. Tran Thien The Member of the Board of Directors

Appointed on 2022-04-15

Development Joint Stock Company (TDC)
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors: Becamex Binh Phuoc

) ) Independent Member of the
5 Ms. Le Thi Xuan Dieu )
Board of Directors

Appointed on 2023-04-07

Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company
Member of the BOD: Viet Nam Technology and

(Sub-Committees of the Board of Directors: None)

CURRICULUM VITAE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBERS

Year of birth

MR. DO QUANG NGON
Chairman of BOD

Qualification

Work experience

Telecommunication Joint Stock Company (VNTT)

Number of 1JC shares held 0 shares

Year of birth 1973

MS. VO THI HUYEN TRANG

___ |3

Time Workplace

1989-1991 General Trading Company

1992-1994 Lang Son Branch

1995-1998 Lang Son Branch

1999-2001 Toll Collection Management Department National Highway 13
2002-2004 Binh Duong Football Joint Stock Company

2005-2007 Steel Concrete Production Plant

2007-04/2022 Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company
2022-04-present | Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

Positions held in other organizations None

Number of IJC shares held

Annual
Report

Oshare

2024

Qualification Bachelor ofEconomics
Member of the BOD cum Deputy General

1967 Director
Bachelor of Economics

Work experience

Time Workplace Position

1995-1997 Hong Phat Private Trading Enterprise Business employee
Position 1997-1998 Toa Vietnam Co., Ltd Assistant to General Director cum
Staff Marketing Specialist

_ 1998-2006 Thanh Le Corporation Business department employee
LR DTSR 2006-2008 Song Than Industrial Park Development Joint | Deputy Head of Business Department
Chief Accountant Stock Company
Head of 2008-2010 Dai Nam Joint Stock Company Acting Head of Business Department
Department 2010-2012 Becamex IDC Company Employee
General Director 2012-09/2015 Becamex IDC Company Deputy Head of Becamex Social
Housing Project Management Board

Director 09/2015-06/2016 | Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint | Head of Business Department
General Director Stock Company

06/2016-04/2022 | Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint | Deputy General Director
Chairman of BOD Stock Company

04/2022 - present | Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint | Member of the Board of Directors cum

Stock Company

Positions held in other organizations None

Number of I1JC shares held

0 shares

Deputy General Director

@ |
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GENERAL INTRODUCTION

o—C Introduction to the Board of Directors )

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Year of birth 1963

MR. TRAN THIEN THE
Member of the BOD

Qualification Bachelor of Finance and Accounting

Work experience

Year of birth 1983
Durati Workpl Positi
MS. LE THI XUAN DIEU Qualification Bachelor of Law, Bachelor of Commercial dration OTEpEeR osttion
Independent Member English December 1985 - Song Be Fine Art Ceramics Accounting Staff
of the BOD December 1988 United Factories
1988-1995 Song Be Export Ceramic Chief Accountant
Work experience Enterprise
1996-1997 Becamex Construction Chief Accountant
Time Workplace Position AR
1998 - 1999 Becamex Company Deputy Head of
2009-2009 Construction Joint Stock | Executive Board Secretary 1 Accounting Department
C?mpan}/ N 2000 - 2018 First Securities Joint Stock General Director
2009-2014 Gia Dinh Invest.ment and HR employee Company
Development Joint Stock 2019-Present First Service and Investment General Director
Company Consulting Joint Stock
2015-Present Viet Nam Technology and Secretary of the Board of Directors, Head of Company
Telecommunication Joint Stock Corporate Governance, Company Secretary,
Company Head of Human Resources Department Positions held in other organizations General Director: First Service and Investment Consulting

Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Directors: Binh Duong Construction
and Civil Engineering Joint Stock Company (BCE)

Member of the Board of Directors: Becamex Binh Phuoc
Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

Positions held in other organizations Secretary of the Board of Directors, Head of Corporate
Governance, Company Secretary, Head of Human Resources
Department - Viet Nam Technology and Telecommunication
Joint Stock Company
Number of IJC shares currently held 4,640 shares
Number of IJC shares held 0 shares

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024  None

B)BECAMEX IJ

M
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GENERAL INTRODUCTION

°—(Introduction to the Board of Genenral Directors )

LIST OF THE BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS

No. ‘ FULL NAME

1 Mr. Trinh Thanh Hung

POSITION

General Director

2 Ms. Vo Thi Huyen Trang

Deputy General Director

3 Mr. Tran Ngoc Hien

Deputy General Director

4 Mr. Vu Phi Hung

Deputy General Director

5 Mrs. Bui Thi Thuy

Chief Accountant

CURRICULUM VITAE OF THE BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS MEMBERS

MR. TRINH THANH HUNG

General Director

Work experience

Duration

1993 - 1996
1997 - 2007

2007 - 2014-05-01

2014-05-01 - 2021-03-01
2021-04-01 - 2022-04-01

2022-04-01 - Present

Year of birth

Qualification

Workplace

Binh Duong VIFACO Livestock
Company
Binh  Duong VIFACO Livestock
Company

Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company

Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company
Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company
Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company

Positions held in other organizations None

Number of 1JC shares held

() 2024

0 shares

1965

Economic Engineer

Position

Deputy Head of Accounting
Department

Chief Accountant

Head of Financial Management
Department cum Chief
Accountant

Deputy General Director cum
Chief Accountant

Deputy General Director

General Director

MS. VO THI HUYEN TRANG

Deputy General Director

MR. TRAN NGOC HIEN
Deputy General Director

Work experience

Time

Before 2007
2007 to 2021-03
2021-04 to 2024-08

2024-08 - present

Workplace

Becamex Investmentand Development
Trading Company

Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company

Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company

Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company

Positions held in other organizations None

Number of 1JC shares held

0 shares

(PRESENTED IN THE BOD'’S CV)

Year of birth 1975

Bachelor of Business
Administration

Qualification

Position

Head of Toll Management Department

Deputy General Director cum Director
of Toll Management Department

Deputy General Director




GENERAL INTRODUCTION

e—CIntroduction to the Board of Genenral Directors )

LIST OF THE BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS

Year of birth 1978
MR. VU PHI HUNG

Deputy General Director Qualification

Bachelor of Economics, major
in Business Administration;
Architect in  Construction

Architecture

Work experience

Time Workplace Position

Vice President of the Fatherland

People's Committee of Binh Hoa Ward — Thuan Front Committee of Binh Hoa

An - Binh Duong

Ward

2004 - 2005 Binh Duong Provincial Youth Union Officer
Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Staff of Business & Project
Stock Company Development Department

2006 - 2009 Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint General Director's Assistant
Stock Company
Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Director . of Legal Pepartment
Stock Compan cum Assistant to Chairman of the

pany Board of Directors

2010 = 2013 Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Deputy General Director
Stock Company

2013 - 2022 Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint General Director's Assistant

Stock Company
Director of Legal Department
cum Assistant to Chairman of the
Board of Directors

Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint

2022 - 9/2024| G O oy

Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint
Stock Company

From 2024-09 Deputy General Director

Positions held in other organizations None

Number of 1JC shares held 0 shares

MS. BUI THI THUY
Chief Accountant cum Director of
Finance Management Department

Work experience
Time

2004-11 - 2007-06

2007-07 - 2009-06

2009-07 - 2021-03

2021-04 - 2022-04

2022-04 - present

Year of birth

Qualification
Workplace
3/2 Construction Investment
Company

Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company

Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company
Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company
Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company

Positions held in other organizations None

Number of 1JC shares held

No. ‘ FULL NAME

1 Mr. Vu Phi Hung

0 shares

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS IN 2024

1982

Bachelor of Business
Administration

Position

Employee

Staff of Finance Management
Department

Deputy Head of Finance
Management Department

Chief Accountant

Chief Accountant cum Director
of Finance Management
Department

POSITION

Deputy General Director (Appointed 2024-09-10)




GENERAL INTRODUCTION

°—C Introduction to the Board of Supervisors )

LIST OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Year of birth 1989

MS. LE THI THUY DUONG
Member of the Board of Supervisors

Qualification Bachelor of Economics

Work experience

NO. ‘ FULL NAME ‘ POSITION Time Workplace Position

2012 -2017 Becamex Infrastructure Development Secretary
Joint Stock Company

Investment and Industrial Development
Joint Stock Corporation

1 Mr. Nguyen Hai Hoang Head of the Board of Supervisors (Appointed 2022-04-15)

From 2017 - present Staff of Joint Stock Company

2 Ms. Le Thi Thuy Duong Management Department

Member of the Board of Supervisors (Reappointed 2022-04-15)

3 Mrs. Mai Thi Huynh Mai Member of the Board of Supervisors (Appointed 2024-04-19)

Positions held in other organizations Member of the Board of Supervisors: Becamex Urban Development
Joint Stock Company (UDJ)

Number of 1JC shares held 0 shares

CURRICULUM VITAE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Year of birth 1991 Year of birth 1990

MR. NGUYEN HAI HOANG
Head of the Board of Supervisors

Qualification Master of Finance

MS. MAI THI HUYNH MAI

) Bachelor of Business Finance,
Member of the Board of Supervisors

Master of Finance

Qualification

Work experience

Time

From 2014 - 2018

From 2018 - 2019

From 2019 - 2020

Workplace

Rong Viet Securities
Corporation

Korea Investment Fund
(HCMC Office)

Investment and Industrial

Position

Investment analysis specialist
Investment analysis specialist

Assistant Team Staff

Work experience

Time

2013-08-01 - 2023-10-01

2023-11-01 to present

Workplace

Binh Duong Forestry Products
and General Import-Export
Corporation

Investment  and Industrial
Development  Joint Stock

Position
Deputy Head of Accounting
Department

Staff of the equitization
management department

Development Joint Stock
Corporation

Corporation

From 2020 - present Investment and Industrial Deputy Director of Capital Positions held in other organizations None
Development Joint Stock Management and Development
Corporation e Number of IJC shares held 0 shares

Positions held in other organizations Head of Board of Supervisors: Binh Duong Trade and
Development Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Supervisors: Viet Nam Technology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock Company

Head of Board of Supervisors: Binh Duong Construction and
Civil Engineering Joint Stock Company

Head of Board of Supervisors: Becamex Urban Development
Joint Stock Company

Number of IJC shares held 0 shares

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN 2024

No. ‘ FULL NAME ‘ POSITION

1 Mrs. Chau Thi Van Member of the Board of Supervisors (Relieved of duty on 2024-04-19)

2 Mrs. Mai Thi Huynh Mai Member of the Board of Supervisors (Appointed on 2024-04-19)

(o) w2024
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COMPANY OPERATION REPORT

G—CSummary of 5-year financial information)

BUSINESS RESULTS

Unit: million VND

INCREASE/DE-
CREASE OVER
INDICATOR YEAR 2020 | YEAR 2021 | YEAR 2022 | YEAR 2023 | YEAR 2024
THE SAME
PERIOD
Net revenue 2,141,296 2,601,723 1,968,123 1,494,344 1,020,259 (31.73%)
Gross profit 662,496 991,000 808,864 650,668 458,365 (29.55%)
Net profit from business
o 445,971 779,653 626,437 483,074 420,542 (12.94%)

activities
Profit before tax 451,587 782,818 640,504 494,393 414,891 (16.08%)
Profit after tax 369,903 621,100 511,049 394,853 354,138 (10.31%)

FINANCIAL RATIOS

INDICATOR

‘ Unit | YEAR 2020 ‘ YEAR 2021 ‘ YEAR 2022 ‘ YEAR 2023 ‘ YEAR 2024

Profit margin

Gross profit margin % 30.94% 38.09% 41.10% 43.54% 44.93%
Profit before tax and interest

) % 24.49% 34.04% 36.53% 37.88% 45.14%
margin
Net profit margin % 17.27% 23.87% 25.97% 26.42% 34.71%
ROA % 5.57% 9.12% 7.83% 6.17% 4.52%
ROE % 17.87% 18.57% 13.39% 10.33% 6.87%
Liquidity
Current ratio Times 1.48 2.48 2.19 1.61 2.15
Quick ratio Times 0.33 0.4 0.42 0.42 0.39
Interest coverage ratio Times 7.2 8.61 9.17 7.9 10.09

SITUATION OF ASSETS/CAPITAL RESOURCES

Unit: million VND

Increase/
Decrease
Indicator Year Year over the CAGR 2020
2022 | 2023 -2024
same pe-
riod

Short-term assets 4,716 4,808 4,408 3,743 4,498 20.17% (76.16%)
Cash and cash equivalents 290 147 226 284 80 (71.88%) (93.11%)
Short-term financial investments 8 6 12 15 16 10.14% (50.93%)
Short-term receivables 761 607 594 674 636 (5.65%) (79.11%)
Inventory 3,654 4,026 3,571 2,765 3,683 33.17% (74.80%)
Other short-term assets 3 22 6 4 83  1943.36% 641.73%
Long-term assets 1,926 2,001 2,115 2,661 3,345 25.70% (56.57%)
Long-term receivables 607 708 760 780 774 (0.69%) (68.14%)
Fixed assets 549 527 583 582 548 (5.90%) (75.08%)
Investment properties 354 379 370 673 515 (23.50%) (63.66%)
Long-term assets in progress 401 382 360 363 643 77.15% (59.99%)
Long-term financial investments - - 33 224 835 273.28% -
Other long-term assets 13 5 9 41 31 (22.53%) (40.51%)

Total assets

22.47%

(70.48%)

B : ) 2024

Liabilities 4572 3,465 2,707 2,580 2,691 4.30% (85.28%)
Short-term liabilities 3,184 1,940 2,011 2,318 2,089 (9.86%) (83.60%)
Long-term liabilities 1,387 1,525 696 262 602 129.45% (89.15%)
Owner's equity 2,070 3,344 3,816 3,824 5,151 34.73% (37.79%)

Total capital resources

6,642

6,809

6,523

6,404

7,843

‘ 22.47%

(70.48%)
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e—@verview of the macroeconomic and real estate industry)

GENERAL SITUATION ASSESSMENT FOR 2024

WORLD
ECONOMIC
SITUATION

-

-

VIETNAM'S
ECONOMIC
SITUATION

Economic Growth and
Inflation

Regarding inflation, Vietnam'’s CPI in 2024 increased
by 3.63% compared to 2023, the highest level in the
last 10 years but still within the Government’s target
level of 4.0%. In which, the group of food and food
services increased in price as the main reason due
to the increase in domestic rice prices following
export prices and the impact of storms and floods.
Excluding the groups of food, fresh food, energy
and goods managed by the state, the average core
inflation in 2024 increased by 2.71% compared to
2023, much lower than the average CPl increase.

(- ) w2024

(" In the Global Economic Prospects report, the WB forecasts global growth
in 2024 to reach 2.4%, the lowest in three consecutive years (from 6.0%
in 2021 t0 3.0% in 2022, 2.6% in 2023 and 2.4% in 2024). This decrease in
growth reflects the lagged effects of tight monetary policies to curb high
inflation, limited credit conditions, and weak global trade and investment.

In 2024, Vietham's economy recorded a growth of 7.09% — exceeding
the Government’s full-year target of 6.5 — 7.0% thanks to the recovery
of export activities of processed and manufactured goods as well as
attracting investment capital.

Investment activities

Total realized social investment capital at
current prices reached VND 3,692 trillion, an
increase of 7.5% compared to 2023, driven
by state budget investment capital under the
expansionary fiscal policy of 2020 - 2024. In
addition, private investment capital and foreign
direct investment capital also accelerated
compared to 2024.

FISCAL POLICY

By the end of December 2024, total accumulated state budget revenue reached VND 2,038 trillion, an
increase of 16.2% compared to 2023 and exceeding the 20% estimate; and total budget expenditure
reached VND 1,831 trillion, an increase of 5.7% compared to 2023. Thus, the Ministry of Finance
forecasts that the budget deficit for the whole year will be about 3.4% of GDP (corresponding to an
additional expenditure of approximately VND 450 trillion in the 2024 budget).

The goal of disbursing 95% of development investment capital in 2024 faces many challenges:
By December 2024, the disbursement rate nationwide only reached 77.6%. In particular, up to 30
ministries, sectors and 26 localities have disbursement rates lower than the national average. The
slow disbursement has lasted for many years and led to many negative consequences — not only
affecting economic growth in general but also leading to wasted resources from projects that cannot
be put into use as well as loan interest costs borne by the Government, investors and contractors.

MONETARY POLICY

Credit growth accelerated in the last months
of the year and completed the target for 2024,
estimated to reach 15.08% by the end of 2024-
12-31, higher than the increase of 13.78% in
2023. At the end of the year, the State Bank
of Vietnam (SBV) continued to actively adjust
and increase the 2024 credit limit for credit
institutions. With low interest rates and the
rapid recovery of exports and production,
businesses have grown again and actively
borrowed capital.

Regarding interest rate developments, in
2024, the SBV continued to promote lower
lending rates to support the economy. The SBV
continued to maintain stable deposit interest
rates, helping to save costs to reduce lending
rates as deposit rates for long terms of many
banks were almost flat in 2024.

E
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G—stessment of the real estate and construction industry outlook for 20@

EFFORTS FROM THE GOVERNMENT WILL
HELP PROMOTE LEGAL PROBLEM SOLVING
FROM MID-2025

A clear legal framework thanks to the new Law
system. After the trio of Laws, namely the Housing
Law, the Real Estate Business Law and the Land
Law, officially took effect, the Government also
completed the issuance of a system of legal
guidance documents at the Central level and is
urging completion at the local level. The new Law
system has removed overlaps between Laws and
created a transparent and clear legal corridor for

projects.

i 2024

THE MARKET IS RECOVERING ACROSS THE
BOARD WITH PROSPERITY IN THE SOUTHERN
MARKET

The second half of 2025 is expected to be the
period when legal problem-solving measures will
begin to take effect and penetrate the real estate
market, thereby helping to improve the supply of
real estate more clearly, especially the supply in the
southern provinces and cities.

Improved supply helps stabilize real estate prices,
creating momentum for price increases in 2025.
Cost pressure is the main reason why real estate
prices are unlikely to decrease in 2025. The
method of calculating land use fees for real estate
projects under the new Law is causing land costs
for businesses to increase. Therefore, businesses
are forced to increase output selling prices to

compensate for the increase in costs.

CAPITAL FLOW IS EXPECTED TO GRADUALLY
IMPROVE IN 2025

» Although credit growth in the real estate sector
remains high, credit is flowing into a small number
of businesses, while many businesses are facing
a serious shortage of capital due to difficult
access to bank loans, a gloomy bond market, and
limited capital mobilization from customers due to
unfavorable project sales. Many businesses are also
making efforts to restructure their project portfolios
and transfer projects in order to have more cash
flow to pay off maturing debts.

» Legal issues remain a key factor in unlocking
capital flow for businesses. Clearing legal hurdles
will help businesses access credit capital more
easily and generate more cash flow from customers
when projects are launched.

@
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Q—GWOT analysis

,_/!’ BECAMEX IJC

STRENGTHS

» Real estate businesses possess extensive land
reserves, offering products across multiple segments
to meet diverse customer needs.

» Owning large land funds in strategic locations in
Binh Duong, creating favorable conditions for the
development of real estate projects.

» Always taking the lead in applying new technologies
and techniques to project management and
construction operations, helping businesses improve
operational efficiency.

» Experienced leadership with good strategic vision
helps businesses develop properly and achieve their
set goals.

» Ateam of highly qualified personnel helps businesses
deploy business operations effectively.

» Has a stable source of revenue from traffic toll
collection activities.

» Stable financial capacity, ensuring the ability to
implement large projects.

(0 ) 2024

WEAKNESSES

» Failure to expand product distribution
channels, reducing access to potential
customers.

» The Company’'s business results
depend heavily on fluctuations in the
real estate market, which is cyclical
and affected by many macroeconomic
factors.

OPPORTUNITIES

Sustainable growth potential of the real estate

industry:

Binh Duong is the province with the fastest
economic and urbanization development rate
inthe country, the most dynamically developing
province in the South. This is an important
factor promoting real estate demand in key
industrial and service areas.

The legal corridor related to the real estate
sector is of concern to the Government,
adjusting favorably for investors.

Take advantage of support from experienced
partners to improve competitiveness and
sustainable development in the market.

Growth potential of the transport infrastructure

industry:

Transport infrastructure in the Southeast
provinces is being heavily invested in.

THREATS

environment is

The competitive
increasingly fierce, with the participation of
many large potential businesses, requiring
businesses to adapt to create superior
products.

Inflationary pressure, high interest rates
and macroeconomic fluctuations may
affect the Company’s business operations.
Real estate project (BDS) legality is still
governed by many laws and there are
still many overlaps and contradictions.
Customer rights are not fully guaranteed
by law.

Changes in policies on real estate, taxes,
and public investment may affect the
Company'’s business operations.

M
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e—CReport to the Board of General Directors)

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS

In 2024, the global economy grew steadily but without
much vibrancy. The IMF forecasts global economic
growth in 2024 to reach 3.2%, slightly down from 3.3%
in 2023. Due to negative impacts from prolonged
monetary tightening policies until around the end of
Quarter 3 of 2024 to control inflation, geopolitical
conflicts and economic fragmentation have reduced
the resilience of global supply chains and disrupted
global capital flows, climate change and natural
disasters with great and serious damage.

In Vietnam, with support from the Government in
maintaining low interest rates and public investment
policies, GDP in 2024 is estimated to increase by 7.09%
compared to the previous year, exceeding the target
of 6.5-7% set by the National Assembly. However, the
Vietnamese economyis being supported by importand
export activities and foreign investment capital flows.
Vietnamese enterprises still face many difficulties
due to internal weaknesses, and are also affected by
natural disasters when Typhoon Yagi hit in September

this year. In addition, people’s incomes have not
really improved, the situation of staff reductions
continues, and the unemployment rate among
the working-age population in 2024 is 2.24%,
only slightly down compared to 2023.

For the residential real estate industry, the
clearance of the legal framework and low
interest rates have partially supported the real
estate market’s recovery. However, the recovery
is still occurring locally, mainly in the northern
provinces. Southern real estate businesses still
face many difficulties as real estate credit is
tightly controlled and demand remains weak, as
buyers tend to wait for real estate prices to fall
further.

Becamex IJC mainly provides high-end real
estate, so the customer base is relatively limited.
At the same time, negatively affected by the
macro economy in general and the real estate
industry in particular, the business results in

CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS FOR 2024

IMPLEMENTATION IMPLEMENTATION | % IMPLEMENTATION

IMPLEMENTATION 2024/IM-

2024/ PLAN 2024

Total revenue

Unit: Billion VND

% INCREASE/DECREASE

PLEMENTATION 2023
(23%)

Total expenses

(27%)

Profit before tax

(16%)

Profit after tax

(10%)

BUSINESS RESULTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY IN 2024

IMPLEMEN- IMPLEMEN-

The Company’s total consolidated revenue in 2024 reached VND 1,170 billion, reaching 53% of the plan, down 23%
compared to 2023. Consolidated pre-tax and profit after taxs reached VND 415 billion and VND 354 billion, reaching
65% and 69% of the plan, down 16% and 10% respectively compared to 2023.

Unit: Billion VND

% INCREASE/
DECREASE
IMPLEMEN-

% IMPLEMEN-

2024 did not complete the plan approved by the CRITERION TATIONIN | 2024 PLAN | TATIONIN [TATION 2024/

General Meeting of Shareholders. 2023 2024 PLAN 2024 TATION 2024/

IMPLEMEN-
TATION 2023

FELENL T Total revenue 1.239 1.911 788 41% (36%)

|
a8 Nt Total expenses 779 1286 494 38% (37%)
L [T
Sy, e Profit before tax 460 625 294 47% (36%)
L g Irj"u -] 1"1—: i .:"il
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The parent Company’s total revenue in 2024 reached VND 788 billion, reaching 41% of the plan, down 36% compared
10 2023. The parent company'’s pre-tax and profit after taxs reached VND 294 billion and VND 244 billion, reaching 47%
and 49% of the plan respectively, down 36% and 34% compared to 2023.
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS

REVENUE STRUCTURE -
Unit: Billion VND
YEAR 2023 ‘ YEAR 2024 ‘ INCREASE/DECREASE
PROPOR- PROPOR- PROPOR-
VALUE TION VALUE TION ‘ VALUE TION
Revenue from traffic fees 294 19% 309 26% 15 5%
Revgnue from real estate 698 46% 323 28% (375) (54%)
business
Other revenue 535 35% 538 46% 3 1%
Total revenue 1,527 100% 1,170 100% (357) (23%)

@

In 2024, the Company'’s revenue structure in the real estate business segment was the main business

activity but only contributed 28% of total revenue due to the decrease in real estate business revenue
in 2024. Traffic toll collection activities accounted for 26% and other business activities accounted
for 46% in the Company’s revenue structure. Other revenue accounted for a large proportion because
the Company recorded profit from Becamex Binh Phuoc Infrastructure Development JSC during the
year.

(- ) 02024

REAL ESTATE BUSINESS

In 2024, real estate business revenue reached VND 323 billion,
reaching 28% of the plan, down 54% compared to 2023. The Billion

293"

REAL ESTATE BUSINESS
REVENUE

real estate business revenue result in 2024 did not complete
the plan approved by the General Meeting. The reason is that
the market’s liquidity is low, purchasing power is weak, and
customers are still waiting for real estate prices to fall deeper.
In addition, the high-end real estate segment is still picky about
customers, so revenue decreased sharply compared to 2023
and did not meet the set plan. During the year, real estate

business revenue was recorded from the projects: Sunflower
| Villa Area, Sunflower Il Villa Area, Hoa Loi Residential Area
project and other projects.

® TRAFFIC TOLL

COLLECTION

Revenue from traffic toll collection activities in
2024 reached VND 309 billion, reaching 99%
of the plan, an increase of 5% compared to
2023, because the total traffic volume through
2 toll stations reached 21,783,855 vehicles, an
increase of 6% compared to 2023.

OTHER BUSINESS °

ACTIVITIES

Other business activities include revenue from
investment real estate business, restaurants,
hotels, revenue from supermarket goods business,
construction revenue, financial revenue, revenue
recorded from Becamex City Center project
business cooperation and investment, profit
recorded from Becamex Binh Phuoc Infrastructure
Development JSC and revenue from providing
service segments. During the year, total revenue
from other business activities reached VND 538
billion, reaching 71% of the plan, an increase of 1%

compared to 2023.

L
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS
GROSS PROFIT STRUCTURE

Unit: Billion VND

YEAR 2023 ‘ YEAR 2024 ‘INCREASE/DECREASE
PRO-
VALUE | POR- | VvALUE [[ROPORT yarye |PROPOR-
TION TION
TION
Gross profit from toll collection 225 35% 232 51% 7 3%
Gross profit fromreal estate business 273 42% 96 21% (177) (65%)
Other gross profit 153 23% 130 28% (23) (15%)
Total gross profit 651 100% 458 100% (193) (30%)

In 2024, gross profit from real estate business activities reached VND 96 billion, a decrease of VND 177
billion, equivalent to a decrease of 65% compared to 2023. Gross profit from toll collection activities reached
VND 232 billion, an increase of VND 7 billion, equivalent to an increase of 3% compared to 2023. Gross profit
from other activities reached VND 130 billion, a decrease of VND 23 billion, equivalent to a decrease of 15%
compared to 2023.

In general, in 2024, due to being affected by reduced revenue from business activities, the company’s total
gross profit reached VND 458 billion, a decrease of VND 193 billion, equivalent to a decrease of 30% compared
to 2023.

PROGRESS THE COMPANY HAS MADE IN 2024

In 2024, the Company promoted in-depth training and diversified skills for employees, from expertise to soft
skills such as sales, management, and leadership. As a result, the Company has built a team of elite and
experienced personnel, contributing to improving productivity and work efficiency.

In addition, the Company also focuses on building a reasonable, transparent and efficient management
apparatus. At Becamex IJC, the Board of General Directors and the Board of Directors always have high
consensus and close coordination in making decisions and operating business activities.
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

m INDICATORS UNIT YEAR 2023 | YEAR 2024

Solvency ratio

Current ratio times 1.61 2.15

Quick ratio times
n-—-

Debt/Total assets ratio 40.29 34.32

Debt/Equity ratio % 67.48 52.24
n Operational efficiency ratio ---

Inventory turnover times 0.27 0.17

Total asset turnover times
-—-

Total revenue 26.42 34.71

Total expenses % 32.33 41.22

Profit before tax % 10.33 6.87

Profit after tax % 6.17 4.52
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Indicators of solvency

Solvency ratio

218
161
-

Current ratio Cuick rutio

B2024 &2023

4 )

Capital structure indicators

In 2024, all capital structure indicators decreased
compared to 2023. Specifically, the Debt/Total
Assets ratio decreased from 40.29% to 34.32%, the
Debt/Equity ratio decreased from 67.48% to 52.24%
duetothecompletion ofthechartercapitalincrease,
restructuring of payables, and promotion of debt
recovery and payment of customer payables. The
decrease in capital structure indicators compared
to the previous year reflects a positive shift in the
company'’s financial situation, helping the company
reduce financial pressure and reduce the proportion
of debt in the capital structure.

U (s: ) 2024

Solvency indicators fluctuated compared to the
previous year. The current ratio increased from
1.61 to 2.15; the ratio of short-term debt solvency
is still guaranteed to be > 1 time, indicating that
the company is fully capable of paying short-term
debts. The quick ratio decreased slightly compared
to the previous year, indicating that the company’s
liquidity is still maintained at a stable level.

N
Capital structure ratio
67.48%
52.24%
aph TN l I
Drebt Total assets ratio Debt'Equity ratio
w2024 &2023
/

Indicators of operational efficiency

Operational efficiency ratio

0,27
.23

01y
0,014
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Indicators of profitability

The ratio of profit after tax/net revenue increased
from 26.42% to 34.71%. The ratio of Profit from
Business Operations/Net Revenue increased
from 32.33% to 41.22%. Although revenue in 2024
decreased compared to 2023, the above indicators
increased compared to 2023 because in 2024,
due to difficult business conditions, the Company
had flexible solutions, selecting and increasing the
proportion of products with higher profit/revenue
margins than the previous year for sale, while
minimizing unnecessary expenses and reducing

In 2024, inventory turnover and total asset turnover
decreased compared to 2023, reaching 0.17 turns
and 0.14 turns, respectively, due to a decrease
of VND 474 billion in net revenue from sales and
service provision in 2024, equivalent to a 32%
decrease compared to 2023.
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financial costs, etc. The ratio of profit after tax/Equity decreased from 10.33% to 6.87% and the ratio of
profit after tax/Average total assets decreased from 6.17% to 4.52%. The reason is that the company’s
main business area, real estate business, faced many difficulties, revenue decreased by 54%, equivalent to
a decrease of VND 375 billion, and profit after tax decreased by 87%, equivalent to a decrease of VND 142

billion.
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COMPANY'S FINANCIAL SITUATION IN 2024

TOTAL ASSET SITUATION
Unit: million VND

% INCREASE/ | PROPORTION IN [PROPORTION IN

INDICATORS 31/12/2023 | 31/12/2024 DECREASE 2023 2024
Short-term assets 3,742,769 4,497,721 20.17% 58.45% 57.35%
Long-term assets 2,660,985 3,344,949 25.70% 41.55% 42.65%
Total assets 6,403,754 7,842,670 22.47% 100% 100%

In the period from 2023-12-31 to 2024-12-31, Becamex IJC’s total assets increased by 22.47%, from VND
6,403,754 million to VND 7,842,670 million. Specifically, short-term assets increased by 20.17%, while the
proportion of short-term assets in total assets decreased from 58.45% to 57.35%. Similarly, long-term assets
also increased by 25.70%, but the proportion of long-term assets slightly increased from 41.55% to 42.65%.
The increase in total assets and the increase in the proportion of long-term assets show that the company
is shifting towards investing more strongly in long-term assets, while reducing dependence on short-term
assets.

58.45% 57.35%
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\ Short-term assets \ Long-term assets
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ACCOUNT PAYABLES SITUATION

Unit: million VND
% INCREASE/ | PROPORTION IN |PROPORTION IN

INDICATORS 31/12/2023 |31/12/2024 DECREASE 2023 2024
Liabilities 2,580,168 2,691,234 4.30% 40.29% 34.32%
- Short-term liabilities 2,317,793 2,089,228 (9.86%) 89.83% 77.63%
- Long-term liabilities 262,374 602,006 129.45% 10.17% 22.37%
Owner's equity 3,823,587 5,151,436 34.73% 59.71% 65.68%

Total capital resources 6,403,754 7,842,670 22.47% 100.00% 100.00%

The capital situation of Becamex IJC from 2023-12-31 to 2024-12-31 shows some notable fluctuations.
Total capital increased by 22.47%, reaching VND 7,842,670 million on 2024-12-31, with changes from debts
and equity. Specifically, liabilities increased by 4.30%, accordingly, the proportion of liabilities in total capital
decreased from 40.29% to 34.32%. Equity increased by 34.73% and the proportion in total capital increased
from 59.71% to 65.68%. These fluctuations show that the company has adjusted its capital structure, focusing
on increasing the proportion of equity and gradually reducing dependence on long-term debt.

2024
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INVESTMENT SITUATION, PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION SITUATION
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MAJOR INVESTMENTS DURING THE YEAR

VALUE ( \ . . . . .
PROJECT NAME LOCATION » Busmesg Registration Certlﬁcatg No. 3702280392 issued by the_ Department
(BILLION VND) of Planning and Investment of Binh Duong province for the first time on 2014-
Chart ital £9024 BECAMEX 06-12, first change on 2018-01-16.
arter capital as o -
) National Highway 14, Minh ] P - TRADE » Address: Becamex Tower, 230 Binh Duong Avenue, Phu Hoa Ward, Thu Dau
Becamex - Binh Phuoc Becamex 12-31 is 1,798 billion VND, COMPANY Mot Citv. Binh D Provi
Thanh Ward, Chon Thanh ; 484 LIMITED (BTI) ot City, Binh Duong Province.
Infrastructure Development JSC Town, Binh Phuoc Province. Becamex 1JC contributed » Main business lines: trading in commercial center activities, tourism,
capital accounting for 31.77% passenger transport, air ticket and train ticket agency.

Total investment: 2,027 billion

VND, including 590 adjacent 820
townhouses from 1-3 floors

Total investment of 1,580

billion VND (667 billion VND

Lot N5, Hoa Phu Ward, Tan An invested), including 4 blocks ~ ~ » Business Registration Certificate No. 3701906616 issued by the Department of

»  Charter capital (2024-12-31): VND 20,000,000,000.

IJC Hoa Loi expanded residential Le Loi Street, Hoa Phu Ward,
» Percentage of charter capital owned by IJC (2024-12-31): 100%

area, plot E Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong.

(

IC Aroma luxury apartment City, Binh Duong. of 17-24 storey apartment 50 Planning and Investment of Binh Duong province for the first time on 2011-08-09, 7th
buildings including: 616 BECAMEX HOTEL change on 2016-04-05.
o »  Address: Becamex Hotel, 230 Binh Duong Avenue, Phu Hoa Ward, Thu Dau Mot City,
apartments and 56 kiosks ONE MEMBER Binh Duong Province
. LIMITED .
Other projects 38 COMPANY (BHI) »  Website: becamexhotel.com.vn
» Main business lines: restaurant and catering services, event organization, hotel
Total 1,392 Services.

»  Charter capital (2024-12-31): VND 12,000,000,000.
»  Percentage of charter capital owned by IJC (2024-12-31): 100%

»

{

OPERATING PERFORMANCE OF THE SUBSIDIARY IN 2024

Unit: Billion VND

» Business Registration Certificate No. 3702918734 issued by the Department of

BHI Company BTl Company WTC Company 4 ) Planning and Investment of Binh Duong province for the first time on 2020-10-06.
: » Address: 811 Hung Vuong Street, Hoa Phu Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong
Indicators WTC BINH Province.
DUONG ONE N ; ; A
Actual | %Ac/PL Actual | %Ac/PL Actual | %Ac/PL MEMBER Main business lines:
»  0Organizing exhibition, conference and trade promotion activities in and outside the
LIMITED country.
Total
r(;)\;[:nue 219 219 100% 94 116 123% 20 26 130% COMPANY »  Providing international trade promotion strategy consulting services and business
Total \/ administration.
e)?pee]anses 205 184 90% 91.6 107 117% 14.5 16 110% v »  Charter capital (2024-12-31): VND 5,000,000,000.
»  Percentage of charter capital owned by IJC (2024-12-31): 100%
PBT 14 35 250% 2.4 9 375% 5.5 10 182%
PAT 12 28 233% 2 7 350% 4.4 8 182%

() Rni2024 @ |
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IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, POLICIES, AND MANAGEMENT

BUSINESS PLAN FOR THE YEAR 2025

/

Becamex IJC has implemented several important improvements in organizational structure,
policies and management to improve operational efficiency, optimize processes and better meet
the requirements of the market and law. The following are the outstanding improvements that the

company has implemented:

ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE

Restructuring the  organizational
structure: To improve efficiency
and flexibility in managing real
estate projects, Becamex IJC has
restructured  the  organizational
structure, optimized departments
and assigned tasks more clearly.
The departments are organized
according to a streamlined model,
strengthening coordination between
departments, helping the company
operate more efficiently and quickly

IMPROVING RISK
MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

Building a risk management
system: Becamex IJC has built and
improved the risk management
system throughout the company.
This system helps the company
identify and manage risks
related to factors such as market
fluctuations, legal changes, finance
and environmental issues. Risk
prevention and response measures
are clearly defined and regularly
updated.

Bo10
b

INFORMATION

DISCLOSURE

Enhancing Transparency in Information
Disclosure: Becamex IJC has improved
its information disclosure processes,
especially in the publication of financial
statements, project status, and
important decisions. The company has
ensured that information is provided
fully, accurately, and in a timely manner,
helping shareholders and investors
easily access information and make
informed decisions.

/Positive results in economic growth in 2024, in 2025 the Government aims to focus on promoting

growth to reach 8% or higher, while maintaining macroeconomic stability, controlling inflation,
ensuring major balances of the economy, creating a premise for higher growth in subsequent years.
In addition, urgently and drastically complete institutions and policies to remove bottlenecks and
barriers to growth, contributing to renewing and promoting growth drivers such as investment,
consumption, etc.

The domestic stock market in 2025 is forecast to have brighter colors, thanks to breakthrough
expectations from Vietnam’s internal factors. Along with the attention and direction of the Government,
the support of ministries and sectors, and the efforts of enterprises, it is hoped that it will continue to
create a foundation for the Vietnamese stock market to maintain stability, good liquidity, and growth

adapt to market changes. Improving  forecasting  and ?ilingual Information ‘D;sclosu.re: in both scale and quality.

- i o i o ensure access to information . . : .
Establishment of specialized units:  response capabilities to market . . The real estate market still faces many challenges; the completion and implementation of new legal
The company has established fluctuations: To cope with the rapid ~ for international shareholders

specialized departments, especially in
areas such as risk management, legal
and finance, to ensure supervision,
control and implementation of
policies are carried out professionally
and responsibly.

) 2024

changes in the real estate market,
Becamex [JC has implemented
analysis and forecasting tools to
help the company quickly identify
new trends and have timely
response plans.

and investors, Becamex IJC has
implemented  bilingual information
disclosure as required by Circular
68/2024/TT-BTC, thereby enhancing
transparency and professionalism in
the company’s management.

regulations on land, housing and real estate business, many obstacles are expected to be gradually
removed. This is a powerful supporting factor for the market to recover strongly and develop more
stably in the coming time, thereby opening up opportunities for Vietnamese real estate to continue to
break through and exploit growth potential.

@ |
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BUSINESS PLAN FOR THE YEAR 2025

CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025 -
Unit: Billion VND

% INCREASE/

BUSINESS PLAN OF THE PARENT COMPANY IN 2025

Unit: Billion VND
% INCREASE/
DECREASE
INDICATOR 2024 ACTUAL 2025 PLAN
CATO 0 CTU 025 2025 PL/ 2024 AC
Total revenue 788 1.787 127%
Total expenses 494 1.333 170%
Profit before tax 294 454 54%
Profit after tax 244 373 53%
Dividend payment 5%/VbL 5%/VDL (*)

DECREASE
INDICATOR 2024 ACTUAL 2025 PLAN 2025 PL/ 2024 AC
Total revenue 1,170 2,086 78%
+ Toll revenue 309 309 -
+ Real estate business revenue 323 990 207%
+ Other revenue 538 787 46%
Total expenses 755 1,569 108%
Profit before tax 415 517 25%
Profit after tax 354 429 21%

In 2025, the consolidated total revenue plan at Becamex IJC is
2,086 billion VND, an increase of 78% compared to 2024. Profit
before tax and after tax are 517 billion VND and 429 billion
VND, respectively, increasing 25% and 21% compared to 2024.
The business operation plan of each field of operation in 2025
is as follows:

Revenue from real estate business activities is 990 billion
VND, an increase of 207% compared to the implementation
in 2024, the expected profit after tax is 203 billion VND, an
increase of 827% compared to 2024. The projects expected
to be implemented and put into business during the year are
mainly projects in the Hoa Phu ward area, Binh Duong new
city: Sunflower Il Villa Area project, Hoa Loi Residential Area
project, Hoang Tu Il Quarter project, etc.

Revenue from toll collection activities is 309 billion VND,
equivalent to 2024. The expected profit after tax is 148 billion
VND, an increase of 3% compared to 2024.

Other business revenues (house rentals, construction activities,
investment property business activities, income from financial
activities, business cooperation, etc.) reached VND 787 hillion,
a 46% increase compared to 2024.

() 2024

(*) Charter capital after share issuance to increase charter capital in 2025 is expected to be: VND
6,295,806,400,000.

At the parent company, the total revenue plan for 2025 is VND 1,787 billion, a 127% increase compared
to 2024. Pre-tax and profit after taxs are expected to be VND 454 billion and VND 373 billion, respectively,
representing increases of 54% and 53% compared to 2024.

BUSINESS PLAN OF MEMBER COMPANIES IN 2025

Unit: Billion VND
BHI COMPANY BTI COMPANY WTC COMPANY
INDICATORS
ACTUAL %PL ACTUAL | PLAN %PL ACTUAL %PL
2024 2025/AC 2025/AC 2024 2025/AC
Total 219 222 2024 116 116 2024 26 23 2024
revenue
Total 184 196 107% 107 111 104% 16 21,4 134%
expenses
PBT 35 26 74% 9 5 56% 10 1,6 16%
PAT 28 21 75% 7 4 57% 8 1,3 16%
Becamex Hotel Co., Ltd. aims for a revenue of VND 116 billion, equivalent to that of
2024, and an profit after tax of VND 4 billion, a 43% decrease compared to 2024.
—|= B S
S Becamex Hotel Co., Ltd. aimsforarevenue of VND 222 billion, a 1% increase compared
pp— to 2024, and an profit after tax of VND 21 billion, a 25% decrease compared to 2024.
7 WTC Biilh "Dii6iig Co., Ltd. aims for a reventue of VND 23 billion, a"12% decrease
A compared to 2024, and an profit after tax of VND 1.3 billion, an 84% decrease
compared to 2024.
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IMPLEMENTATION SOLUTIONS

REAL ESTATE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

» Promote research, development, and
commercialization of real estate products that meet
market demands.

» Complete the investment in construction of
technical infrastructure and utility works at projects
to increase project value, better serve sales, and
attract residents.

» Expand sales channels, develop sales policies
suitable for the real estate market at each time.

» Build and hand over houses in accordance with the
sales schedule, and issue certificates of ownership
of assets to customers who have purchased real
estate projects in accordance with the schedule
specified in the contract.

» Seek investors with strong financial potential to
carry out wholesale sales or transfer part of the
project.

TRAFFIC TOLL COLLECTION ACTIVITIES

Complete legal documents and invest in the
construction of the QL13 expansion project.
Complete the construction of the rainwater drainage
system, lighting system, and sidewalks of National
Highway 13 in the remaining sections of Bau Bang
town.

Strengthen inspection and supervision of toll
collection activities, apply advanced technology to
management, and ensure no losses occur in toll
collection activities.

EXPLANATION FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGA?ING THE AUDIT OPINION None
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PLAN FOR

2025

OTHER FIELDS

Explore investment opportunities in Becamex IJC
companies participating in capital contributions,
and companies with the same business lines to
leverage experience and business advantages to
develop real estate projects and participate in the
construction of civil works and infrastructure.
Continue to apply digital transformation to develop
and create a competitive advantage, keeping
up with the continuous changes of the market.
Apply scientific and technological advances to
production, business, and management activities
with the aim of optimizing work processes,
improving efficiency, and increasing profits.
Complete the issuance of additional shares
to increase charter capital in order to increase
financial capacity and proactively source capital
to expand the scale of production and business.
Closely manage costs, ensure the effective use
of capital; improve financial capacity, and ensure
continuous, stable, and sustainable development.




i

Nt WA SEEERRRE A
v N\

N
.

CORPORATE _
GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. Report of Board of Directors

W o e 3
ik

2.Report of Board of Supervisors
3. Risk Management Report

4. Investor relations activities




REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

G—Clmplementation status of the GMS' Resolutions )
Implementation status of the GMS’ Resolutions

é On 2024-04-19, Becamex IJC successfully organized the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders and approved the following important issues:

» Approved Submission No. 01/TTr-DHPCD dated 2024-04-19 on the 2023 financial
statements audited by A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.; Report of the Board of Directors
in 2023; Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2023.

» Approved Submission No. 02/TTr-DHDCD dated 2024-04-19 on the General Director’s
report on 2023 business results and 2024 business plan.

» Approved Submission No. 03/TTr-bHDCD dated 2024-04-19 on the plan to distribute profits
and pay dividends for 2023 and the plan to distribute profits and pay dividends for 2024.

» Approved Submission No. 04/TTr-DHDCD dated 2024-04-19 on payment of remuneration
to the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Company Secretary in 2023 and the
payment plan for 2024.

» Approved Submission No. 05/TTr-DHDCD dated 2024-04-19 on the approval of the list of
independent auditing companies to audit the financial statements and operational audits (if

necessary) of the Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company.

» Approved Submission No. 06/TTr-DHDCD dated 20224-04-19 on the dismissal and election
of additional members of the Board of Supervisors for the term (2022-2027).

» Approved the results of the election of additional members of the Board of Supervisors for
the term (2022-2027)

(@——— In 2024, the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders were implemented and com:-
pleted by the Board of Directors and the Board of Management.

Repon 2024

Q—CActivities of the Board of Directors in 2024)

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 46 meetings in the form of direct meetings, online meetings and written
opinions. With enthusiasm and a high sense of responsibility, all members of the Board of Directors fully
participated in the meetings of the Board of Directors to optimize benefits for shareholders and the sustainable
development of the Company.

No. BOARD MEMSER Nl\iljllsvlls?f:eoslz ATTEND?E?)TISIEETING
1 Mr. Do Quang Ngon 46 100%
2 Mr. Quang Van Viet Cuong 46 100%
3 Mr. Tran Thien The 46 100%
4 Ms. Vo Thi Huyen Trang 46 100%
5 Mrs. Le Thi Xuan Dieu 46 100%

The meetings of the Board of Directors are held in accordance with the provisions of law, the Company’s
Charter and internal regulations. The Board of Directors has approved the guidelines and assigned tasks to
the Board of Genenral Directors to implement, and promptly resolved the requests of the Board of Genenral
Directors. Accordingly, the specific content of the meetings and resolutions issued are as follows:

RESOLUTION/
u DECISION DATE CONTENT

| BOD Resolution

Approval of contents related to borrowing capital from Tien Phong Commercial

1 01/NQ-HBQT  2024-01-15 )
Joint Stock Bank

Approval of updated, amended, and supplemented documents for submission
2 02/NQ-HPQT  2024-01-15 to the SSC
o the

Approval of the execution of contracts and transactions between Becamex
3 03/NQ-HDQT  2024-01-24 ) S
Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company and related parties in 2024

4 04/NQ-HDPQT  2024-02-05 Approval of updated and supplemented documents for submission to the SSC

Approval of the list of shareholders of Becamex Infrastructure Development
5 05/NQ-HDPQT  2024-02-07 ) ) o
Joint Stock Company to issue shares to existing shareholders

Approval of the adjustment and supplementation of the main contents in the

Joint Venture Agreement and its appendices already signed regarding the
6 06/NQ-HPQT  2024-02-23 . ) ) . o o

implementation of the investment project to build Ring Road 4 of Ho Chi Minh

City, Thu Bien Bridge - Saigon River section (Phase 1)

Approval of the record date and plan to hold the 2024 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders

7 07/NQ-HBQT  2024-02-24
&
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8

07A/NQ-HBQT

2024-02-27

CONTENT

Unanimous approval of the execution of the Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT)
contract Appendix

24

22/NQ-HDbQT

2024-07-02

CONTENT

Implementing a toll reduction applicable from 2024-07-01 to 2024-12-31 at two
National Highway 13 toll stations

9

08/NQ-HDQT

2024-03-11

Approval of the addition of business lines of WTC Binh Duong One Member
Limited Company

25

23/NQ-HDQT

2024-07-04

Relieving and appointing the position of Chief Accountant of Becamex Trading
One Member Limited Liability Company

10

09/NQ-HDQT

2024-03-28

Approval of certain contents related to the offering of shares to existing
shareholders under the Public Offering Registration Certificate No. 14/GCN-
UBCK dated 2024-02-07

26

24/NQ-HDQT

2024-07-18

Approving the investment policy for the project to adjust the BOT project to
upgrade and expand National Highway 13 - Binh Duong Province

11

10/NQ-HDPQT

2024-04-02

Approval of the registration results and payment for shares purchased by
existing shareholders and the plan to handle the number of shares not fully
distributed

27

25/NQ-HDQT

2024-08-02

Amending and supplementing the Financial Management Regulations of
Becamex Trading One Member Limited Liability Company

Amending and supplementing the Financial Management Regulations of
Becamex Hotel One Member Limited Liability Company

12

11/NQ-HDQT

2024-04-05

Approval of the results of the offering of shares to existing shareholders from
2024-03-05 to 2024-04-05

13

12/NQ-HPQT

2024-04-08

Approval of 2023 business results, 2024 business plan, investment plan,
personnel plan, and 2024 salary fund, and documents to be submitted to the
2024 General Meeting of Shareholders

28

26/NQ-HDQT

2024-08-08

Approving the Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company to
participate in investing in purchasing 450,000 shares in Becamex - Binh Phuoc
Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

14

13/NQ-HDQT

2024-04-17

Approval of the adjustment of the purpose of using capital in the public share
offering to increase charter capital in 2023

29

27/NQ-HDQT

2024-08-26

Approving the Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company to
participate in investing in purchasing 750,000 shares in Becamex - Binh Phuoc
Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

15

14/NQ-HDPQT

2024-04-17

Approval of updated and supplemented documents to be submitted to the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

16

15/NQ-HDQT

2024-04-24

Agreement on contents related to borrowing capital from Vietnam Foreign
Trade Joint Stock Bank - Binh Duong Branch

17

T5A/NQ-HDQT

2024-05-08

Payment of remuneration to the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors
and the Company Secretary in 2023

30

28/NQ-HDQT

2024-08-28

Approving Mr. Do Quang Ngon, the representative and manager of the capital of
Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company at Becamex - Binh
Phuoc Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company, to vote in
favor of the contents at the 2024 Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
of Becamex - Binh Phuoc Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Company

18

16/NQ-HDQT

2024-05-15

Selecting A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. as the auditor for the 2024
financial statements

19

17/NQ-HBQT

2024-05-27

Approving the contents related to borrowing capital from Southeast Asia
Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Binh Duong Branch

31

29/NQ-HDQT

2024-09-10

Approving the dismissal of the position of Director of the Legal Department
cum assistant to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the appointment
of the position of Deputy General Director for Mr. Vu Phi Hung

20

18/NQ-HDQT

2024-06-06

Approving the regulation on management, operation and use of the electronic
office software - eOffice of Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Company

32

30/NQ-HDQT

2024-09-13

Unified approval of the dividend payment for 2023 of the Becamex Infrastructure
Development Joint Stock Company

21

19/NQ-HPQT

2024-06-11

Approving the Internal Audit Results Report for 2023 and the Internal Audit Plan
for 2024

22

20/NQ-HDQT

2024-06-27

Approving the adjustment and supplementation of the main contents in the
consortium agreement and joint venture appendices signed regarding the
implementation of the Ho Chi Minh City - Thu Dau Mot - Chon Thanh Expressway
Construction Investment Project - section through Binh Duong province

33

31/NQ-HDbQT

2024-10-02

Approval for Mr. Do Quang Ngon, the representative and manager of the
capital contribution of the Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Company at Becamex - Binh Phuoc Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint
Stock Company, to vote in favor of the contents at the meeting of the Board of
Directors of Becamex - Binh Phuoc Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint
Stock Company.

23

21/NQ-HDbQT

2024-06-28

Approving the business plan for buying and selling individual houses in blocks
E2,E7,E10,E11, E14 of the Hoa Loi Residential Area Project, Hoa Phu Ward, Thu
Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province

()

Repon 2024

34

32/NQ-HDQT

2024-10-17

Approval of the contents of the Consortium Agreement dated 2024-09-26
between Investment and Industrial Development Corporation - JSC, Becamex
Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company, Becamex - Binh Phuoc
Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company, and Deo Ca
Group Joint Stock Company to carry out the work of participating in bidding
to select investors and other works related to bidding to select investors for
the Project to invest in the construction of the HCM City - Thu Dau Mot - Chon
Thanh highway section through Binh Duong province under the public-private
partnership method.
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Activities of the Board of Directors in 202£D

RESOLUTION

DECISION

33/NQ-HDQT

DATE CONTENT

2024-10-21

Agreement for Mr. Do Quang Ngon, the representative and manager of the
capital contribution of the Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Company at Becamex - Binh Phuoc Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint
Stock Company, to vote in favor of the contents at the BOD meeting of Becamex
Binh Phuoc Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company on the purchase
of shares of Hamek Construction Investment Joint Stock Company at Becamex
Binh Phuoc Electricity Joint Stock Company.

36

34/NQ-HDQT

2024-10-24

Agreement on matters related to borrowing capital from the Vietnam Bank for
Investment and Development - Binh Duong Branch.

37

35/NQ-HDQT

2024-10-30

Unified approval for the Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Company to participate in capital contribution to purchase 438,750 shares
at Becamex - Binh Phuoc Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Company.

38

36/NQ-HDQT

2024-11-29

Unified approval of the functional regulations and tasks of the departments of
the Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company.

Unified approval of the Information Disclosure Regulations of the Becamex
Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company.

39

37/NQ-HDQT

2024-11-29

Approval of the contents of the Consortium Agreement dated 2024-11-20
between Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock Corporation,
Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company, Becamex - Binh
Phuoc Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company, and Deo Ca Group
Joint Stock Company to participate in the selection of investors for the project
to invest in the construction of the Ho Chi Minh City - Thu Dau Mot - Chon
Thanh highway section through Binh Duong province under the public-private
partnership (PPP) method.

40

38/NQ-HDQT

2024-12-06

Approval of the addition of business lines of Becamex Trading Co., Ltd

41

39/NQ-HDQT

2024-12-17

Approval for the General Director to sign contracts and transactions between
the Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company and related
parties in 2025.

42

40/NQ-HDQT

2024-12-19

Approval of the implementation of the reversal of the development investment
fund of Becamex Trading Co., Ltd. according to the reviewed financial statements
for the first 6 months of 2024.

Through the implementation of refunding the development investment fund
of Becamex One Member Limited Liability Hotel Company according to the
reviewed financial statements for the first 6 months of 2024.

43

41/NQ-HDQT

2024-12-19

Agreed on the contents related to borrowing capital from Vietnam International
Commercial Joint Stock Bank

44

42/NQ-HDQT

2024-12-27

Approving the addition of business lines for Becamex One Member Limited
Liability Trading Company

Repon 2024

Ak

RESOLUTION/
DECISION

45  43/NQ-HBQT

DATE

2024-12-31

CONTENT

Agreed on the contents related to borrowing capital from Military Commercial
Joint Stock Bank - Binh Duong Branch

46  44/NQ-HDQT

2024-12-31

Implementing a toll fee reduction applied from 2025-01-01 to 2025-06-30 at two
National Highway 13 toll stations

Il BOD Decision

1 01/Qb-HDQT

2024-03-11

Approving the addition of business lines of WTC Binh Duong One Member
Limited Liability Company

2 02/Qb-HDQT

2024-06-06

Promulgating the regulation on management, operation and use of electronic
office software - eOffice of Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Company

3 03/Qb-HDbQT

2024-09-10

Dismissal from the position of Director of Legal Department cum Assistant to
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company

4 04/Qb-HDQT

2024-09-10

Appointing the position of Deputy General Director of Becamex Infrastructure
Development Joint Stock Company

5 05/Qb-HBQT

2024-11-29

Promulgating the Information Disclosure Regulation of Becamex Infrastructure
Development Joint Stock Company

6 06/Qb-HBQT

2024-11-29

Promulgating the Regulation on functions and duties of departments and
divisions of Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company

7 07/Qb-1JC

2024-12-06

Changing the business lines of Becamex One Member Limited Liability
Trading Company

8 08/Qb-1JC

2024-12-27

Changing the business lines of Becamex One Member Limited Liability
Trading Company

EVALUATION OF THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In 2024,
implementing

tasks

the Board of Directors focused on
in accordance with
decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders,
the company’s charter, governance regulations and
prescribed governance standards, ensuring that all of
the company’s operations comply with regulations.

ensuring that the work is completed effectively.
The Board of Directors has led and managed the
Company effectively, always flexibly adjusting
its strategy to respond to market fluctuations,
helping the Company operate stably in the face
of the difficulties of the real estate market in

the

The Board of Directors has seriously performed its
supervisory and inspection role, ensuring that the
Company always maintains compliance with the law,
demonstrating the Company’s absolute commitment
to legal requirements.

The members of the Board of Directors alldemonstrate
a high sense of responsibility, understand their duties
and fully perform their responsibilities, thereby

2024. The Board of Directors has also fulfilled
its financial obligations to the State, bringing
profits to shareholders and stable income to
employees.

The Board of Directors closely coordinated with
the Executive Management to provide guidance
and timely solutions to respond to market
fluctuations and implement the business plan.

@ |
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BOD ASSESSMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT'S PERFORMANCE

The Board of Supervisors’s oversight of the Executive

Management of the Becamex Infrastructure
Development Joint Stock Company is conducted in
accordance with the internal regulations on corporate
governance and the operating regulations of the Board
of Directors. The Board of Supervisors's oversight
is carried out through forms such as: Reports from
the General Director at Board of Directors meetings,
participation in regular briefings organized by the
General Director.

At the BOD meetings, the General Director reported
and assessed the implementation of the business
plan, developed plans and solutions to complete the
tasks assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders
and the BOD, and proactively and promptly reported

difficulties and problems related to management and

administration to the BOD.

-
() 2024

On that basis, the BOD and the Executive
Management discussed and devised timely and
effective solutions. The Executive Management'’s
activities comply with the provisions of law and
the Company’s internal governance regulations
and adhere to the information disclosure
obligations of the Company at the SSC and Ho
Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

Although the business results for 2024 did not
meet the set plan, the BOD highly appreciates the
continuous efforts of the Executive Management
in flexibly managing solutions to achieve the
business plan goals, the preparation for the
implementation of civil construction investment
projects and transport infrastructure projects is
strictly controlled and completed on schedule,
continuously training and developing the
management team to prepare for the accelerated
development phase in the future.

X 1 I\
N

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBERS

Independent Board members have fully exercised their rights and obligations in accordance with current
laws, the Charter and internal regulations of the Company. Along with other members, independent Board
members have actively participated in compliance control, risk management and oversight of the Executive

Management'’s activities, while contributing many practical opinions in considering and approving matters

under the authority of the Board of Directors.

The contents of the regular and extraordinary
meetings of the BOD are fully and carefully
discussed, debated and evaluated by the members
of the BOD in order to provide the best orientations
and solutions to ensure maximum legal benefits for
the Company.
Issuesrelatedtobusiness strategy, financial strategy,
building a management system... are discussed
and controlled closely between the BOD and the
Executive Management. The implementation of the
Company'’s operations is always analyzed and risks
are identified in a timely manner to ensure stability
and compliance with the law.

The decisions of the BOD at the meetings are
approved by the BOD according to the majority
principle, the minutes of the meeting are fully
prepared and signed for confirmation by the
members of the BOD attending the meeting.

The BOD has implemented and executed issues
in accordance with the Resolution of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024. In
particular, the BOD has effectively supervised and
evaluated risk management for contracts and
transactions with related parties, ensuring strict
compliance with governance standards and current

legal regulations.

Through the E-Office electronic office software, the
BOD closely monitors and supervises the Company'’s
operations, promptly grasping information and
providing appropriate directions and orientations,
providing timely support to the Board of Genenral
Directors in organizing the implementation of the
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders,
the BOD, and at the same time, supervising the
activities of the General Director Board in complying
with the Company’s regulations and current laws.
Members of the BOD, the General Director Board,
and the Chief Accountant fully attended the regular
and unscheduled meetings. Decisions of the
General Director are thoroughly analyzed, critiqued,
and consulted by the BOD to ensure the optimal
benefits for the company. As a result, the BOD
always accurately grasps the operating situation
and promptly updates requirements from reality.
The BOD meetings are organized and managed
closely, with discussions and voting on the
contents in accordance with legal regulations and
authority. The members of the BOD demonstrated
a high sense of responsibility, actively contributing
to the Company’s development orientation through
constructive voting opinions.

The BOD has proactively proposed effective
solutions, providing timely support to the General
Director Board in the operating process, while also
performing well in monitoring and control, ensuring
strict compliance with legal regulations

H e
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PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR 2025

Entering the year 2025, Vietnam’s economy is expected to continue its positive growth momentum
thanks to support policies and efforts to improve the business environment. The real estate market is
forecastto recover on alarge scale, and the supply of real estate will be more clearly improved after the
set of 3 laws, including the Housing Law, the Real Estate Business Law, and the Land Law, officially take
effect from 2024-08-01. As a business with the main business area of investing in the development of
real estate projects and transport infrastructure projects. Based on the analysis and evaluation of the
domestic economic situationin 2025 and the operating capacity of 2025, the Board of Directors directs,
coordinates, and supervises the General Director Board to effectively implement the following tasks:

“BUSINESS PLAN"
» Total consolidated revenue is VND 2,086 billion, an increase of 78%
compared to 2024. Total expenses are VND 1,569 billion, an increase
of 108% compared to 2024. Profit before tax and after tax are VND 517
billion and VND 429 billion respectively, an increase of 25% and 21%
compared to 2024.
» Deploy investment and control the effective management of
investment capital at Beamex Binh Phuoc Becamex Infrastructure
Development Joint Stock Company; Investment project to build Ring
Road 4 of Ho Chi Minh City, the Thu Bien bridge section - Saigon River
(phase 1), Ho Chi Minh City - Thu Dau Mot - Chon Thanh expressway
project; Project to upgrade and expand National Highway 13 and other
transport infrastructure projects.
» Prioritize the development of real estate projects associated with the
ecosystem of Investment and Industrial Development Corporation -
JSC and Binh Phuoc Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Company.
» Continueto expand thefield of construction of technical infrastructure,
civil, commercial, and service projects invested by the Company and
with partners/customers.
» Continue to expand hotel service operations to meet the needs of
the ecosystem of Investment and Industrial Development Corporation
- JSC in industrial parks and residential areas.

LIST OF BOD MEMBERS WHO HAVE PARTICIPATED IN
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TRAINING PROGRAMS AND
HAVE CERTIFICATES IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOD members, members of the Board of Supervisors, General
Director, other management departments, and the Company
Secretary participate in corporate governance training when required.

(o) 2024

“ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE"

» Continue to improve the
internal management regulation
system to enhance the efficiency
of administration and operation.
Streamline the management
apparatus, develop  human
resource management policies,
and offer competitive benefits
to develop a team of high-
quality ~ managers,  experts,
and engineers, meeting the
administration and operation
needs in the new phase.
» Build a corporate culture and
cohesive working environment,
creating a foundation for building
a company with high adaptability,
proactive flexibility, and creative
operational efficiency.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REPORT

G—CActivitieS of the Board of Supervisors)

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors held 3 meetings to verify the data of the Company’s periodic financial

statements. In addition, the Board of Directors regularly invites the Board of Supervisors to attend its meetings.

NUMBER OF | MEETING ATTENDANCE

BOS MEMBER

REASON FOR NOT

MEETINGS ATTENDING MEETING
1T  Mr. Nguyen Hai Hoang 3/3 100%
2  Ms. Le Thi Thuy Duong 3/3 100%
3 Ms. Chau Thi Van 2/3 33% Reapp°imed1f;°m 2024-04-
4  Ms. Mai Thi Huynh Mai 1/3 67% Appointed from 2024-04-19

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors convened meetings and

carried out key tasks as follows:

» Veriflied Becamex IJC's audited financial statements
for 2023; submitted to the 2024 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders the Board of Supervisors’s report on the
performance and results of operations in 2023 and the list
of independent auditing firms for 2024.

» Assessed the production and business results for the first
6 months of 2024 and the financial situation as of 2024-06-
30 of Becamex IJC and its subsidiaries, including Becamex
Hotel Co., Ltd., Becamex Trading Co., Ltd., and WTC Binh
Duong Co., Ltd.

» Inspected the distribution of profits according to the
resolutions of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, including the deduction of remuneration,
allocation to funds, and payment of dividends for 2023.

» Supervised the activities of the Board of Directors in
implementing the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders in compliance with the provisions of law
and the Company’s Charter; reviewed the suitability of the
organization, promulgation, and implementation of the Board
of Directors’ resolutions; and the Company’s compliance
with information disclosure regulations.

Evaluation: The members of the Board of Supervisors have
seriously fulfilled their obligations to inspect and supervise
the operations of Becamex IJC in accordance with the

charter and current regulations.

M - A
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@ BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’' ASSESSMENT OF THE MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONAL
ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

a—CActivities of the Board of Supervisors) - ~

Members of the Board of General Directors regularly organize meetings to implement business
activities and effectively perform internal governance to strive towards completing the objectives set
by the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

= EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD
@ OF DIRECTORS

Information disclosure activities are carried out in accordance with regulations. Periodically, the
company organizes meetings with investors to update and report on business results to investors

= COORDINATION OF ACTIVITIES BETWEEN THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND THE

@ ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS,

AND OTHER MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

-

» In 2024, the Board of Supervisors received cooperation and facilitation from the Board of Directors,
the Board of General Directors, and departments at IJC company. During the performance of the
Board of Supervisors’s oversight responsibilities at IJC, through the company’s reports to the Board
of Supervisors updating quarterly business results, reports from the Internal Audit Department on the
audit contents of 2023, and information requested by the Board of Supervisors from other relevant
departments.

» The Head of the Board of Supervisors is invited to attend meetings of the Board of Directors to
better monitor and grasp the Company’s operational situation in order to propose timely solutions,
ensuring the maintenance and enhancement of risk management activities.

» The Board of Directors, the Board of General Directors, and company departments have actively
cooperated and facilitated the Board of Supervisors in collecting information, documents, resolutions,
as well as reports on business operations fully and promptly, serving the inspection and supervision
work according to the provisions of the company’s Charter.

\
o) 2024

s and shareholders.
The Company’s Board of Directors always works with a high sense of responsibility, regularly holding - /
meetings to issue timely resolutions directing the General Management to implement the Company’s
operations according to the plan set out by the General Meeting of Shareholders. Specifically, in 2024, RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
47 resolutions were issued with the following main contents:
» Regarding real estate and transport infrastructure investment and business activities: Approved the
business plan for the purchase and sale of individual houses in the Hoa Loi Residential Area project, Regarding organizational
approved the investment policy for the adjustment project of the BOT project to upgrade and expand activities
National Highway 13 - Binh Duong Province, and joint venture agreements for the investment project . .
to build the Ho Chi Minh City - TDM - Chon Thanh expressway - the section through Binh Duong 7 Consollfjate anq strictly gdhere to the
Province under the public-private partnership (PPP) method. company’s Operating Regulatlong.
» Regarding capital contribution investment activities: Approved the participation in investment to 7 Resea'rch and establish a detall‘ed gystem
purchase shares at Becamex - Binh Phuoc Technical Infrastructure Development Corporation. of has.S|gnm.eEft anhd dBecer;trallfzat(lson Ofl Regarding risk manage-
» Regarding the increase of charter capital: Approved the updated and supplementary documents to agt ority within  the  Board o enera ment
be submitted to the State Securities Commission of Vietnam to implement the plan to offer additional Directors.
shares to existing shareholders to increase charter capital in 2023.
» Regarding transactions with related parties: Approved the authorization to sign contracts/ Regarding accounting work » Develop a system of internal regulations,
transactions between the Company and related parties in 2024. creating clearand detailed rules and guidelines to
» Other resolutions related to the Company’s production and business operations. » Ensure accuracy and compliance in help employees Comply and work systema.tic.:ally.
Assessment: The resolutions of the Board of Directors are issued in accordance with their authority Financial Statements. » Enhance the application of technology, digitally
anq th'e provisions of the Chgrter' and the Law on Enterpnges. The Company has fully disclosed » Optimize costs and improve business transform processes and documents.
periodic and irregular information in accordance with regulations. efficiency
G

PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR 2025

Based on the performance results of 2024,
the business objectives for 2025, the
objectives of the Board of Supervisors, and
risk assessment, the Board of Supervisors
orients its activities as follows:
Comprehensive supervision and proactive
risk management: The Board of Supervisors
will  closely monitor all business,
management, and operational activities
of the company, ensuring transparency,
efficiency, and compliance with the law. At
the same time, the Board of Supervisors
focuses on risk management, especially
prevention and deterrence, to ensure the
company complies with legal regulations
and the Charter.

Improve control efficiency: To ensure the company’s
operational efficiency, the Board of Supervisors will
strengthen the monitoring of operating costs and capital
investment management. The Board of Supervisors will
also promote supervision, appraisal, and post-inspection
handling to ensure quality and progress.

In-depth financial review and investment control: The
Board of Supervisors will focus on reviewing the Financial
Statements of Becamex IJC and its member companies.
The Board of Supervisors will also examine the efficiency
and safety in the use of investment capital, assess the
feasibility of projects, and monitor acceptance and
settlement activities.

Provision for unscheduled audits: The Board of Supervisors
will reserve time to conduct unscheduled audits, ensuring

flexibility and proactivity in control work.
-
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G—C Risk management policy )

Risk management is an integral part of the business operations, helping to identify, prevent, and
mitigate risks to the Company’s operations. With the characteristics of multi-industry operations,

especially in the field of real estate, fee management and construction, Becamex IJC has established
a systematic risk management system with tight control layers. The Company focuses on key areas
and flexibly adjusts response measures in each stage to ensure stable and sustainable operations

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The current risk management structure of Becamex IJC operates according to a 4-layer structure:
Establishment, Management, Implementation, and Assurance.

MANAGE ENSURE
:\ | /: ..o .
. N . 0L,
@ . ool . °
ESTABLISH IMPLEMENT
RISK CONTROL LAYERS

Consistent with the risk management structure, the risk management system at Becamex IJC is divided into
3 tight control layers.

Prevention Detection Remediation

Departments, Divisions ~ The Board of Supervisors

Departments, Divisions, and managing the system —  provides independent as-

Units directly involved in  Legal — Internal Control  sessments and advice on

LSRR construction activities are are responsible for the effectiveness of the

responsible for identifying,  developing risk man- Company's risk manage-
controlling, and minimizing agement policies and  ment system, thereby offer-

risks. establishing risk man-  ing solutions for improve-

agement limits. ment.

Assessing risks carefully  Minimize the probability  Identify the most optimal
and establishing preventive of risks occurring; response/remediation direc-

1T LIl control methods helps min-  Minimize the level of tion;
imize the possibility of risks ~ impact/damage in- Minimize the level of im-
occurring. curred. pact/damage incurred.

- ) 2024

e—c Risk analysis and management )

RISK GROUP IN BUSINESS OPERATIONS

INTEREST
RATE RISK

AccordingtotheGeneral Statistics Office,
GDP in 2024 is estimated to increase by
7.09% compared to the previous year,
exceeding the Government's full-year
target of 6.5 -7.0%. On 2024-11-12, the
National Assembly passed Resolution
158/2024/QH15 on the Plan for socio-
economic development in 2025. In
which, the National Assembly set a GDP
growth target for 2025 from 6.5 - 7.0%,
striving for about 7.0 - 7.5%.

Becamex IJC's response solutions

The Company regularly monitors,
analyzes, and evaluates economic risks,
thereby developing response scenarios

Risk identification and assessment

In Vietnam, lending interest rates
remained low in 2024 to support
businesses. According to the General
Statistics Office, as of 2024-11-30,
the lending interest rate decreased
by 0.44%/year compared to the end
of 2023. However, the SBV Governor
said that exchange rate pressure
makes it difficult for interest rates to
fall further. If the SBV lowers interest
rates, the exchange rate will increase,

Becamex IJC’s response solutions

To ensure stable business operations
and growth, the Company always
considers using financial leverage
in a reasonable and safe manner,
ensuring a reasonable debt-to-equity

Stable economic growth helps
Vietnam become a bright spot in
attracting investment, thereby creating
many development opportunities for
domestic enterprises. Becamex IJC's
main business area is investment
- development - real estate project
business, so the business results
as well as the Company’s growth
depend heavily on the growth of the
Vietnamese economy

and proposing appropriate solutions
to minimize damage, ensuring stable
business operations and development.

affecting market sentiment, and foreign
investors will withdraw capital when
the exchange rate does not perform as
expected.

Interest rates have a great impact on
the business operations of enterprises
in general. High interest rates, in
addition to hindering the demand
for loans for project investment and
business production, also increase
financial costs, creating leverage risk
for businesses.

ratio. At the same time, the Company
also establishes relationships with
many credit institutions, diversifies
fundraising sources, and minimizes
concentration risk.

@ |
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

Q—( Risk analysis and management )

RISK GROUP IN BUSINESS OPERATIONS

INFLATION
RISK

Regarding inflation, Vietnam’s CPI in
2024 increased by 3.63% compared
to 2023, the highest level in the last 10
years but still within the Government'’s
target of 4.0%. Inflation increases
the cost of raw materials, labor
and operations, thereby negatively

Becamex IJC’s response solutions

To ensure business performance,
the Company is always proactive in
managing raw materials and prices.
Specifically, the Company always

RISK GROUP IN PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES

impacting the Company’s profits.
Simultaneously, rising prices of
goods and services reduce consumer
purchasing power, directly affecting
customer finances, thereby dragging
down demand and affecting the
Company's revenue.

clearly identifies the time when raw
material needs arise, accurately
estimates construction volumes and
controls input prices.

Annual
Report

The construction sector requires a
very large initial investment capital,
especially for large-scale projects that
Becamex |JC participates in. At the
same time, prolonged construction
time causes investment capital to be
“frozen” for a long time, putting great
pressure on the company'’s cash flow.

Becamex |JC’s response solutions

To prevent the risk of loss of solvency,
departments, especially the Company’s
Financial Management department,
always proactively monitor and
evaluate the financial situation at each

2024

The acceptance and handover of
works in stages leads to unstable cash
flow for the company. To compensate
for the large capital needs and long
capital recovery time, Becamex |JC
regularly has to borrow capital from
banks with high loan ratios and terms.
This leads to large interest expenses,
affecting the company’s profits.

time and the liquidity of each project.
From there, propose appropriate
solutions to ensure the Company’s
business operations are stable and
developed.

RISK GROUP IN PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES

Because Becamex IJC is a public
company, the Company’s production
and business operations must ensure
compliance with the Enterprise Law,
Securities Law, Labor Law, and other
relevant legal documents, circulars
and decrees.

The Vietnamese legal system is in
the process of completion, so legal
documents are constantly updated
and amended. In 2024, the National
Assembly issued Law No. 56/2024/
QH15 amending 9 laws, including
the Securities Law; The Ministry of
Finance issued Circular No. 68/2024/

Becamex IJC’s response solutions

The company places particular
emphasisonenhancingthe Qualification
of its legal staff. This is a key solution to
ensure absolute compliance with legal
regulations and effectively prevent legal
risks. To achieve this goal, the company
implements a series of activities such
as in-depth professional training and
development, encourages staff to
participate in seminars and conferences
on law, and creates conditions for them
to study and update the latest legal
documents.

Investing in the training and
development of legal staff brings many
practical benefits. It helps build a team
of staff with solid legal knowledge, well-
meeting the requirements of the job.
At the same time, this also helps the

TT-BTC amending a number of circulars
on the Securities Market in order to
meet the standards for upgrading the
Vietnamese Securities Market.

In addition, with the characteristics of a
real estate business, the Company is also
subject to the control of the Commercial
Law, Construction Law, Investment Law,
Land Law, Housing Law and Real Estate
Business Law. In particular, on 2023-11-
28, at the 6th Session, the XV National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam passed the amended Housing
Law and the amended Real Estate
Business Law, which took effect from
2024-08-01

company to grasp the legal regulations
related to business operations, thereby
making appropriate decisions and
minimizing risks.

Besides ensuring compliance with the
law, the company is also very interested
inprotectingtheenvironment. Toachieve
this goal, the company has applied the
ISO standard to the management of
environmental issues. The ISO standard
is an international set of standards on
environmental management systems,
including the following steps: identifying
environmental risks and opportunities,
developing environmental goals and
plans, implementing environmental
control measures, and monitoring,
evaluating and improving  the
environmental management system.




RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

e—c Risk analysis and management )

RISK GROUP IN PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES

OTHER RISK GROUPS

Annual
Report

To ensure
environmental protection regulations,
all investment projects of Becamex

2024

Becamex IJC's construction projects
are often carried out outdoors, forcing
workers to work in harsh weather
conditions. Intense heat can lead to
heatstroke and dehydration, while
storms and tornadoes pose a risk of
accidents due to slippery conditions
and falling debris.

Becamex IJC's response solutions

Becamex [JC has developed and
promulgated a system of detailed
occupational safety procedures and
regulations, suitable for the specific
characteristics of each field and
department. This ensures that all
activities comply with the highest
safety standards, minimizing the risk
of accidents.

The company regularly inspects,
maintains and repairs construction
equipment to ensure it is always in

The construction process, especially
the use of heavy machinery and
equipment, creates loud noise. This
noise not only affects the health of
workers but also causes discomfort to
people living around the construction
area.

Becamex |JC's response solutions

compliance with

Workers in the construction industry
often have to work at height, use heavy
machinery and equipment, and work
in an environment with many workers
and tight construction schedules. This
increases the risk of occupational
accidents such as falls from heights,
accidents caused by machinery and
equipment, and accidents caused by
falling building materials.

good and safe working condition. At the
same time, Becamex |JC also invests
in modern and advanced construction
equipment that meets the Iatest
occupational safety standards.
Becamex [JC provides full labor
protection equipment for workers
working in high-risk environments. In
addition, the company also signs labor
accident and occupational disease
insurance packages, ensuring the rights
of workers in the event of an accident.

Emissions from machinery and
equipment, along with dust from
construction activities, contribute to
air pollution, affecting air quality and
human health. Air pollution can cause
respiratory diseases and affect the
surrounding environment.

[JC undergo environmental impact
assessments and controlled
management as prescribed.

TEEEE
]

FORCE
MAJEURE
RISKS

In addition to the constant risks
in business operations, Becamex
IJC needs to pay special attention
to force majeure risks such as
natural disasters, fires, epidemics,

Becamex IJC's response solutions

Becamex IJC proactively develops and
implements fire prevention and fighting
and rescue plans at construction sites,
strictly complying with the provisions of
law. The company regularly organizes
training, inspection, and maintenance
of fire fighting equipment, ensures
the purchase of all necessary types of

and occupational accidents. Although
these risks have a low frequency of
occurrence, they can cause extremely
serious consequences, severely affecting
the company’s operations if not carefully
prepared for.

insurance during the year, and regularly
checks equipment and updates weather
and social information to proactively
respond to emergency situations.
These measures demonstrate Becamex
IJC's proactivity and responsibility in
ensuring the safety of employees and
assets, contributing to building a safe
and sustainable working environment.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

ENSURING TRANSPARENCY

AND EQUALITY AMONG
l/‘ SHAREHOLDERS

Becamex IJC always considers information
disclosure as a key factor to ensure transparency
in business operations. Full and timely information
disclosure helps the company demonstrate
transparency in its business, governance, and
financial activities, thereby building trust with
investors, shareholders, and the public. Becamex
IJC always complies with the provisions of law
on information disclosure, ensuring the provision
of truthful, accurate, and timely information as
required, helping the company avoid legal risks
and maintain stable business operations.

GOOD MANAGEMENT OF
INFORMATION QUALITY
/‘ AND INVESTOR AUDIENCES
TO PROVIDE

Becamex IJC is committed to providing complete,
accurate information that accurately reflects the
actual situation of the business. This means that
the company does not conceal or misrepresent
information, but always provides a comprehensive
and honest view of business operations.

Important information must be approved by the
Board of Genenral Directors, ensuring that the
information disclosed has been reviewed and
verified at the highest level. This demonstrates the
company'’s seriousness in controlling information
quality and ensuring transparency.

Strict control of disclosed information is an
important factor that helps Becamex IJC maintain
transparency and build trust with stakeholders.
This contributes to enhancing the company'’s

reputation and attracting investment capital.
1 g = | T
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MAINTAIN AND EXPAND THE
/— INVESTOR NETWORK

Becamex IJC proactively meets and interacts with
investorsthroughvarious channels. Thisdemonstrates
the company’s dynamism in seeking capital sources
and building a broad network of relationships.

Becamex IJC not only focuses on attracting new
investors butalso pays special attentionto maintaining
good relationships with existing investors. At the same
time, the company also actively seeks and develops
relationships with potential investors.

Actively building and maintaining good relationships
with investors helps Becamex I|JC access more
capital sources. This creates favorable conditions for
the company in enhancing its business development
capabilities and implementing strategic goals.

In 2024, Becamex IJC not only actively contacted
investors through various channels but also actively
welcomed investment funds. This demonstrates
the company’s interest in expanding its relationship
network and seeking potential investment partners,
opening up opportunities for cooperation with major
financial institutions, while attracting investment
capital and enhancing the company’s reputation in the
financial market.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW

THE IMPORTANCE OF COMPLYING WITH THE LAW AND THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS FOR
BECAMEX IJC'S OPERATIONS

Becamex IJC has achieved remarkable achievements in over 17 years of development, rising to become one
of the leading enterprises in the Viethamese real estate sector. This success is due to the strict compliance
with legal regulations in all of the company’s operations. Compliance with the law helps ensure transparency,
fairness, and responsibility within the enterprise, as well as in relationships with customers and state
agencies. This is a solid foundation for the company’s sustainable development, helping to maximize profits
and increase value for shareholders, employees, and society.

THE IMPACT OF NEWLY ISSUED LEGAL REGULATIONS IN 2024 AND BECAMEX IJC'S ACTIONS

~

On 2023-11-28, at the 6th Session of the 15th National Assembly, the Law
ISSUED LEGAL on Housing (amended) and the Law on Real Estate Business (amended)
REGULATIONS IN were passed, taking effect from 2024-08-01. These laws aim to update and
2024 adjust current regulations, in order to create a more transparent, stable, and
favorable legal environment for real estate business activities in Vietnam.

NEWLY

\.

In 2024, the National Assembly issued Law No. 56/2024/QH15 amending 9 laws, including the Securities
Law; This amendment aims to improve regulations on the stock market, protect the rights of investors, and
create favorable conditions for businesses, including real estate businesses, when raising capital through
securities channels.

The Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 68/2024/TT-BTC amending a number of circulars on the Stock
Market, including Circular 96/2020/TT-BTC, to apply higher regulatory standards for information disclosure
activities on the stock market, towards the goal of upgrading the stock market and creating more favorable
capital mobilization conditions for Viethamese businesses.

s

With the change of important legal regulations such as the Law on Housing
BAI‘E((::-I:IC\)/I';)S( Ic.)JI; (amended), the Law on Real Estate Business (amended) and regulations
related to the securities market, Becamex IJC will take some actions to
adapt and take advantage of opportunities from these changes.
\_
e
Becamex IJC will review and adjust its real estate project development
UPDATE AND . . . . .
ADJUST strategies to comply with the new regulations on housing ownership, real
BUSINESS estate transactions and related legal procedures. Compliance with these
STRATEGY regulations will help the company maintain transparency and credibility in
\_ business operations.

@ |
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,
AND THE BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS

SALARIES, BONUSES, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW

THE IMPACT OF NEWLY ISSUED LEGAL REGULATIONS IN 2024 AND BECAMEX IJC'S ACTIONS

In 2024, the total salary, bonus, and remuneration of the Board of Directors, the Board of Genenral Directors,
and the Board of Supervisors were implemented in accordance with the approval of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. Details are as follows:

s Becamex IJC promptly established an internal process to meet the
information disclosure regulations simultaneously in English as per Circular

ENSURE
68/2024/TT-BTC, ensuring that all financial statements, information on

COMPLIANCE WITH busi ' S ! and sianif decis ¢ the Board
INFORMATION usiness operations and personnel, and significant decisions of the Boar
DISCLOSURE of Directors and the Executive Management Board are fully translated and POSITION SALARY REMUNERATION

REGULATIONS disclosed in both languages. This enhances transparency and accessibility

1\ of information for shareholders and international investors. 1 Elo Quang Chawrggrl;of the 900,000,000 525,000,000 398,400,000 1,823,400,000
gon
Quang Van Vice Chairman
2 318,700,000 318,700,000
(" Viet Cuong of the BOD
With changes in regulations regarding real estate transaction procedures
REVIEW AND d legal i gt t . 2 B 1JC will § its real 3 Tran Thien The emper of the 185,900,000 185,900,000
UPDATE PROJECT and lega | ocumentation requirements, ecar.n(.ax WI. review its r.ea ran Thien The BOD ,900, ,900,
MANAGEMENT estate project management processes and policies, especially for ongoing Vember of BOD
POLICIES and upcoming projects. The company will ensure that all legal procedures Vo Thi Huyen embero
. . 4 cum Deputy 660,000,000 385,000,000 185,900,000 1,230,900,000
\_ comply with the new regulations. Trang _
General Director
Le Thi Xuan Independent
5 185,900,000 185,900,000
4 Dieu Member of BOD B B
To cope with changes in legal regulations, Becamex IJC will organize Trinh Thanh
TRAINING AND pe with chang gat reg - 9 6 MM oneral Director 840,000,000 490,000,000 1,330,000,000
ENHANCING LEGAL advanced training courses for its staff, especially departments related to Hung
KNOWLEDGE FOR legal, business, and finance, to help them master the new regulations and Tran Ngoc Deputy General
EMPLOYEES apply them effectively in their work. 7 hien Director 660,000,000 385,000,000 1,045,000,000
- Deputy General
8 Vu PhiHung P ,y 214,545,455 110,000,000 324,545,455
Director
. Chief
9 Bui Thi Thuy 660,000,000 385,000,000 1,045,000,000
Accountant
N Hai
10 OWENTRL T ead of the BOS 185,900,000 185,900,000
Hoang
Le Thi Thuy Member of the
11 132,800,000 132,800,000
Duong BOS
Mai Thi Huynh Member of the
12 ey 132,800,000 132,800,000
Mai BOS
Total 3,934,545,455 2,349,000,000 2,291,800,000 8,360,800,000

Repon 2024
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,
AND THE BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS

SHARE TRANSACTIONS OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS

(AS OF 2024-12-31)

NUMBER OF
SHARES BE-
RELATED TO | FORE TRANS- [TER TRANSAC-

POSITION/

NUMBER OF
SHARES AF- | REASON FOR INCREASE,

DECREASE

ACTION TION

Wife of Mr. Increase due to exercising rights
Pham Thi Lan Quang Van Y|et j(O purchase. aFIdltlonaI shares
1 Thao Cuong - Vice 12,760 19,140 issued to existing shareholders
Chairman of under Resolution No. 01/NQ-
BOD DHDCD dated 2023-04-07
) Independent
o LeThiXuan Member of 4,640 4,640
Dieu
BOD

Increase due to exercising rights
Member of to purchase additional shares
3 ChauThiVan the Board of 538 874 issued to existing shareholders

Supervisors

under Resolution No. 01/NQ-
PHDCD dated 2023-04-07

CONTRACTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH INSIDERS (AS OF 2024-12-31)

NSH*

: . | Certificate
Name of |Relationship

. number, date
with the

company

No.| organization/ .
. of issue,
individual

place of

issue.

3700145020
Issue date:
Related 2023-04-04
Investment  organization Place of

and Industrial of Mr. Quang issue:

. Resolution/
Head office | Time of .
. Decision
transaction

. number of
with the
the GMS/
company
BOD passed

address/ Content, quantity, total

Contact ad- transaction value

dress

Principle contract for purchase
and sale of individual houses
signed with Investment and

9th Floor, _ .
WTC Tower Industrial Deve!opment Joint
Buildi Stock Corporation (Attached:

unding. Appendix 02: List of 590
No. 1T Hung

contracts for purchase and

Vuong Street, 03/NQ-HDQT sale of individual houses at Lot

Name of

No.| organization/

individual

Investment
and Industrial

. . | Certificate
Relationship
number, date
with the .
of issue,
company
place of
issue.
3700145020
Issue date:
Related 2023-04-04

organization Place of
of Mr. Quang issue:

Head office
address/
with the
company

Contact ad-
dress

9th Floor,
WTC Tower
Building,

No. 1 Hung
Vuong Street,

transaction

Resolution/
Decision

Content, quantity, total

number of
the GMS/
BOD passed

transaction value

Real estate sale contract No.
240601/HPMB/BCM-1JC
regarding the transfer of 5
floors of the Becamex Tower
03/NQ-HDQT building, which belongs to the
Becamex urban center project

1 Development Van Viet Department Hoa Phu 2024-06-26 dated E2, E7, E10, E11, E14 of Hoa
Joint Stock  Cuong - Vice of Planning Ward, Thu 2024-01-24 Loi Residential Area Project,
Corporation  Chairman of and Dau Mot City, Hga Ph“ Ward, Thu Pau Mot

the Board Investment Binh Duong City, B|nh. Duong !Dr.ovmc.:e)
) i Transactions arising in the
of Binh Province, first 6 months of 2024: VND
Duong Vietnam 1,242,684,000,000 (Quarterly
Financial Statements Q2
2024)
o) 2024

2 Development Van Viet Department Hoa Phu 2024-06-25 dated .

_ _ _ (Becamex City Center) — 230
Joint Stock  Cuong - Vice of Planning Ward, Thu 2024-01-24 Binh Duong Boulevard, Phu
Corporation  Chairman of and Dau Mot City, Hoa Ward, Thu Dau Mot City,

the Board Investment Binh Duong Binh Duong, Vietnam, valued
of Binh Province, at 221,834,897,479 VND (VAT
Duong Vietnam included).
Related
organization 3700861497 21 VSIP I,
of Mr. Street No.
Issued on: .
Viet Nam Quang Van 2008-01-02 1, Vietham Contract No. 1001/2024/
Viet Cuong - Singapore HDPTC/IJC-VNTT on the
Technology & ~ _ Deput Place of Industrial construction for replacement
Telecommunica- _ PO issue: Binh 03/NQ-HDQT [ep
. ) Chairman of Park 2, Hoa of power supply lines for QL13
3 tions Joint Stock uong 2024-01-10 dated S .
Compan the Board andProvince Phu Ward, lighting (section from Ben Lon
(VNTpT) y Ms. Le Thi Department Thu Dau s junction to Thoi Hoa ward)
Xuan Dieu, of glannin Mot City, with a value of 238,965,120
Independent 9 Binh Duong VND (VAT included).
and .
Member of Investment Province,
the Board of Vietnam.
Directors.
Related
Quan. Van Issued on: 1 Vietnarﬁ Contract No. 2002/2024/
Viet Nam . g 2008-01-02 ', HDXD/IJC-VNTT  for the
Viet Cuong - Singapore .
Technology & Deput Place of Industrial construction of: Sunflower
Telecommunica- .~ PoY issue: Binh 03/NQ-HPQT || Housing Area, item: Solar
i ) Chairman of Park 2, Hoa -
4 tions Joint Stock the Board and uong Phu Ward 2024-02-20 dated power lighting system for
Company .~ Province ' 2024-01-24 routes HM6 (Nguyen Binh
Ms. Le Thi Thu Dau .
(VNTT) . Department ) Khiem Street) and N3 Street
Xuan Dieu, . Mot City, .
Independent of Planning Binh Duon with a value of 300,000,000
P and , g VND (VAT included).
Member of Investment Province,
the Board of Vietnam.
Directors.

sl



TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AND THE
BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS

CONTRACTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH INSIDERS (AS OF 2024-12-31)

) . Resolution/
Certificate | Head office | Time of

Name of |Relationship Decision

. number, date| address/ | transaction
with the

with the

Content, quantity, total
number of

No. | organization/

of issue, | Contact ad- transaction value

NSH* .
. , Resolution/
. . | Certificate | Head office | Time of L.
Name of |Relationship . Decision .
. . number, date| address/ | transaction Content, quantity, total
No. organization/| with the . . number of .
e of issue, |Contactad-| withthe transaction value
individual company the GMS/
place of dress company
. BOD passed
issue.
Related 21VSIP Il
organization 0f3700861497 Street No Contract No. 1803/2024/
Mr. Quang Van Issued on: 1 Vietnarﬁ HDXD/IJC-VNTT  for  the
Viet Nam Viet Cuong  2008-01-02 -:Sin apore construction of:  National
Technology &  — Deputy Place of IndugtrFi)al Highway 13, item: Lighting
Telecommunica- Chairman of  issue: Binh Park 2. Hoa 03/NQ-HDQT system for National Highway
tions Joint Stock the Board and Duong ' 2024-03-18 dated 13 (section from Km49+244
. . Phu Ward, .
Company Ms. Le Thi Province 2024-01-24 to  Km65+355), location:
) Thu Dau . . .
(VNTT) Xuan Dieu,  Department Mot Cit National Highway 13, Binh
Independent of Planning Binh Du):')n Duong province, with a value
Member of  and . g of 8,000,002,800 VND (VAT
Province, .
the Board of Investment included).
. Vietnam.
Directors.
Related
21 VSIP I,
organization 0f3700861497
Street No.
Mr. Quang Van Issued on: 1 Vietnam
Viet N Viet C 2008-01-02
T:i:hnzrc: 8 _IeDe t:;)ng Place of - Singapore Contract No. 3105/2024/
e Uy " Industrial HBTC/IJC-VNTT for handling
Telecommunica- Chairman of issue: Binh 03/NQ-HDQT . ,
. . Park 2, Hoa the failure of substation llI-
tions Joint Stock the Board and Duong 2024-05-31 dated .
Compan Ms. Le Thi Province Phu Ward, 630 kva - IJC urban area with
bany - Thu Dau 2024-01-24 5 value of 112,631,040 VND
(VNTT) Xuan Dieu,  Department ) .
) Mot City, (VAT included).
Independent of Planning _.
Binh Duong
Member of  and )
Province,
the Board of Investment
. Vietnam.
Directors.
Related
21 VSIP I
ization 0f3700861497 '
::;Si;ﬁ;;oc; ssued on: Street No. Contract No.  256/2024/
' 1, Viet HDTC/IJC-VNTT f lyi
Viet Nam VietCuong  2008-01-02 . cnam / or suppying
- Singapore materials and sanitation,
Technology & = Deputy Place of Industrial maintenance, and testin
Telecommunica- Chairman of issue: Binh Park 2. Hoa 03/NQ-HDQT of 08 Natio'nal Highwa 13
tions Joint Stock the Board and Duong ' 2024-06-25 dated . . gnway .
Compan Ms. Le Thi Province Phu Ward, lighting substations — section
pany T Thu Dau 2024-01-24 through Thuan An area, Binh
(VNTT) Xuan Dieu,  Department ) . .
Independent  of Plannin Mot City, Duong province, with a value
P 9 Binh Duong of 136,247,400 VND (VAT
Member of  and . .
Province, included).
the Board of Investment
. Vietnam.
Directors.
Annual
- Report 2024

individual

company

place of
issue.

dress

the GMS/

compan
S BOD passed

Appendix No. 01 dated 2024-
03-14 attached to contract
No. 2212/2023/HD/IJC-VNTT

Related 3700861497 2 VSIP Il signed on 2023-12-22 regarding
organizationof . .. StreetNo. the adjustment and addition of
) Mr. Quang Van '~ 1,Vietnam workload and performance value
Viet Nam 2008-01-02 pert
Viet Cuong - - Singapore of the 2023 periodic maintenance
Technology & . Place of . d testi tract for th
. Deputy Chairman . Industrial and testing contract Tor tnhe
Telecommunica- of the Board issue: Binh Park 2. Hoa 03/NQ-HDQT substations supp|y|ng power to
tions Joint Stock dMs. L Duong Ph W' q 2024-03-14 dated the 1JC urban area, IJC Hoa Loi
Company an. S e. Province u Ward, 2024-01-24 residential area with a value of
Thi Xuan Dieu, Thu Dau 57,704,400 VND (VAT included)
(VNTT) Department . I e
Independent of Plannin Mot City, Total contract value after adjusting
Member of g Binh Duong for incurred  Appendix 01:
Directors. Vi _ ransactions incurread in the first
rectors etnam months of 2024: 269,643,000 VND
(According to Q2 2024 financial
statements)
Relatgd | 3700861497 21 VSIP I,
organization of Street No.
Mr. Quang Van Issued on: 1, Vietham
Viet Nam i, : 2008-01-02 .
Viet Cuong - - Singapore
Technology & Deputy Chairm nPIace of Industrial
Telecommunica- eply Lhairma issue: Binh ustria 03/NQ-HBQT Purqhase of goods and
9 tions Joint Stock of the Board Duon Park 2, Hoa January- dated ~ Services: 1,064,707,046 VND
and Ms. Le .g Phu Ward, June/2024 (According to Q1, Q2 2024
Company Thi Xuan Dieu Province Thu Dau 2024-01-24 financial statements)
(VNTT) Department .
Independent of Plannin Mot City,
Member of and g Binh Duong
the Board of Province,
. Investment .
Directors. Vietnam.
Rel 21 VSIP I
eatgd . 3700861497 SIPl
organization of Street No.
Mr. Quang Van Issued on: 1, Vietham
VietNam 0 S T 20080102
Techno|ogy & Dlee utu%nhgairman Place of |nc;22tar|?ao|re Contract No. 099/2024/
Telecommunica of fheyBoard Issue: Binh Park 2, Hoa OS/NQ-TBAT HDIVIIB/IJC-fVI\”':l— ffi i Thfi
. . ) no. supply o raffic  signa
10 téons Joint Stock and Ms. Le Euor?g Phu Ward, 2024-09-09 dated lights for QL13 with a value
( \;),\fl\erTZ;ny Thi Xuan Diev, DLOV;?t(;sent Thu Dau 2024-01-24 gf 158,268,000 VND (VAT
Independent of Iglannin Mot City, included).
Member of and g Binh Duong
the Board of Province,
. Investment .
Directors. Vietnam.

|
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS OF THE BOARD

OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AND THE
BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS

CONTRACTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH INSIDERS (AS OF 2024-12-31)

NSH* .
. , Resolution/
. . | Certificate | Head office | Time of L.
Name of |Relationship . Decision .
. . number, date| address/ | transaction Content, quantity, total
No. organization/| with the . . number of .
e of issue, |Contactad-| withthe transaction value
individual company the GMS/
place of dress company oD d
asse
issue. g
Related
organization of3700861497 21 VSIP I,
Street No.
Mr. Quang Van Issued on: 1 Vietnam
Viet Nam Viet Cuong  2008-01-02 - Singapore Contract No. 1909/2024/
Technology &  — Deputy Place of Industrial HDKT/IJC-VNTT on  the
Telecommunica- Chairman of  issue: Binh Park 2. Hoa 03/NQ-HBQT gypply and installation of
11 tions Joint Stock the Board and Duong Phu W'ard 2024-09-19 dated LED screen equipment at the
Company Ms. Le Thi Province Thu Dau ' 2024-01-24 company office with a value
(VNTT) Xuan Dieu,  Department . ,Of 283,922,280 VND (VAT
) Mot City, included).
Independent of Planning Binh Duon
Member of  and . g
Province,
the Board of Investment
. Vietnam.
Directors.
Related Contract No. 31/2024/HDXD/
- 21 VSIP 1], [JC-VNTT  regarding cleaning
organization 0f3700861497 Street No. maintenance,  testing,  and
Mr. Quang Van Issued on: 1 Vietnam replacement  of  transformer
Viet Nam VietCuong ~ 2008-01-02 'Sin apore equipment for lighting stations and
Technology & - Deputy Place of Indugtrri)al water pumping stations on QL13.
Telecommunica- Chairman of  issue: Binh bark 2. Hoa 03/NQ-HDQT - App;endlx T: COSBS f?r (tzlleamng%
12 tions Joint Stock the Board and Duong ' 2024-10-31 dated maintenance, ang  1es .|ng 0
) . Phu Ward, transformer  substations: VND
Company Ms.LeThi  Province . ©no, 2024-01-24 589,202,640 (VAT included). Form:
(VNTT) Xuan Dieu,  Department Mot Cit Package price.
Independent of Planning Binh D Ve - Appendix 2: costs for providing
Member of  and Pm . uong ma’FeriaIs apd replacing equipmgnt
the Boardof Investment . O' N¢& during maintenance and testing
Directors Vietnam. (if any): VND 65,105,640 (VAT
‘ included). Form: Fixed unit price.
Related
21 VSIP I,
organization 0of3700861497
Street No.
Mr. Quang Van Issued on: 1 Vietnam
VlethNa:n Viet Cuong 2?08-01f-02 - Singapore Contract No. 2911/2024/
Technology& ~ ~Deputy  Placeof -\ ol HDMB/IJC-VNTT  regarding
Tel ica- Chairman of issue: Binh  oooia 03/NQ-HPQT .
elecommunica alrman o ISSue: bin Park 2 Hoa the Supp|y of LED ||ghts
13 tions Joint Stock the Board and Duong Phu W'ard 2024-11-29 dated for installation at the QL13
Company Ms.LeThi  Province Thu Dau ' 2024-01-24 intersection with Tan Long-
(NTT) Xuan Dieu, Department . Lai Uyen road, valued at VND
. Mot City, 34,124,400.
Independent of Planning Binh Duon
Member of  and ) g
Province,
the Board of Investment
. Vietnam.
Directors.

) . Resolution/
. . | Certificate | Head office | Time of L.
Name of |Relationship . Decision .
. . number, date| address/ | transaction Content, quantity, total
No. organization/| with the . . number of .
. of issue, | Contactad- | with the transaction value
individual company the GMS/
place of dress company
. BOD passed
issue.
3702291330
Becamex ~ hciated - lssued on: Contract No. 887/2024/HP-
International organization 2014-08-06  Tu Xuong KSK-BHI  regardin health
General of Mr. Do Place of Issue:Area, Lai 03/NQ-HDQT check-uns forgZO1 egm lovees
. Quang Ngon Department of Thieu, Thuan 2024-05-23 dated . ps Tor ploy
Hospital _ Chairman  Planning and An. Binh with an estimated cost of
Joint Stock 9 ' 2024-01-24 yND 1,695,000/person (VAT
Compan of the Board Investment of Duong included)
pany of Directors Binh Duong '
Province
New urban
Investment  area within
Subsidiary of Certificate:  the Industrial -
Investme:t 46121000047 Service - Urban Service provision:
i 03/NQ-HDBQT :
Eastern' and Industrial Issued by , cgmplex of January- VND 2,670,176,415 (According
15 International the People’s  Binh Duong dated .
. . Development . . June/2024 Q1, Q2 2024 financial
University . Committee of Province, Hoa 2024-01-24
Joint Stock . statements)
Corporation Binh Duong  Phu Ward, Thu
P Province on: Dau Mot City,
2009-07-29  Binh Duong
Province
New urban
Investment area within
. certificate:  the Industrial -
ﬁmf\f::c;ewgrft 3702013478 Service - Urban Service provision:
i 03/NQ-HDQT :
Becamex 1 d Industrial S5ued by complexof - VND 668,496,287 (According
16 Tokyu the People’s Binh Duong dated .
Development . . June/2024 Q1, Q2 2024 financial
Co., Ltd . Committee ofProvince, Hoa 2024-01-24
Joint Stock . statements)
Corporation Binh Duong Phu Ward, Thu
P Province on: Dau Mot City,
2021-05-06 Binh Duong
Province
19th Floor,
Investment Becamex
. ) certificate:  Tower
\S/ilstgan;r;e ﬁwﬁcgztigrft 3702880833 Building, 230, Service provision:
gap . issued by Binh Duong 03/NQ-HBQT P ’ .
Smart Energy and Industrial , January- VND 11,931,150 (According
. the People’s Avenue, Phu dated )
Solutions Development Committee ofHoa Ward June/2024 Q1, Q2 2024 financial
Joint Stock  Joint Stock  _. ' 2024-01-24 statements)
Compan Corporation Binh Duong - Thu Dau
pany P Province on: Mot City,
2024-04-11 Binh Duong
Province

S (o)

Repon 2024
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS OF THE BOARD

OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AND THE

BOARD OF GENENRAL

DIRECTORS

CONTRACTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH INSIDERS (AS OF 2024-12-31)

Name of
No.| organization/
individual

. . | Certificate | Head office | Time of
Relationship

) number, date
with the

company

transaction
with the
company

address/
of issue, | Contact ad-

dress

place of

issue.
3701906616 No. 230

Resolution/
Decision .
Content, quantity, total
number of
the GMS/

BOD passed

transaction value

NSH* .
) : Resolution/
. . | Certificate | Head office | Time of L.
Name of |Relationship . Decision .
. ) number, date| address/ | transaction Content, quantity, total
No. organization/| with the . . number of .
. of issue, | Contactad-| withthe transaction value
individual company the GMS/
place of dress company
. BOD passed
issue.
Lot B14,
Plots BO7-
Investment B08-B0Y,
ifi :
Affiliate of certificate:  Road N,
4101505893 Hiep Vinh 1B . .
Becamex Investment | 03 _ Service provision:

- __issuedby  Resettlement /NQ-HbQT .
Binh Dinh and Industnalthe People's - Residential January- dated VND 33,505,250 (According
Joint Stock  Development CommitFt)ee Area June/2024 0024.01.94 Q1, Q2 2024 financial
Company \ézirntosr::icolz of Binh Dinh Cam Vinh statements)

P Province on: Commune,
2024-03-22 Van Canh
District, Binh
Dinh Province
Investment ~ 20th Floor,
Becamex-  Associated certificate: ?ecamex
Vsip Power  company of 3703112908 Bz\illvjirng 230
Investment  Investment issuedby  Binh Duc’mg ' 03/NQ-HPQT Service provision:
19 and and Industrial Binh Duon Avenue, Phu January- dated VND 2785650  (According
g ' June/2024 to Q1, Q2 2024 financial
Development Development Provincial Hoa Ward, 2024-01-24 gtatements)
. . , Thu Dau
Joint Stock  Joint Stock People's .
Mot City,
Company Corporation Committee on:ginh Duong
2023-03-09  Province
3700413826

Binh Duon Subsidiary of Date of issue: No. 26-27,

9 Investment 2022-09-21 Lot I, Dong 03/NQ-HPpQT Construction of works: VND

Business and
20 Development

and IndustrialPlace of issue: Khoi Street, January-

dated 7,465,135,424

Joint Stock Dev.elopment Binh Duong Hoa Phu June/2024 2024-01-24 (According to Q1, Q2 2024
Company Joint Stqck Depart.ment of Ward, TDM, financial statements)
Corporation Planning and Binh Duong
Investment
3701906616 No. 230
Subsidiary  Date of issue: Binh Duong
Becamex of Becamex 2011-08-09  Avenue, Phu 03/NQ-HPQT SET;;Z ';'é’r- t:eP08/HPPV'
Hospitality  Infrastructure Place of issue:Hoa Ward, ] prowspn
21 Limited Development Binh Duong  Thu Dau 2024-03-28 dated  of catering conferences with
2024-01-24 a value of VND 87,180,000
Company Joint Stock  Department of Mot City, (including VAT).
Company Planning and Binh Duong
Investment  Province.

Subsidiary  Date of issue: Binh Duong
Becamex of Becamex 2011-08-09  Avenue, Phu 03/NQ-HBQT Contract No. NP1 S/HDDV'
5 Hospitality  Infrastructure Place of issue:Hoa Ward, 2024-04-17 dated BT/Z.OZA' for. the pr;)r\]nsmnl of
o ) -04- ate catering services with a value
Limited De.velopment Binh Duong Thu D?u 2024-01-24 of VND 33,436,632 (including
Company Joint Stock  Department of Mot City, VAT).
Company Planning and Binh Duong
Investment  Province.
3701906616 No. 230
Subsidiary  Date of issue: Binh Duong ::e(;r:rr:iithOt'hs:/so':]?::ggiﬁ
Becar.ne).( of Becamex 2011-08-99 Avenue, Phu 03/NQ-HDQT of the “Sunflower Il Villa
Hospitality Infrastructure Place of issue:Hoa Ward, Launching Ceremony”
3 ) 2024-08-01 dated .
Limited Development Binh Duong  Thu Dau 9024-01-24 event with a value of VND
Company Joint Stock  Department of Mot City, 62,591,130 (wate.r costs and
e Planni d BinhD other expenses will be settled
ompany anning and. Binh buong according to actual costs)
Investment  Province.
Contract No.  0102/2024/
3702280392 Becamex HPDV/IJC-BTI for cleaning
Subsidiary Issued on: Tower,. No. serviges at the Bau Bang social
Becamex of Becamex 2014-06-12 230, Binh housing project and the Bau
Trade InfrastructurePlace of Duong 03/NQ-HDPQT Bang worker TM-DV housing
Compan Develobment issue: Binh  Avenue, Phu 2024-02-01 dated with a value of VND 19,312,436/
; 'tpd yBTI o tSf[) . Duong Hoa Ward, 2024-01-24 month (excluding VAT)
imrted - oint stoc Department of Thu Dau Mot Transactions arising in the
Investment  Duong 76,878,350 (According to Q1,
Q2 2024 financial statements)
3702280392 Becamex Contract No. 0504/2024/
o Issued on:  Tower, No. HPDV/IJC-BTI for green area
; S:|;3|d|ary 2014-06-12 230, Binh care gnd maintenance at the
ecamex of Becamex Place of Duong 03/NQ-HPQT isolation park of plots N4-N6
Trade Infrastructure, ) with a value of 20,000,000
issue: Binh  Avenue, Phu  2024-04-05 dated .
Company Development b Hoa Ward VND/month (excluding tax)
Limited - BTl Joint Stock uong 0a Yvard, 2024-01-24 Transactions arisingin the first
Company  DePartmentofThu Dau Mot 6 months of 2024: 40,000,000

Planning and City, Binh
Investment  Duong

VND (According to Q1, Q2
2024 financial statements)

) 2024
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS OF THE BOARD

OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AND THE
BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS

CONTRACTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH INSIDERS (AS OF 2024-12-31)

NSH*
_ . | Certificate | Head office | Time of .
Name of |Relationship . Decision
number, date| address/ | transaction
number of
the GMS/

BOD passed

Resolution/

.. . Content, quantity, total
No. organization/| with the . . )
of issue, | Contactad- | withthe transaction value

individual company

place of dress

company
issue.

Contract No. 0202/2024/HDDV/1JC-
BTI dated 2024-02-01, Appendix No.
02/PLHD-0202/2024/HDBDV/IJC-BTI
dated 2024-04-01 and Appendix
No.  04/PLHD-0202/2024/HDDV/
2024-02-01 IJC-BTI regarding the provision of
and 03/NQ-HDQT ¢leaning services at the Sunflower
2024-04-01 dated villa area, Prince Town commercial
and 2024-01-24 Street, IJC urban area and 1JC-Hoa
2024-09-20 Loi residential area with a value of
VND 48,281,090/month (VAT not
included) Transactions arising in the
first 6 months of 2024: 125,114,871
VND (According to Q1, Q2 2024
financial statements)

Contract No. 194/2024/HDDV/
IJC-BTI for taking care of green
trees at the isolation green park of
03/NQ-HDQT plots N5 and N7-N8 with a value
2024-04-19 dated of 14,321,400 VND/month (VAT
2024-01-24 not included)Transactions arising
in the first 6 months of 2024:
14,321,400 VND (According to Q1,

Q2 2024 financial statements)

3702280392 Becamex
Subsidiary  Issued on: Tower, No.
Becamex of Becamex 2014-06-12 230, Binh
Trade Infrastructure Place of issue: Duong
Company Development Binh Duong  Avenue, Phu
Limited - BTl Joint Stock Department of Hoa Ward, Thu
Company Planning and Dau Mot City,
Investment  Binh Duong

3702280392 Becamex
Subsidiary  Issued on: Tower, No.
Becamex of Becamex 2014-06-12 230, Binh
27 Trade Infrastructure Place of issue: Duong
Company Development Binh Duong  Avenue, Phu
Limited - BTl Joint Stock Department of Hoa Ward, Thu
Company Planning and Dau Mot City,
Investment  Binh Duong

3702280392 Becamex
Subsidiary  Issuedon:  Tower, No. Contract  No.  049/2024/

Becamex  of Becamex 2014-06-12 230, Binh 03/NOHBOT | PDV/INC-BTI on taking care
) ) /NQ-HDBQT gpq maintaining the green
Trade Infrastructure Place of issue: Duong .
) 2024-09-04 dated areas of Sunflower Villa Area
Company Development Binh Duong  Avenue, Phu

o . 2024-01-24 With a value of 53,579,400
Limited - BTl Joint Stock Department of Hoa Ward, Thu VND/month (VAT not
Company Planning and Dau Mot City, included)
Investment  Binh Duong

3702280392 Becamex Contract No. 24/2024/HDDV/
Subsidiary  Issuedon:  Tower, No. IJC-BTI on Christmas and

Becamex of Becamex 2014-06-12 230, Binh 03/NQ-HPQT New Year 2025, Lunar New
Trade Infrastructure P!ace of issue: Duong 2024-12-20 dated Year of .the Year of the Snake
Company Development Binh Duong  Avenue, Phu decoration for  Sunflower
Limited - BTl Joint Stock Department of Hoa Ward, Thu 2024-01-24 yjjl|a Area project with a value
Company  Planningand Dau Mot City, of 258984,000 VND (VAT

Investment  Binh Duong included)

) 2024

NSH*
. . | Certificate
Name of |Relationship
.. ) number, date
No. organization/| with the )
s of issue,
individual company
place of
issue.
WTC Binh
Duong One
30 Member
Limited
Company

. Resolution/
Head office | Time of o
X Decision
address/ | transaction

_ number of
Contact ad- | with the

the GMS/
dress company
BOD passed

Content, quantity, total
transaction value

Contract No.  120724-K/
HDBDV-WTC-IJC on providing
all-inclusive media and
advertising  services  for
the event “Sunflower Il Vila
Project Launch” with a value
of 599,175166 VND (VAT
included)

2024-07-31

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND COMPANIES IN WHICH RELATED PERSONS OF
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AND
THE CEO ARE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (AS OF 2024-12-31).

. . Resolution/
. . | NSH* Certifi- |[Head office| Time of L.
Name of |Relationship , Decision .
.. . cate number, | address/ |transaction Content, quantity, total trans-
No. organization/| with the . . number of .
o date of issue, | Contact with the action value
individual company . the GMS/BOD
place of issue.| address | company
passed
Related 3701649461 Lot No. 3, Le
Issued on: Hoan Street, ContractNo.283/2024/HDXD/
Tan Hao Phat person .
. 2009-11-27 Zone 2, Hoa IJC-THP for construction of an
Serviceand of Mr. Do , 03/NQ-HDQT , ,
) Place of issue: Phu Ward, automatic watering system for
1 Construction Quang Ngon _. 2024-03-28 dated
Limited Chairman Binh Duong  Thu Dau green trees around plots N7-
Compan of the Board Department of Mot City, 2024-01-24 N8 with a value of 380,000,000
pany . Planning and Binh Duong VND (VAT included)
of Directors )
Investment Province
Contract No.084/HDTC/2024/
IJC-THP for levelin rass,
3701649461 Lot No. 3, Le , 94
Related burying grass on the spot at
Issued on: Hoan Street, .
Tan Hao Phat person plot P6 of the Prince Town
) 2009-11-27 Zone 2, Hoa . : .
Serviceand  of Mr. Do Place of issue: Phu Ward 03/NQ-HPQT housing project with a value
2 Construction Quang Ngon _. " 2024-04-08 dated of 28,000,000 VND (VAT
o . Binh Duong  Thu Dau .
Limited - Chairman . 2024-01-24 included)
Department of Mot City, . S
Company of the Board Planning and  Binh Duon Transactions arising in the first
of Directors g ) g 6 months of 2024: 25,925,926
Investment Province

VND (According to Q1, Q2
2024 financial statements)

m |
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AND THE
BOARD OF GENENRAL DIRECTORS

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND COMPANIES IN WHICH RELATED PERSONS OF
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AND
THE CEO ARE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (AS OF 2024-12-31).

. Resolution/
. . | NSH* Certifi-
Relationship
. cate number,
with the

company

Head office| Time of L.
Name of Decision

address/ |transaction
with the

Content, quantity, total trans-
number of

the GMS/BOD

No. | organization/

o date of issue, | Contact action value
individual

address

place of issue.

company

passed

105/2024/
HDBTC/IJC-THP for providing

Contract No.

3701649461 Lot No. 3, Le . . .

Related construction machine shift for

Issued on: Hoan Street, . .
Tan Hao Phat person bulldozing grass, collecting

. 2009-11-27 Zone 2, Hoa .
Serviceand of Mr. Do _ 03/NQ-HDQT grass and burying grass on
. Place of issue: Phu Ward,

3 Construction Quang Ngon _. 2024-05-10 dated the spot of plots A, B, C, D, E,

o ) Binh Duong  Thu Dau : )
Limited - Chairman . 2024-01-24 F belonging to IJC - Vinh Tan

Department of Mot City, . . -
Company of the Board Planning and  Binh Duon housing area with a unit price
of Directors J —uong of 3,400,000 VND/shift
Investment Province .
Acceptance volume according
to reality
Related 3701649461 Lot No. 3, Le Contract appendix No. 02-
Issued on: Hoan Street, 283/2024/HBXD/IJC-THP
Tan Hao Phat person 2009-11-27 Zone 2, Hoa for construction of automatic
Service and of Mr. Do : ’ 03/NQ-HBQT :
. Place of issue: Phu Ward, watering system for green
4 Construction Quang Ngon _. 2024-06-25 dated
Limited - Chairman Binh Duong  Thu Dau trees around plots N7-N8
Comban of the Board Department of Mot City, 2024-01-24 (additional item) with a value
pany . Planning and Binh Duong of 58,352,524 VND (VAT
of Directors . .
Investment Province included)
Contract No. 187/2024/
Related 3701649461 LotNo. 3, Le HDXD/IJC-THP regarding the
Tan Hao Phat person Issued on: Hoan Street, construction of a security
Serviceand of Mr. Do l23(|)09-11f—.27 iﬁnewz' I;jloa 03/NQ-HPQT guard house and fence for
5 Construction Quang Ngon 'ace orissue: Fhu Wart - »024-07-18 dated the COPOUND area of the
Limited - Chairman Binh Duong  Thu Dau i i
. e Department of Mot City, 2024-01-24 Prince Town Il Housing Area
ompany Of D'e far Planning and  Binh Duong Expansion project, with a
OTDIreCtors | vestment  Province value of VND 1,056,288,000
(VAT included).
felatag 3701649461 LotNo.3, Le Contract  No.. 078/2024/
Tan Hao Phat person Issued on: Hoan Street, HDXD/IJC-THP regarding
2009-11-27  Zone 2, H the construction of a fire
Serviceand  of Mr. Do _ one 2 roa 03/NQ-HDQT . .
. Place of issue: Phu Ward, truck avoidance point for
6 Construction Quang Ngon _. 2024-08-07 dated .

. ; Binh Duong  Thu Dau the Sunflower Villa Area
Limited - Chairman Department of Mot Cit 2024-01-24 '
Company of the Board o p . & BihD Y, Independent Housing Area

of Directors | anning an Pm ) uong project, with a value of VND
nvestment  Province 82,470,000 (VAT included).
Annual
- Report 2024

. . Resolution/
. . | NSH* Certifi- |Head office| Time of L.
Name of |Relationship . Decision .
. . cate number, | address/ |transaction Content, quantity, total trans-
No. organization/| with the . . number of .
e date of issue, | Contact with the action value
individual company . the GMS/BOD
place of issue.| address | company
passed
Related 3701649461  LotNo. 3, Le Contract No.  129/2024/
Tan Hao Phat person Issued on: Hoan Street, HDXD/IJC-THP regarding
Serviceand of Mr. Do i?09'1 1f-'27 . f’ﬁneV\% :Oa 03/NQ-HDQT the construction of a fence
7 Construction Quang Ngon BisﬁeDZol:;ue. Thtjj Daaur " 2024-09-12 dated for the COMPOUND area
Limited - Chairman Department of Mot City 2024-01-24 of the Sunflower Il Housing
Company of the Board : . ' A ith | f VND
f Direct Planning and  Binh Duong réa, with a value o
ot birectors Investment Province 511,481,000 (VAT included).
Contract No. 11/HDBTC/2024/
[JC-THP regarding the
construction of site clearance,
3701649461 Lot No. 3 Le collecting grass and garbage
Related lssued on: Hoan Str('aet for disposal, and transporting
Tan Hao Phat person 2009-11-27 Zone 2 Hoa excess soil to the gathering
Serviceand of Mr. Do ) ' 03/NQ-HDBQT
. Place of issue: Phu Ward, yard of the Complex at
8 Construction Quang Ngon _. 2024-11-04 dated
. ; Binh Duong  Thu Dau plots HL-F1, HL-F2, and the
Limited - Chairman . 2024-01-24
Company  of the Board Department of Mot City, corner plots of HL-F8, HL-
of Directors Planning and  Binh Duong F9 of undeveloped land. The
Investment Province .
contract is based on a fixed
unit price, with the accepted
volume based on the actual
volume at the project.
Contract No. 12/2024/
3701649461 Lot No. 3. Le HDDV/IJC-THP regarding
Related lssued on: Hoan Stréet the provision of green tree
Tan Hao Phat person 2009-11-27 Zone 2. Hoa care and sidewalk cleaning
Serviceand of Mr. Do . ' 03/NQ-HDBQT ) .
. Place of issue: Phu Ward, services on QL13 from Binh
9 Construction Quang Ngon _. 2024-12-05 dated
o ; Binh Duong  Thu Dau Duong Welcome Gate to
Limited - Chairman . 2024-01-24
Company  of the Board Department of Mot City, Tham Rot Bridge (Km1+248
. Planning and Binh Duong :
of Directors to Km65+355), with a value of
Investment Province

VND 164,155,706 (provisional
price, VAT excluded).

w |
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ASSESSMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE

Becamex IJC, as a major enterprise in the real estate sector, has strictly implement-
ed corporate governance regulations, especially in the context of increasingly strin-
gent legal regulations. Below are some assessment points regarding compliance
with corporate governance regulations at Becamex IJC:

Compliance with legal
regulations

Becamex IJC has demonstrated a strong
commitment to complying with the provisions
of the law, especially regulations on
corporate governance, financial transparency,
information disclosure, and protection of
shareholders’ rights. The company always
updates and fully implements information
disclosure requirements as prescribed by
law, including periodic financial reports,
information about real estate projects,
and important decisions of the Board of
Directors. Information disclosure procedures
are carried out strictly, and the company also
ensures bilingual information disclosure as
required by Circular 68/2024/TT-BTC.

Role and function of
the Board of Directors

Becamex IJC's BOD demonstrates effective
oversight and control, ensuring that the
company always operates in compliance
with the law and best governance standards.
The members of the BOD are fully aware of
their responsibilities and operate with a high
sense of responsibility. The BOD not only
supervises the company’s operations but
also has important strategies and decisions
to promote the sustainable development of
Becamex IJC.

) nei2024

Ensuring transparency and fi-
nancial transparency

One of the important factors in corporate governance is
financial transparency, and Becamex IJC has done well
in disclosing financial statements on time, clearly, and
understandably. The company adheres to international
accounting and auditing principles, thereby enhancing
the trust of shareholders and investors.

Becamex |IJC's financial disclosure system has
significantly improved in recent years, especially as the
company faces increasing demands for transparent
and detailed financial reporting. The company has also
proactively disclosed financial plans, revenue forecasts,
and expenses to investors, creating trust and stability
for the market.

Internal control and
risk management

Becamex IJC has established a clear internal
control and risk management system,
including financial monitoring procedures
and investment activities, especially real
estate projects. This system helps minimize
financial and legal risks, ensuring that
the company’s operations are always in
accordance with legal regulations and
shareholder protection requirements.

Compliance with regulations on person-
nel and shareholder management
Becamex IJC has also well implemented the regulations
on shareholder rights, especially in decisions regarding
profit distribution, voting rights, and shareholder
meetings. Shareholder rights are clearly protected,
and the company regularly organizes transparent
shareholder meetings, creating opportunities for
shareholders to contribute opinions and participate in

important decisions of the company.
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SUSTAINABL

DEVELOPMENT MESSAGE

Becamex IJC recognizes that the success of a business is not only reflected in revenue and profit but
also in the sustainable and long-term values that the business creates for the community and society.
Especially in the field of real estate and construction, Becamex IJC’s operations can have both positive
and negative impacts on the environment, society, and community life.

With the mission of bringing positive values to society, Becamex |JC is committed to implementing
sustainable development, bringing benefits to all stakeholders, including:

Environment: Becamex IJC is committed to protecting the environment and minimizing negative impacts
during operation. The company has implemented solutions to use modern, environmentally friendly
technology in the construction and operation of projects. The company also focuses on tree planting
campaigns, protecting natural ecosystems and effectively treating waste.

Society: Becamex |JC is committed to contributing to the development of the community by creating
more job opportunities and increasing income for local people. The company also actively participates in
charitable activities, supporting vocational training and improving skills for the community.
Shareholders and investors: Becamex |JC is committed to bringing benefits to shareholders and investors
by increasing business value, improving business performance and ensuring transparency and fairness
in decisions and activities.

To fulfill its commitment to sustainable development, Becamex IJC has developed and implemented a
sustainable development management system according to ISO international standards. This system
includes detailed policies, processes, procedures and guidelines to ensure the enterprise complies with
sustainable standards in all activities.

Under the leadership of the Board of Directors, Becamex IJC regularly reviews and evaluates sustainable
development processes and strategies through active exchange and dialogue with stakeholders. This
process helps ensure that implementation solutions are effective and aligned with the company’s
sustainable development strategy. Becamex IJC is committed to continuously striving for sustainable
development, bringing benefits to stakeholders and contributing to building a sustainable and prosperous
community.
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DIRECTORS

»
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The BOD issues strategies and
orientations on issues related
to the company’s sustainable
development;

Approves  objectives  and
action plans to implement
the sustainable development
strategy.

BOARD OF
GENERAL
DIRECTORS

»

Develops and submits to the BOD\

the objectives and action plans on
sustainable development;

Orients the implementation and
shares the sustainable development
strategy, goals, and plans throughout
the Company;

Ensures the sustainable development
plan achieves the set goals;

Urges and supervises the
implementation of the plan by related

departments and divisions. /
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC VISION

Becamex IJC is aleading enterprise in Vietnam in the fields of real estate, construction, and technical infrastructure. With
the vision of becoming a sustainable development enterprise, Becamex IJC constantly strives to achieve sustainable
development goals in all its activities.

Becamex IJC believes that sustainable development is the key factor that helps businesses maintain long-term and
stable development. With a strong commitment, Becamex IJC will continue to implement sustainable development
goals, contributing to building a sustainable and prosperous community.

In 2024, Becamex IJC steadfastly pursues its sustainable development goals, including the transformation of the digital
model and the implementation of a new business strategy. The company will continuously strive to ensure sustainable
economic growth, contributing to the common prosperity of the whole society.

. KEY OBJECTIVES

With the goal of becoming one of the leading real estate developers in Binh Duong province,
Becamex IJC has been making continuous efforts to bring customers high-quality products that
meet all requirements in terms of progress, technique, and aesthetics. The company always
focuses on applying advanced technologies, high-quality building materials and professional
construction processes to ensure superior product quality.

(22

. PRIORITIZED DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Ecosystem strategy

Becamex IJC will continue to promote its existing strengths, while inheriting valuable
experiences from Becamex Corporation, focusing on the strategy of restructuring the
organizational structure, developing land funds and urban services, associated with the
infrastructure development strategy traffic and industrial parks of the Corporation.

Growth strategy

Becamex IJC will continue to implement the strategy of “Accompanying the comprehensive
development cooperation from the Corporation’s ecosystem” to improve the capacity to
expand markets, develop cooperation and achieve outstanding growth.

To supplement financial capacity, improve Qualification and anticipate business
opportunities, Becamex |JC constantly seeks, participates and diversifies cooperation with
strategic investors.

Infrastructure strategy

Becamex IJC aims to expand its business operations into the field of transportation
infrastructure construction, especially the province’s arterial routes, while also developing
projects closely linked to industrial park infrastructure. Currently, Becamex IJC owns many
real estate, construction, and transportation infrastructure projects in Binh Duong and
neighboring provinces, which will provide a solid foundation for the company to expand its
operations into new fields. These goals will help Becamex IJC develop into a leading multi-
industry company and contribute positively to the country’s socio-economic development.

Value chain strategy

Becamex IJC is always proactive and flexible in developing business links within the
value chain, completing the ecosystem to control costs, improve production and business
efficiency, and quickly meet market demands.

Technology strategy

In addition to applying the ISO quality management system, Becamex IJC also focuses
on applying information technology in management. The company will continue to deploy
and apply professional management software for all operations. This will help improve
management efficiency, save costs, and improve the company’s competitiveness.

Repon 2024

. COMMITMENT TO ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Becamex IJC is one of the leading real estate development companies in Vietnam. Becamex
IJC always strives for sustainable development, balancing all three dimensions of economy,
environment and society. Becamex IJC focuses on sustainable economic development,
creating added value for the business, the community and society. Becamex IJC is committed
to protecting the environment and responding to climate change. Becamex IJC cares about
social development, contributing to improving the quality of life for people.

Becamex |JC is committed to long-term sustainable development, and to fulfill this commitment,
the company needs to focus all resources and support from stakeholders in the real estate
supply chain.

On its development journey, Becamex IJC identifies sustainable development as a strategic
focus. The Board of Directors has assigned two Deputy General Directors to be responsible for
implementing and ensuring the effectiveness of sustainable development policies at IJC.
Providing products that ensure high quality, meet technical and aesthetic requirements, and
ensure maximum safety for customers.

» Efforts to maintain transparency in governance, step by step improving the efficiency of
governance operations according to good domestic and international practices.

» Commitment to fully comply with legal regulations, international standards and requirements
of stakeholders in the fields of quality, environment and occupational health.

» Invest reasonably in quality management, environment, and occupational safety to prevent
incidents, labor accidents, and occupational diseases, protecting people, property, and the
environment.

» Creating a professional, fair, and friendly working environment in which employees are
evaluated based on their competence and work performance, and are given opportunities for
personal and career development.

» Train workers to master technology and achieve operational levels in accordance with regional
and international standards.

» Manage and control the operation of the Quality Management System, Environmental
Management System, and Occupational Health and Safety System effectively. Periodically
evaluate performance results to continuously improve and enhance the operational efficiency
of the systems.

Always fulfill social responsibilities, contributing to the sustainable development and
increasing prosperity of the community.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC VISION

COMMITMENT TO ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

IJC’s stakeholder identification process

Becamex IJC understands that building and developing relationships with stakeholders is a crucial factor contributing
tothe success of the business. Therefore, the Company has established a process for identifying stakeholders in order
to create a mechanism through which stakeholders can provide feedback and contribute to IJC's effective operations.
The stakeholder identification process at Becamex IJC is conducted based on principles of transparency, openness,

and honesty. The Company will carry out surveys and assessments to identify its stakeholders.

(" STAKEHOLDER )
IDENTIFICATION

Identify internal
and external

} stakeholders,
those who
directly and
indirectly affect
the Company’s
operations

- /

RELATED
PARTY

No.

PRIORITIZATION CONSULTATION REVIEW
Assessing Plan stakeholder Evaluate
the level of consultations and feedback
impact of develop methods provided by

stakeholders.
Accept, improve,
and remedy in
accordance with
the Company’s
conditions

for approaching and
receiving feedback,
and addressing
stakeholder
concerns

stakeholders on

the Company’s
business
operations

CHARACTERISTICS

1 Shareholders - Investors

Consultation

method

Direct meetings;
General Meeting of Shareholders;
Website;

Mass media; Other communication channels (Email, Telephone...)

Topics of

interest

Efficient and sustainable growth business operations;
Equal treatment and ensuring shareholder rights;
Transparent information.

IJC's efforts

Regarding the field of production and business

Flexibly adjust the strategic direction of the enterprise, in order to meet the needs and trends of the
changing market; Transparent information .

Improve the efficiency of financial management, in order to maximize profits and ensure the
sustainable development of the enterprise;

Proactively optimize the value chain in order to improve the operational efficiency of the enterprise;
Deploy a quality management system through the application of international quality standards.

Regarding Shareholder Governance

Comply with information disclosure, ensuring truthful and transparent information that accurately
reflects the Company’s operations and development strategies;

Diversify information exchange channels, proactively handle information crises, correct inaccurate
information about the Company in the market, protect reputation and brand, and aim to build the
image of a strong, typical company in the Vietnamese real estate industry;

Review and improve corporate governance activities according to good practices in the market;
Strengthen the role of Internal Control, Risk Management and Compliance, promote synergy and
improve the efficiency of governance and administration.

) w2024

RELATED

PARTY

Results achieved

CHARACTERISTICS

Regarding the field of production and business

Stay consistent with the 5-year strategic goals, flexibly adjusting strategic goals to suit the actual
context;
Maintain profitable operations in the context of the real estate industry facing difficulties and fierce

competition;

Provides comprehensive solutions from development consulting - construction, product exchange,

business management for investors to increase competitive advantages;

+  Maintaining the commitment to bring quality, safe and on-schedule projects, increasing the prestige

of the business;

The products that Becamex IJC builds receive positive feedback from customers.

Employees

Consultation

+  Employee conference;
+  Weekly/quarterly regular meetings;

+  Meeting to evaluate the level of job completion;

methods . Internal communication channels;
. Training;
+  Human Resources Department email...
Dynamic and professional working environment;
Topics of )
) Increasing benefits and welfare for employees;
interest

Remuneration and promotion opportunities.

IJC's efforts

About Corporate Governance

Compliance with information disclosure, ensuring truthful, transparent information, accurately

reflecting the Company’s operations and development strategies;

Diversifying information exchange channels, proactively handling information crises, correcting
misinformation about the Company in the market, protecting reputation and brand, towards building

the image of a typical strong company in the Vietnamese real estate industry;
Reviewing and improving corporate governance activities according to good practices in the market;

Strengthening the role of Internal Control, Risk Management and Compliance, promoting synergy

and improving management and operational efficiency.
About human resources
Recruiting and building policies to attract talent;
Implementing training and fostering programs for talents;
Prioritizing investment in training and human resource development activities;

Compliance with legal regulations on labor safety, implementation of Occupational Safety and

Health management system, raising employees’ awareness of labor safety.
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-25040003



SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC VISION

COMMITMENT TO ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

RELATED RELATED

PARTY

CHARACTERISTICS

No.

PARTY

CHARACTERISTICS

About Corporate Governance

«  Strict compliance with the Laws, Regulations, and Guidelines set out by the functional
authorities in all activities of the Company;

Achieved +  Shareholders have no complaints related to corporate governance;
results +  Risks are minimized to affect business performance.
About human resources
+  Creating stable jobs for localities where the Company is operating;
* No labor accidents were recorded in 2024.
Customers

Consultation

+  Surveying customer satisfaction levels;

methods +  Real estate trading floor.
Topics of «  Project quality for users;
interest «  Safety and efficiency in practical use.

IJC’s efforts

In the field of production and business

* To bring a civilized and advanced living experience to customers, Becamex IJC always
listens to and acknowledges customer opinions, advises on solutions and offers
appropriate support policies;

+  Becamex IJC also focuses on controlling the quality of products and services according
to the quality control process, while researching and improving the quality of products
and services to meet customer expectations.

Achieved
results

In the field of production and business

+  Enhancing satisfaction by addressing customer requests helps Becamex IJC increasingly
affirm its position as one of the leading real estate enterprises in Vietnam.

Community

Consultation
method

+  Coordinate with the local authorities to organize meetings and dialogues between the
enterprise and local residents to understand their thoughts and aspirations.

M (2]
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Topics of
interest

+  Creating job opportunities and improving income for local people;

+  Supporting economic and infrastructure development in the locality.

IJC’s efforts

Regarding human resources

+ Recruiting and building policies to attract talent;

« Implementing training and development programs for talents;

+  Prioritizing investment in human resource training and development activities;

«  Compliancewithlegalregulations onoccupational safety and health (OSH),implementation
of an OSH management system, and raising employee awareness about OSH.

Regarding the environment
«  Fully implementing periodic monitoring activities at the projects;
+  Propagating and calling for energy conservation.

Results
achieved

Regarding human resources

+  Creating thousands of stable jobs for localities where the Company operates;
*  No labor accidents were recorded in 2024.

Regarding the environment

« |JC's projects have not recorded any violations related to the environment;

+ Raising awareness about environmental management practices according to best
practice standards for related parties such as staff, investors, contractors, etc.
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KEY ISSUES

RELATED TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

-
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Becamex IJC is committed to sustainable development, linked to
the United Nations’ 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
The enterprise identifies and integrates key issues, based on the
extent of impact on overall operations, in accordance with the
sustainable development strategy. These issues are guaranteed
to be in harmony with the interests of stakeholders, including
Economic, Environmental, and Social aspects.

ANALYSIS AND EVALUATION OF KEY ISSUES

Becamex IJC has reviewed, analyzed, and evaluated key issues related to the company’s sustainable development goals.
These issues are specific to the industry and are assessed based on economic, environmental, and social aspects. The
analysis of key issues aims to adhere to the company’s sustainable development orientation, contributing to promoting
and building a strong community and a fair society.

Becamex IJC maximizes the strengths of its comprehensive real estate ecosystem, combined with the capabilities
and experience of its partners, to build quality, safe, and on-schedule projects. This not only actively contributes to the
development of urban infrastructure, but also helps the enterprise create stable and sustainable growth value, benefiting
both the enterprise and the economy and society.

Economic
performance
(GRI 201)

. [E&

Key objectives

Becamex IJC always strives for sustainable development, aiming to bring long-term benefits
to all stakeholders. To achieve this goal, the enterprise focuses on building a solid business
foundation, in which economic performance plays an important role. Economic performance
is a measure of the company’s success and is a prerequisite for the company to fulfill its
commitments to stakeholders.

Management method

Management purpose:

Becamex IJC always strives to reach the leading position in the real estate industry. To
achieve this goal, the enterprise always focuses on improving economic efficiency, through
improving product quality and applying digital technology to operating processes.
Management method:

Becamex IJC is one of the leading enterprises in the field of technical infrastructure
development, real estate business and other services in Binh Duong province. Becamex
IJC identifies economic efficiency as one of the top important goals. Becamex 1JC
understands that economic efficiency can only be achieved on the basis of a strong financial
foundation and stable economic growth. Therefore, the company continuously strives to
improve operational efficiency, complete the business plan approved by the GMS, monitor
and evaluate operational performance indicators and control indicators through a strict
management system..

wepon 2024

Direct

economic =

value
generated
and
distributed
(GRI 201-1)

Impact on
financial
results

and risks/
opportunities
due to climate
change (GRI
201-2)

Direct economic value generated:

Established in 2007 and officially listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE)
on 2010-04-05, with over 16 years of formation and development, Becamex IJC has made
a significant contribution to economic development in Binh Duong province. With its main
business area being real estate, IJC has gradually diversified its product segments to include
projects from mid- to high-end, social housing projects, etc.

The year 2024 unfolds in the context of Vietnam’s real estate industry recovering but also
intertwined with many challenges. Although business results did not meet the set plan due
to being affected by the volatile situation of the global economy in general and Vietnam in
particular; however, Becamex IJC has made efforts to achieve expected business results.
Specifically, total revenue reached more than VND 1,170 billion, mainly from real estate
business revenue, traffic toll collection activities and other business activities. In which,
expenses paid to the State budget with corporate income tax of more than VND 60 billion.

Direct value distributed:

In the context of the economic situation still dién bién khé luong, Becamex IJC has strived to
overcome challenges and successfully complete the cost control work. The company’s total
operating expenses in 2024 reached VND 494 billion, down 36.52% over the same period.
To achieve this result, Becamex IJC has implemented many cost reduction measures such
as streamlining the apparatus, saving costs of materials, raw materials, energy, applying
information technology, and automating operating processes.

In addition, IJC supports the construction of road infrastructure, rain and wastewater
drainage systems, and playgrounds for localities associated with investment and project
development.

Becamex IJC proactively responds to climate change. Climate change is a global issue,
affecting many areas of life, including construction activities. In Vietnam, climate change
has caused extreme weather phenomena such as storms, floods, droughts, etc., affecting
production and business activities. IJC always proactively controls and has a management
plan to minimize the impact of these impacts on the quality and progress of works at projects.




KEY ISSUES
RELATED TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Market = .ooeeee....
presence
(GRI1 202)
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Key objectives
Becamex IJC always focuses on creating a good working environment for employees
through attractive salary and bonus policies and benefits, suitable to their abilities, in order
to increase income, stabilize life and build a strong community. In particular, the company
is committed to maintaining a competitive salary policy, exceeding the minimum level of
the region, helping to stabilize income and improve living standards for employees. This
contributes significantly to social security, while building a strong community through solving
local labor issues.

Management approach

Management objectives

+ In order to attract talent and contribute to local economic development, Becamex |JC
identifies a competitive remuneration policy as an important factor in attracting and
retaining employees. The company has built an attractive salary, bonus and benefit
policy, suitable to the capacity of employees. To implement this policy, Becamex IJC
recruits labor from enterprises providing management and operation services, ensuring
a high-quality human resource to meet the company’s development needs.

+ To emphasize maintaining a fair internal compensation policy and enhancing income
competitiveness in the market, Becamex |JC has established an annual salary increase
policy for employees. Salary increases are based on two main factors: the company’s
business performance and the individual performance of each employee.

+ Even at a time when many companies have had to cut staff and reduce operations, IJC
remains committed to not cutting staff, paying full salaries and policies to employees,
and even encourages recruitment and attracting talent.

+ At Becamex IJC, all employees are treated fairly and equally in terms of gender, with
starting salaries always higher than the average starting salary in the region.

+  Becamex IJC always values developing the quality of human resources, considering
it a decisive factor in the company’s success. The company has built a professional
and modern working environment, meeting the development needs of employees. As a
result, employees have access to advanced technology applications in a professional
working environment.

With the above policies and actual implementation of personnel training applied to the entire

Company, Becamex IJC has been building a high-quality working environment, creating a

premise for improving the qualifications of the workforce nationwide in general.

Governance Approach

Becamex IJC establishes a fair internal compensation policy that is competitive with the
market to ensure the rights of employees.

Becamex IJC considers and increases salaries for employees annually, based on the
company'’s business results and the working efficiency of each individual. This aims to create
work motivation, increase attachment to the business, and promote labor productivity.

Repon 2024

(GRI 205)

Communication
and trainingon’
anti-corruption
policies and
procedures (GRI

205-2)
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Key objectives

Becamex IJC considers anti-corruption an important commitment to the development of the

business. By building a corporate culture that values integrity, effective management, and

responsible business practices, Becamex IJC is committed to ensuring sustainable development
while meeting market requirements, international standards, and the needs of stakeholders.

Management Approach

Management Purposes:

Theimplementation of publicity and transparency of regulations and processes during operations

is an effective solution to prevent corruption. This solution helps create a transparent and fair

working environment, limiting opportunities for corruption. At the same time, this solution also
helps raise awareness and responsibility of employees in business administration, thereby
contributing to building a sustainable business.

Governance Approach:

Becamex IJC recognizes the negative impact of corruption on the economy and society, as well

as on the business itself. Therefore, the company has been implementing a number of anti-

corruption policies as follows:

«  Compliance with legal regulations related to anti-corruption.

+  Develop, supplement, and implement detailed regulations on anti-corruption issues in the
Company’s internal documents such as: Internal Labor Regulations, Code of Conduct, and
Code of Professional Ethics for Employees...

+ Fulfilling the obligations of the business to the State and employees

+ Implementing the statistical regime according to the provisions of law

+ Openness and transparency in all activities of the Company.

To prevent corruption, Becamex IJC requires all employees to comply with the following
regulations: be proactive, open, transparent, and honest in all actions; not to abuse authority
and job positions for personal gain; and not to adversely affect partners, customers, and the
Company's reputation.

At the same time, Becamex IJC has used various forms of communication, including: training,
conferences, seminars, internal information, social media, etc., to convey anti-corruption and
bribery policies and regulations to all leaders and employees.

Dénh gia phuong phap quan tri

Becamex IJC is implementing solutions to improve the mechanisms and regulations on anti-
corruption. These solutions aim to enhance the effectiveness of anti-corruption policies,
thereby providing a basis for strengthening the objective and confidential monitoring of policy
implementation.

5 .
© Efforts to protect the environment

-

the community.

Becamex IJC operates in the field of real estate and manages the operation and collection of traffic tolls, with
business activities that have a direct impact on the environment. Therefore, the company is well aware that
monitoring, adapting, and flexibly applying technology in the use of energy and resources is extremely important.
These actions help minimize negative impacts on the environment, respond effectively to the epidemic situation,
climate change, and protect the community’s general environment.

To implement this commitment, the company has thoroughly grasped and strictly controlled the following strategic
orientations through specific measures and actions:

» Proactively adjust internal procedures and regulations to ensure compliance with the Law on Environmental
Protection No. 72/2020/QH14, which took effect in 2022.

» Periodically monitor the consumption of electricity, water, raw materials, and gasoline, and at the same time,
promote the awareness of saving to all officials and employees.

» Increase the application of new building materials and green building materials in construction projects.

» Use advanced equipment to minimize the impact of environmental pollution, and at the same time use
environmentally friendly building materials and supplies.

» Control and maintain an effective waste treatment system.

» Promote awareness of environmental protection and climate change response for all officials, employees and

~
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KEY ISSUES
RELATED TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

ANALYSIS AND EVALUATION OF KEY ISSUES

25 .
@ Efforts to protect the environment

( MATERIALS (GRI 301) )

«  Materials that have been used by weight or volume (GRI 307-1)
*  Recycled materials that have been used (GRI 301-2)

Key Objectives

In the construction industry, the cost of raw materials of companies accounts for 55% to 65% of the total investment
cost, therefore, fluctuations in the price of input raw materials are a major challenge for Becamex IJC. To minimize the
impact of this fluctuation, the company needs to develop and implement an effective raw material price management
plan. Measures may include negotiating long-term contracts with suppliers to stabilize prices, seeking diverse sources
of raw material supply, applying technology to raw material management to optimize use, and maintaining flexibility in
adjusting investment strategies when necessary.

Management method

Management objectives:

The technical team of Becamex IJC sets a goal to control input materials to meet technical standards, minimizing
damage and waste during implementation. This goal aims to construct projects quickly and with high quality, while also
contributing to sustainable development through improved productivity and efficiency in construction, reducing material
waste and emissions.

Management approaches:

Becamex IJC has implemented numerous technical solutions in construction and project supervision, notably the
application of 3D modeling. As a result, the company has achieved many positive outcomes, such as controlling design
conflicts, risks during construction, saving construction materials, and reducing repair costs.

Furthermore, Becamex IJC pays special attention to applying modern construction methods and new environmentally
friendly materials in the construction and completion of projects. This aims to integrate the Company’s activities with
social, environmental, and economic responsibilities, as well as improve the quality of life for customers, the surrounding
community, and society in general.

4
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( ENERGY (GRI 302) )

«  Energy consumption within the organization (GRI 302-1)
*  Reduce energy consumption (GRI 321-2)
*  Reducing the energy demand of products and services (GRI 302-3)

Key objectives

Becamex IJC is keenly aware that the use of energy and natural resources can negatively impact the environment.
Therefore, the company always closely monitors the use of these resources, with the aim of minimizing energy
consumption and greenhouse gas emissions. These measures not only help reduce adverse impacts on the environment
but also contribute to protecting the community and fostering sustainable development.

Management method

Management objectives:

Becamex IJC believes that stakeholders need to join hands to achieve environmental goals. Integrating environmental

goals into business operations will help businesses minimize their impact on the environment, contribute to

environmental protection, and build a sustainable future.

Management approaches:

The energy used at Becamex IJC is mainly electricity, gasoline, and Diesel fuel. Therefore, the company has implemented

many solutions to control energy use in order to minimize environmental impact. One of those solutions is to control the

operating time and travel distance of vehicles and lighting equipment systems.

Besides that, the Company has many innovative and useful solutions to reduce energy consumption, such as:

»  Monitoring and controlling transportation vehicles and electrical equipment operating throughout the system
operation;

»  Using LED lights to replace methane and compact lights reduced 25,623 kwh, leading to a reduction of 18.5 tons of
CO2. Fluorescent lamps switched to LED reduced 12,825kwh, reducing 9.2 tons of CO2;

»  Utilizing natural wind and light through architectural solutions;

»  Encouraging all employees to actively implement the policy of “Turn off the lights when not in use”;

»  Promoting investment in solar energy solutions.

Evaluation of management method

Energy consumption situation

No, Content Unit Year 2024

DO oil Liter 50,466
1

Total energy consumption Kjun 1,859,419,770

Electricity kwh 1,995,214
2

Total energy consumption Kjun 7,182,770,400

M—25040003




KEY ISSUES
RELATED TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

ANALYSIS AND EVALUATION OF KEY ISSUES

25 .
@ Efforts to protect the environment

( WATER (GRI 303) )

«  Water input by source (GRI 303-1)

Key objectives

Water is a precious resource and plays an essential role in life on earth; however, only about 0.7% of the fresh water on
Earth is usable. Currently, fresh water resources are facing a serious threat from ecosystem degradation, environmental
pollution and climate change. This is a global crisis, which directly affects human life and the environment. Therefore,
the effective and economical use of clean water is extremely necessary, and of great significance to both humans and
the environment.

Management method

Management objectives:

Becamex IJC recognizes the importance of water for business operations and the environment. Therefore, the company

always links all water use activities with the goal of minimizing environmental impact, ensuring water resources are

exploited, used effectively and controlling emissions.

Management approach:

Becamex IJC recognizes that water is a precious natural resource but not infinite. Therefore, the company always

attaches great importance to saving and using water effectively, including: water supply points, taking advantage of

natural water sources such as rainwater... are among the top concerns at the company.

To avoid wasting water, the Company has taken measures to control water sources as well as a periodic water system

inspection process. At the same time, the Company also proposes a number of solutions to reduce water consumption

such as:

» The company has invested in a wastewater treatment system and a treated water tank to reuse wastewater for
other purposes such as watering plants, washing cars, industrial cleaning, etc.

»  Conduct periodic water system checks to detect and fix leaks in a timely manner, while ensuring that water valves
are tightly closed after use to avoid wasting water.

»  Minimize water loss due to evaporation in material storage areas by building surrounding dykes.

»  Propagate to all company employees about the awareness of using and saving water resources.

»  Promote propaganda, education and launch emulation movements to save and protect water resources, including
employees directly involved in construction at the site and employees in the office block.

Repon 2024

( EMISSIONS (GRI 305) )

Key objective

With the motto of green development, Becamex IJC always focuses on using environmentally friendly raw materials,
while researching and applying clean energy technologies in production. These efforts help ensure the efficient and
economical use of resources in construction activities, thereby minimizing the amount of harmful greenhouse gas
emissions into the environment.

Management method

Management objectives:

Reducing emissions is one of the important solutions to minimize negative impacts on the environment. When emissions

are reduced, the environment will be better protected, thereby minimizing negative impacts on public health and the

natural environment.

Management approach:

The company has been implementing initiatives to reduce emissions generated such as:

»  Shielding around the construction area to ensure safety and minimize impact on the environment.

»  Strictly manage the temporary storage area for materials and construction vehicles, ensuring that there are no leaks
or spills of materials, which could cause environmental pollution and affect occupational safety.

»  Regularly spray water on roads and construction areas to minimize dust emissions into the air.

»  Provide vehicle washing facilities at construction sites to prevent dust from being released outside.

» Use vehicles that meet emission standards to minimize the impact of air pollution, and maintain machinery and
equipment regularly.

» Organize construction reasonably, only operate machinery, equipment, and vehicles that meet the permitted
standards.

Governance method assessment
In 2024, the Company effectively managed environmental emissions using the above methods.




KEY ISSUES
RELATED TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

ANALYSIS AND EVALUATION OF KEY ISSUES

@ Enhance social responsibility

EMPLOYMENT (GRI 401)

* Number of new hires and employee turnover rate (GRI 401-1)
*  Benefits provided to full-time employees (GRI 401-2)
«  Maternity leave (GRI 401-3)

Key objectives

At Becamex IJC, we value and recognize the contributions of each member, regardless of position, age, gender,
education, social status, personality, lifestyle, thought process, work experience, origin, or ethnicity. This philosophy is
the solid foundation for creating a dynamic and fair working environment, where each individual has the opportunity to
develop, train themselves, and progress towards career success at IJC.

Accordingly, the human resource management policy at IJC has the following main objectives:

»  Create employment opportunities for the labor market inside and outside the province;

»  Create job opportunities for young candidates and fresh graduates;

»  Build a professional and high-quality workforce by developing a methodical training process, and rotate positions to
improve the capacity, experience, and expand the expertise of the workforce;

»  Create an equal and fair working environment;

Governance method

Governance purpose:

Becamex |JC always focuses on personnel management activities to create a professional and civilized working

environment, where each individual has the opportunity to develop themselves and contribute to the company’s

development.

Governance method:

Becamex IJC always focuses on complying with and seriously and fully implementing regulations on benefits, insurance,

and working hours for employees in accordance with Vietnamese law.

Becamex |JC always values taking care of the material and spiritual life of employees, creating an open and connected

working environment, encouraging support and honesty between employees and management. The company always

pays attention to working conditions and provides facilities and tools to support employees to work conveniently and

achieve the highest efficiency, including: work computers, support software, office equipment, etc. These are important

factors that help retain employees and encourage them to contribute to the company’s development.

With the deep concern of the Board of Directors and a competitive remuneration policy, Becamex IJC has created a

good working environment, helping employees feel secure in their work and contribute to the company for a long time,

specifically:

»  Salary and bonus policy:

- Salary: Considered commensurate with the job position and employee capabilities.

- Salary increase: Becamex IJC evaluates employees’ work performance monthly. Based on this, the company will
annually reassess employees’ salaries to match their capabilities and development orientation.

- Bonus policy: Based on business performance, bonuses on major holidays during the year are paid according to the
company'’s general regulations.

»  Annual leave policy:

- Employees have 12 days of leave per year, and for every 5 years, employees will be entitled to an additional 01 day
of leave.

- Always encourage and create conditions for employees to take leave within the scope of the number of leave days
they are entitled to
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» Insurance regime:

- Participating in social insurance, health insurance, and unemployment insurance in accordance with the law.

- Purchasing health and accident insurance for employees.

- Comprehensive health insurance scheme suitable for each employee level.

- Personal accident insurance (24/24) for all employees.

»  Maternity regime: Maternity leave for female employees is enjoyed in accordance with the law and other regulations
of the Company (if any).

»  Taking care of employees’ lives:

- Visiting employees or their relatives who are sick; gifts for employees on birthdays, International Women’s Day
on 03/08, 10/20, allowances for employees upon marriage, allowances for employees’ children on International
Children’s Day on 06/01, Mid-Autumn Festival, rewarding employees and employees’ children with good academic
achievements, etc.

- Support for lunch, uniforms, special allowance regime, especially policies to support employees working at remote
construction sites, pick-up and drop-off vehicles for senior managers...

» Incentives for employees:

- Shares issued under the employee choice program (if any).

Evaluation of management methods

In 2024, the Company has applied and fully committed to salary, bonus, leave, insurance, maternity, marriage and
other policies on rights and benefits for employees. In particular, as of 2024-12-31, the total number of Company
employees is 200. In which, the average income of employees at IJC is VND 18,102,596/person, an increase of 5%
compared to 2023.

With effective human resource management methods, Becamex IJC has built a team of gidi, professional, nhiét
huyét employees, ready to contribute to the sustainable development of the company.

Besides, Becamex IJC has been, is and will continue to improve recruitment, training and welfare policies, in order
to create conditions for employees to feel secure in working, improve their Qualification and gan bo lau dai with
the company.

LABOR/MANAGEMENT RELATIONSHIP (GRI 402)

«  Minimum notification period regarding operational changes (GRI 402-1)

Key objectives

Becamex IJC always attaches importance to building a fair, respectful and safe working environment for employees,
including labor rights, professional ethics, safety and health, while respecting and supporting diversity, professional
development and equal opportunities for all employees.

Management method

Management purpose:

Managing and monitoring labor and management relations is an important activity that helps ensure transparency, fairness
and protection of employee rights, while contributing to improving the efficiency of management and administration in the
business.

Governance Approach:

The management board of Becamex IJC always values the issuance of policies related to salaries, bonuses, benefits,
rewards, and discipline. These policies are detailed, strict, and consistent in the company’s internal documents, including:
Labor Regulations, Collective Labor Agreement, Employee Handbook, Code of Conduct, Code of Professional Ethics for
staff and employees (CBNV), and Regulations on assessing the level of job completion of staff and employees.

All rules, regulations, and procedures of Becamex IJC are issued in accordance with the provisions of law and are
widely disseminated to all staff and employees. The HR Department is responsible for promptly notifying all staff and

employees of important changes related to their work and labor rights.
-
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KEY ISSUES
RELATED TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

ANALYSIS AND EVALUATION OF KEY ISSUES

@ Enhance social responsibility

LABOR/MANAGEMENT RELATIONSHIP (GRI 402)

The issuance of regulations at Becamex IJC not only benefits employees but also benefits the business. Specifically,
these regulations help increase transparency, fairness, and ensure the rights of employees, helping employees feel
respected, thereby creating motivation for them to stick with the company for a long time and work more effectively.
Assessment of governance methods

VWith effective management methods, Becamex IJC has built a harmonious and stable labor-management relationship.
In 2024, the Company did not record any feedback on this relationship.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (GRI 403)

«  Worker representation in formal joint management-worker health and safety committees (GRI 403-1)

«  Type of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and absenteeism, and number of work-related
fatalities (GRI 403-2)

*  Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements with trade unions (GRI 403-4)

Key objectives

Becamex IJC always identifies the responsibility to ensure occupational safety and health for employees. The Company
understands that this is a legitimate right of employees and is an important factor contributing to building a good and
healthy working environment.

Governance approach

Governance Purposes:

Becamex IJC understands that the staff is a valuable asset, a factor that determines the success of the business.

Therefore, the Company always emphasizes building and developing human resources, creating a good and healthy

working environment, and ensuring the rights and benefits of employees. Becamex IJC is committed to protecting the

rights and health and ensuring safe working conditions for employees during their time working at the enterprise.

Governance Approach:

Policies to ensure health and occupational safety are one of the important contents that Becamex IJC pays attention to

and directs strict supervision, specifically:

»  Compliance with laws, local regulations and requirements of relevant parties on Occupational Safety - Health -
Environment.

»  Invest appropriate resources to control hazardous and harmful factors; while ensuring that control and inspection
are carried out regularly and periodically.

»  Constantly improve and actively, proactively develop the Occupational Safety - Health - Environment system.

» Becamex IJC proactively proposes and improves measures to ensure safety and protect the environment, and fully
equips employees with personal protective equipment. As a result, the company has effectively prevented incidents,
labor accidents, occupational diseases, reduced human and property damage, and contributed to protecting the
surrounding environment.

» Becamex IJC organizes annual periodic health check-ups for all employees. In addition to general health check-up
items, employees can also choose in-depth tests according to their needs. After the health check, employees will
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receive consultation from doctors to analyze and detect health abnormalities.

»  Regularly organize sports festivals, sightseeing tours, and vacations for employees, helping to relieve stress at work
and strengthen solidarity among company members.

» Becamex IJC organizes regular occupational safety training sessions for all employees, raising workers’ awareness
of dangerous and harmful factors in the workplace. Employees who recover from work accidents and are diagnosed
as healthy will be able to return to work as normal.

» Becamex IJC organizes annual first aid and fire prevention skills training for all employees. Fire prevention and
fighting equipment has been registered, supplied, and arranged on every floor of the building. These courses help
improve employees’ first aid knowledge and ensure customer safety in case of emergency.

Evaluation of management methods

With the management methods set out, in 2024, Becamex IJC recorded no cases of violations of employees’ safety and

health, specifically:

»  Number of labor accidents: None

»  Number of employees with occupational diseases: None

»  Occupational safety training program: fire prevention training is carried out periodically or as required by management
agencies.

EDUCATION AND TRAINING (GRI 404)

«  Average training hours per year for each employee (GRI 404-1)

«  Employee skills enhancement programs and transition support program (GRI 404-2)

«  Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews (GRI 404-3)

Key objectives

Dao tao va phat trién nhan luc gitip Becamex IJC ndng cao chat lwgng ngudn nhan luc, tir dé dap (ng yéu cau ctiia moi
trudng va t6 chirc, gép phan thuc hién muc tiéu bén virng.

Management method

Management purpose:

Training and developing human resources helps Becamex IJC improve the quality of its human resources, thereby
meeting the requirements of the environment and organization, contributing to the implementation of sustainable goals.
Method of management:

Becamex IJC focuses on training and developing human resources, creating favorable conditions for employees to
participate in training programs that are appropriate to the needs, abilities, and job positions of each individual. Each
official and employee will have a separate training path, helping to develop their personal capacity in a comprehensive
way.

In addition, Becamex IJC regularly assesses the level of job completion of officials and employees through a set of
criteria that are constantly reviewed and improved, in order to ensure the quality of human resources meets production
and business operation needs. This evaluation process also helps screen out officials and employees who do not meet
job requirements, thereby having a plan to recruit quality personnel, suitable for the company’s development needs.
Evaluation of management methods

With a focus on improving the quality of education and training, Becamex |JC has achieved positive results, reflected in
a high-quality workforce, comprehensively developed in both professional expertise and soft skills.

In 2024, the Company organized 148 hours of training with professional consulting units.

@

-25040003



KEY ISSUES
RELATED TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

ANALYSIS AND EVALUATION OF KEY ISSUES

@ Enhance social responsibility

DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY (GRI 405)

Diversity of management and employees (GRI 405-1)
Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men (GRI 405-2)

Key objectives

Human resources are a valuable asset of Becamex IJC. The Company always values and appreciates the contributions
of its staff, especially female staff. To build a high-quality workforce, the Company has implemented competitive salary,
bonus, and benefit policies, ensuring fair treatment and equal opportunities for all employees.

Governance Approach

Governance purpose:

With the view that human resources are a key factor ensuring sustainable development, Becamex IJC continues to build
a professional and positive working environment, especially through competitive welfare policies, bonuses based on the
level of work completion, and other bonus policies (if any). These policies aim to attract and retain talent, contributing
to building a high-quality workforce that meets the Company’s development requirements.

Maintaining a culture of equality and diversity in the workplace will contribute to promoting social stability and supporting
further economic development.

Governance methods:

Becamex IJC actively promotes diversity, eliminates gender bias, and supports equal opportunities for all workers. The
Company applies these principles fairly and transparently in all recruitment, promotion, and remuneration activities. In
particular, equality in remuneration is an important factor in retaining talent.

In addition, fair treatment of employees plays an important role in forming a good working environment, creating
motivation for employees, promoting abilities, and sticking with the Company.

Evaluation of governance methods

In 2024, Becamex |JC maintained an appropriate ratio of managers and employees, ensuring the efficiency of business
administration and operation. The Company also creates opportunities and encourages female staff to participate in
and hold management positions.

The Company always arranges and assigns employees reasonably, ensuring a balance between the quantity and quality
of employees between management and staff, as well as between the office and construction sites.

In the context of the increasingly competitive real estate labor market, IJC pays special attention to ensuring high-quality
resources. Evidence is that the proportion of employees with university degrees or higher of the Company is maintained
at (28%), affirming the quality of IJC’s human resources in the face of market fluctuations.

Due to the specific nature of the industry, the proportion of male staff of the Company accounts for the majority. However,
the proportion of women in IJC's human resources structure still reaches more than 34%, which is a suitable proportion
for companies with business operations in the real estate sector.

Experienced human resources with high Qualification and over 35 years old (more than 98% of the personnel structure)
are a solid foundation for the Company to develop sustainably and create generations of talent in the future.

o) 2024

RESPONSIBILITY TO THE LOCAL COMMUNITY

Becamex IJC and Becamex Corporation are always actively involved in charitable, humanitarian, and social activities,
demonstrating the enterprise’s responsibility to the community.

Becamex IJC consistently demonstrates its social responsibility through philanthropic and humanitarian activities.
Each year, the Company allocates a specific fund to support those in difficult circumstances in Binh Duong province.
Becamex |JC has provided material and spiritual support to millions of people. The Company has actively participated
in numerous charitable and humanitarian programs, contributing to a better life for those in difficult circumstances.

BECAMEX IJC'S COMMUNITY SHARING JOURNEY

VALUE
(VND)

PROGRAM

Funding support for Hoa Phu Ward People's Committee on the occasion of the Giap Thin spring of

20,000,000
2024

5,000,000 Funding support for Tuong Binh Hiep Ward People's Committee on the occasion of the Giap Thin
spring of 2024

20,000,000 Funding support for Thu Dau Mot City Labor Federation on the occasion of the Giap Thin spring of
2024

10,000,000 Funding support for Vinh Tan Ward People's Committee on the occasion of the Giap Thin spring of
2024

20,000,000 Funding support for the activities of the Trade Union in 2024 for the Trade Union of the DUK agency

Payment of funding to support the implementation of activities celebrating the Party and celebrating

100,000,000 . o
Spring 2024 for Bau Bang District

Funding support for Ben Cat City People's Committee on the occasion of the Giap Thin Lunar New

50,000,000
Year 2024

45,360,000 Buying Tet gifts to support Vinh Phu Ward (contract 345)

Spending to support the People's Committee of Hoa Phu Ward in planting trees on the occasion of the

10,000,000 ) . . .
134th anniversary of President Ho Chi Minh's birth.

3,000,000  Support for funding the construction of temporary houses and dilapidated houses in 2024

Supporting Vinh Phu Ward on the occasion of the 77th anniversary of War Invalids and Martyrs Day,

42,678,000 .
2024-07-27 (Resolutions 1979, 1980)

20,000,000 Sponsoring training activities at the Ho Chi Minh City National University Branch in Ben Tre Province

10.000.000 Spending money to support the Congress of representatives of the Ho Chi Minh Communist Youth
B Union of Binh Duong Province's Business sector, term 2024-2027

50,000,000 Spending to support funding for the Party Congress of Hoa Phu Ward, term 1V, 2025-2030

20,000,000 Spending to support the Party Committee of An Tay Ward, Ben Cat City, Binh Duong Province

Spending money to support funding for the People's Committee of Tan Uyen City on the occasion of

20,000,000
the Lunar New Year 2025
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - To install water S'ilppi}", drainage, heating and air conditioning systems;

- To grow vegetables, beans of all kinds and flowers;

- To maintain, repair and operate toll stations. To operate construction investment projects under the
BOT, BT methed;

- To produce concrete and products from concrete, cement and plaster;

- To lease unmanned machinery, equipment and other tangible items;

- To construct residential houses;

- To construct non-residential houses;

The Board of Directors of Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred
to as “the Company™) presents this statement together with the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
fiscal year ended 31 December 2024, including the Financial Statements of the Company and those of its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group™).

Business highlights - To construct railways;

Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company was transformed from Highway 13 Project - Toconstruct ruads%

directly under Investment and Industrial Development Corporation (Investment and Industrial Development - To construct electrical works;

Joint Stock Corporation now) according to the Decision No. 1131/QB-UBND dated 01 March 2007 of the - To construct water supply and drainage works;

People’'s Committee of Binh Duong Province. The Company has been operating in line with the Business - To construct telecommunications and information works;
Registration Certificate No. 3700805566, registered for the first time on 02 July 2007 and amended for the - To construct other public works;

15" time on 13 February 2025, granted by Binh Duong Province Department of Planning and Investment, - To construct other civil engineering works.

On 19 April 2010, the Company's stocks were officially listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
under the Decision No. 64/2010/QBD-SGDHCM dated 05 April 2010 of the Ho Chi Minh City Stock

Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and Executive Board
The Board of Directors and the Executive Board of the Company during the year and as of the date of this

Exchange with the stock code of 1JC.

statement include:

Head office The Board of Directors
= Address : No. 230 Binh Duong Avenue, Phu Hoa Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province Full name Position Appointing/reappointing date
- Tel : (B4-274) 3848 789 Mr. Do Quang Ngon Chairman Appointed on |15 April 2022
- Fax 1 (84-274) 3848 678 Mr. Quang Van Viet Cuong  Vice Chairman Reappointed on 15 April 2022
sl Basat . Mr. Tran Thien The Member Reappointed on 15 April 2022
FiRcipe’ business ectivibies o the Company are: I o Ms. Vo Thi Huyen Trang  Member Reappointed on 15 April 2022
- To invest, construct and operate technical infrastructure of industrial parks, residential areas and urban Ms. Le Thi Xuan Dieu Independent Member Appointed on 07 April 2023
areas. To trade in real estate and lease houses, apartments, factories and offices. To provide workers’
I;?au:':?f;;mces, To trade, transfer, lease, lease then purchase real estate (according to the Provincial The Supervisory Board
- To provide real estate brokerage, valuation, trading floor, consultancy, auction, advertising and Full name - Position Appointing/reappointing/resigning date
management services: Mr. Nguyen Hai Hoang Head of the Board Appointed on |5 April 2022
- To give consultancy on civil, public, industrial, traffic, technical infrastructure works, To give Ms. Le Thi T!""'-'" Duong Member Reappointed on 15 April 2022
consultancy and make detailed plans, general estimation, to make, appraise investment projects for Ms. Chau Thi Van Member Resigned on 19 April 2024
residential areas, urban areas, industrial parks, civil, industrial, traffic works; to supervise the Ms. Mai Thi Huynh Mai Member Appointed on 19 April 2024
construction of traffic works; to supervise the construction and completion of civil & industrial works;
to supervise the construction and completion of bridges and roads; to design, verify the architecture of The Internal Audit Board
St o B i B G Ty St okl s e, ol Fall e Appining
; to give consultancy on :
construction investment management of civil, industrial, traffic, irrigation and technical infrastructure L‘Es'l];;;an I;_I[Eu“;:h - E{ead: ¥ the: Boand ippﬂ?mt: i ?g ﬁarcguzzﬂzil
projects; to organize invitation for bid, bidding, and selection of contractors in construction and SN S T g sl PRI On -
procurement of machinery and equipment; Ms. Bui Phuong Hong Member Appointed on 16 May 2022
- To produce construction materials;
- To mine and process minerals; The Board of Management
- To trade in construction materials; Full name Position Appointing/reappointing date
- To trade in precast concrete components. To trade in supplies, materials and goods for consumer Mr. Trinh Thanh Hung Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 15 April 2022
production; Ms. Vo Thi Huyen Trang Deputy Chief Executive Officer  Reappointed on 27 July 2022
-  To produce supplies, materials and goods for consumer production; Mr. Tran Ngoc Hien Deputy Chief Executive Officer  Appointed on 30 March 2021
- To construct civil and industrial electricity works; Mr. Vu Phi Hung DeputyChief Executive Officer  Appointed on 10 September 2024

- To trade in construction equipment and mechanical machinery;

- To make financial investments in other domestic and foreign enterprises;
- To inspect construction quality; to test construction materials;

- Totake care of trees, flower gardens and ornamental plants;
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Ms. Bui Thi Thuy

Chief Accountant cum
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed on 30 March 2021
Appointed on 15 April 2022
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Legal Representative
The Company's legal representative during the year and as of the date of this statement is Mr. Trinh Thanh
Hung - Chief Executive Officer (appointed on 15 April 2022).

Auditors
A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. has been appointed to perform the audit on the Group's
Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024,

Responsibilities of the Board of Management

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements to
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, the consolidated financial performance and
the consolidated cash flows of the Group during the year. In order to prepare these Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Board of Management must:

select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;
make judgments and estimates reasonably and prudently;
state clearly whether the accounting standards applied to the Group are followed or not, and all the
material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the Consolidated Financial
Statements;

* prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group on the going-concern basis, except for the
cases that the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate;

* design and implement effectively the internal control system to minimize the risks of material
misstatements due to frauds or errors in the preparation and presentation of the Consclidated Financial
Statements.

The Board of Management hereby ensures that all the proper accounting bocks of the Group have been fully
recorded and can fairly reflect the financial position of the Group at any time, and that all the accounting
books have been prepared in compliance with the applicable Accounting System. The Board of Management
is also responsible for managing the Group's assets and consequently has taken appropriate measures to
prevent and detect frauds and other irregularities.

The Board of Management hereby commits to the compliance with the aforementioned requirements in
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors hereby approves the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, which give a

true and fair view of the consolidated financial position as of 31 December 2024 of the Group, its

consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in

conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and

;elewant statutory requirements on the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial
tatements.

AAT008055
Forarid on belialRaf the Board of Directors, 7/
! g C':I'NG TY {:‘1 N -
COPHA

#

Wt Wl X
W2, ©Y THUAT

Do Quang Ngon
Chairman

Date: 18 March 2025
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ARC AUDITING AND CONSULTING CO., LTD. @ bakertilly
Howad O¥ice 02 Trugng Son 51, Wand 2 ‘Tan S D, Hi Cha M {3y, Vestram Tet ofld (0) 3647 1977 Iethvi@a-c.comom

BranchinMa Mol 40 g Ve 51 Diong Ga Dest. ra Moy City Vietnam Tl o84 (24} 3736 009 Wtuhniie o comn A & C
Branch in Wha Trang - Lo 571 (SLET 5 N T Ln<hong Pong f Lrban s Mo Wl e Hha Taog Oy evum - Tl +34 [T258, M6 5T5)  Mnniia-ccomom
Branch in Can The 1510 v Maguyes filep 51 Cail Ruwsg Do, Can The Ot Vieinam Tal 38 097 ST A095 v ciBe-ccomw WOWWLA-C COmLYn

No. 1.0408/25/TC-AC
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT

To: THE SHAREHOLDERS, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
BECAMEX INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Wie have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Becamex Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company (hereinafier referred 1o as “the Company™) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “the Group"™), which were prepared on 18 March 2025 (from page 6 to page 52) including the
Consolidated Balance Sheel as of 31 December 2024, the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the fiscal year then ended and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Responsibility of the Board of Management

The Company's Board of Management is responsible for the preparation, true and fair presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Viemamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements; and responsible for the intemal control as the Board of Management
determines necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements to be
free from material misstatement due 1o fraud or error.

Responsibility of Auditors

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance
about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures lo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion of Auditors

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the
consolidated financial position as of 31 December 2024 of the Group, its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Enierprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation

and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

1 Luong Anh Vu
Partner Auditor
Audit Pragtice Registration Certificare No. (0092-2023-008- | Audit Practice Regisiration Certificate No. 1832-202 3-(108-1
Authorized Signatory

Ho Chi Minh City, 18 March




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of 31 December 2024

ITEMS
A - CURRENT ASSETS
I. Cash and cash equivalents

1. Cash
2. Cash equivalents

. Shert-term financial investments
Trading securities
Provisions for devaluation of trading securities
Held-to-maturity investments

fad d =

I1I. Short-term receivables

1. Short-term trade receivables

Short-term prepayments to suppliers

Short-term inter-company receivables

Receivables according to the progress of construction
contract

Receivables for short-term loans

Other shon-term receivables

Allowance for short-term doubtful debts

Deficit assets for treatment

ot

Lt B B

IV. Inventories
Inventories
Allowance for devaluation of inventories

b

Other current assets

Short-term prepaid expenses

Deductible VAT

Taxes and other receivables from the State
Trading Government bonds

Other current assets

o e
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Code

100

110
111
112

120
121
122
123

130
131
132
133

134
135
136
137
139

140
141
149

150
151
152
153
154
155

Note

V.1

V.2a

V.ia

V4

V.5a
V.6

v.7

V.8a

Ending balance

Unit: VND

Beginning balance

4.497.720.660.501

79.913.808.794
65.913.898.794
14.000.000.000

16.300.000.000

-

16.300.000.000

636.188.773.465
595.338.741.949
6.065.421.040

39.371.072.979
(4.586.462.503)

3.682.760.613.520
3.682.760.613.520

-

B2.557.374.721
5.400.815.597
77.156.559.125

3.742.769.257.029

284.172.959.342
242.172.959.342
42.000.000.000

14.800.000.000

14.800.000.000

674.264.402.599
636.959.166.955
3.385.890.022

34.256.606.328
(337.260.706)

1.765.491.621.174
2.765.491.621.174

4.040.273.914
4.040.273.914

=)
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ITEMS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivables

Long-term trade receivables

Long-term prepayments to suppliers
Working capital in affiliates

Long-term inter-company receivables
Receivables for long-term loans

Other long-term receivables

Allowance for long-term doubtful debts

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets
Histarical coxt
Accumulated depreciation
Financial leased assels
Historical cast
Accumulated depreciation
Intangible fixed assets
Initial cost

Accumulated amortization

. Investment property

Historical costs
Accumulated depreciation

. Long-term assels in process

Long-term work in process
Construction-in-progress

Long-term financial investments
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in joint ventures and associates

Investments in other entities

Provisions for devaluation of long-term financial

investments
Held-to-maturity investments

. Other non-current assels

Long-term prepaid expenses

Deferred income tax assets

Long-term components and spare parts
Other non-current assets

Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS

Code

200

210
211
212
213
214
215
216
219

120
221

722

223
224
225
226
227
228
229

230
231
232

240
241
242

250
251
252
253

254
255

260
261
262
263
268
269

270

Note

V.3b

V.5b

Ve

V.i2
V.13

V.2b
V.2c

V.ic

V.8b
V.14

Ending balance Beginning balance
3.344.949.012.176 1.660.985.177.794
774.179.111.768 779.533.574.404
209.565.745.807 305436412443
474.613.361.961 474.097.161.961
547.621.737.801 581.973.078.650
531.904.880.087 563.936.660.633
[ 161.409.656.965 1.152.777.143.553
(629.504.776.878) (588.840.482.920)
15.716.857.714 18.036.418.017
20.277.951.720 J0.242.427.840
{13.561.094.006) (12.206.009.823)
514.518.114.492 672.586.482.811
540.299.639.700 728.378.745.510
{25.781.525.208) (55.792.262.699)
642.559.160.164 362.726.576.541
642.375.160.164 359.977.426.945
184.000.000 2.749.149.596
834.646.279.268 223.600.000.000
807.646.279.268 .
27.000.000.000 227.000.000.000
- (3.400.000.000)
31,424.608.683 40.565.465.388
31.424.608.683 40.565.465.388
7.842.669.672.677 6.403.754.434.823
—_——r————— T
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ITEMS
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Short-term trade payables

Short-term advances from customers

Taxes and other cbligations to the State Budget
Payables to employees

Short-term accrued expenses

Short-term inter-company payables

Payables according to the pregress of construction
contracts

Short-term unearned revenue
Other shori-term pavables
Short-term borrowings and financial leases

. Provisions for short-term payables

Bonus and welfare funds
Price stabilization fund

. Trading Government bonds

MNon-current liabilities

Long-term trade payables

Long-term advances from customers
Long-term accrued expenses
Inter-company payables for working capital
Long-term inter-company payables
Long-term unearned revenue

Other long-term payables

Long-term borrowings and financial leases
Convertible bonds

. Preferred shares
. Deferred income tax liability
. Provisions for long-term payables

Science and technology development fund

(o) 2024

Code

Joo

310
i
in
313
il4
315
ils

37
318
39
320
21
322
323
324

330
k]|
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343

Nate

V.15
V.16
V.17
V.18
V.19

V.20
V.iie

V.22

V.15b

V.23
V.20b
V.2lb

Ending balance

Beginning balance

2.691.231.904.88)

2.089.227.766.583
696.679.853.380
10.808.976.400
28.374.546.566
9.727.065.901
282.529.571.822

-

60.740.990
350.137.871.332
646.866.826.138

64.042.314.054

602.006.138.300
18.838.742.400

-

11.904.073.192
24.482.362.708
546.780.960.000

1.580.167.597.651

2.317.793.109.768
491.513.970.332
6.685.614.848
194.955.961.297
11.268.090.860
357.409.232.762

6.281.956
436.639.601.756
781.193.167.208

58.121.188.749

-

262.374.487.883
18.838.742.400

8.495.971.080
25.003.272.401
210.032.500.000

ITEMS Code
D- OWNER'S EQUITY 400
. Owner's equity 410
I. Owner's capital 411
- Ovrdinary shares carrying voting rights 4fla
- Preferred shares 4i1b
2. Share premiums 412
3. Bond conversion options 413
4. Other sources of capital 414
5. Treasury stocks 415
6. Differences on asset revaluation 416
7. Foreign exchange differences 417
8. Investment and development fund 418
9. Business arrangement supporting fund 419
10. Other funds 420
11. Retnined earnings 421
- Retained earnings accumulated
1o the end of the previous period 42la
= Retained earmings of the current period 4216
12. Construction investment fund 422
13. Benefits of non-controlling sharcholders 429
[I. Other sources and funds 430
1. Sources of expenditure 431
2. Fund to form fixed assets 432
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY 440
7@59/— (_LH’
Luong Thi Ngoc Trinh Bui Thi Thuy
Preparer Chief Accountant

Note

V.24

V.24

V.24

V.24

Ending balance

Beginning balance

5.151,435.767.794
5.151.435.767.794

3.777.483.840.000
3777483 840.000

211.326.226.000

10.801.285.907
712.480.326.882
439.344.085.005

73.894.215.358
I63.449.873.647

3.823.586.837.172

3.823.586.837.172
2.518.325.090.000
2.518.325.090.000

211.326.226.000

10.801.285.907

£16.310.109.226

-

466.824.126.039

466.824.126.019

7.842.669.672.677

Chief Executive Officer

6.403,754.434.823




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

10.
11
12
13
14.
15.
16,
17.
14.
19

20.
1.

22,

Unit VND
ITEMS Code  Note Current year Previous vear

Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of VL1
services 01 1.026.332.766.569 1.515.697.523.598
Revenue deductions 02 vi2 6.073.906.698 21.353.513.686
Net revenue 10 1.020.258.859.871 1.494.344.009.912
Cost of sales 11 VL3 561.893.443.009 843.676.,485.713
Gross profit 20 458.365.416.862 650.667.524.199
Financial income 21 Vi4 4.232.101.866 4.718.783.864
Financial expenses 22 VLS 54.754.111.349 71.507.449.032
In which: Loan interest expenses 23 45.352.507.564 T71.688.784.363
Gain or loss in joint ventures, associates 24 V.lb 121.669.299.256 a
Selling expenses 25 V.G 32713104498 37.268.971.708
General and administration expenses 26 VI 76.257.259.022 63.545.736.704
Net operating profit k1] 410.542.343.115 483.074.150.619
Other income 31 VI8 14.327.581.195 18.330.308.237
Other expenses 32 V1.9 19.978.778.504 17.011.811.260
Other profit/{loss) 40 (5.651.197.309) 11.318.496.977
Total accounting profit before tax 50 414.891.145.806 494.392.647.596
Current income tax 5] V.17 60.753.2152.321 99.539.754.629
Deferred income tax 52 = =
Profit after tax 60 354.137.893.485 394.852.892.967
—_—
Profit after tax of the Parent Company 6l 354.137.893.485 J94.852.802.967
Profit after tax of non-controlling shareholders 62 = '
Basic earnings per share 0 VL0 931 1.458

S ———
Diluted earnings per share n VL0 931 1.458
.,
‘ i1 T -"a :
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{Indirect method)
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

o it |
By T P
Luong Thi Ngoe Trinh Bui Thi Thuy \?ﬂ“ anh Hung
Preparer Chiel Accountant Chiel Executive Officer

W C2) 2024

Unit: VIND

Previous vear

494.392.647. 596

5§9.323.099.501
(342,719.294)

8.286.939
(4.362.636.922)
T1.688.784 363

620.707.442.183
(%9.988.881.089)

487.501.568.131
(547.632.776.140)

{30.425.251.708)

(74.842.822.324)
(43.260.641.130)

(20.645.301.841)

291.412.136.062

(24.379.917.400)

(16.500.000.000)

13.505.000.000
(200.000.000.000)
10.000.000.000
4.268.953.416

ITEMS Code Note Current year
Cash flows from operating activities
Profiv/(loss) before tax o1 414.891. 145,806
Adjusiments
Depreciation{ Amortizalion) of fixed assets and
investment properties 02 vev.IoV.I 66.252.231.37)
Provisions and allowances 03 V.2h V.6 849.201.797
Exchange gain/(loss) due to revaluation of
monetary items in forcign currencies 04 Via:VLs (45.539.444)
Cain/{loss) from investing activitics 05 V.2b VI4; VLS (131.504.565.872)
Loan interest expenses 06 VLS 45.352.507.564
Others a7
Operating profitfloss) before
changes of working capital s J305.794.981.224
Increase/{decrease) of receivables 09 113.063 505.679
Increase/{decrease) of inventorics 10 (1.196.715.936.595)
Increase/{decrease) of payables B 133.016.616.966
Increase/{decrease) of prepaid expenses 12 7.780.315.022
Increase/{decrease) of trading securities 13 .
Interests paid 14 V.19 V1S (51.560.933.394)
Corporate income tax paid 15 V.7 (173.871.765.201)
Other cash inflows 16 -
Crther cash outflows 17 v (24.414.698.920)
Net cash flows from operating activitiex 20 (796.907.915.21%)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases and construction of fixed assets
and other non-current assets 21 V.av.ov.11; (56.915.555.433)
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets VALV
and other non-gurrent assels 2 VO VIO VIE 25864114 .545
Cash outflow for lending, buving debt instruments
of other entities 23 V.2a ( 10.500.000.000)
Cash recovered from lending, selling debt instruments
af other entities 24 V.2a 9.000.000.000
Investments in other entities 25 V.2b (484.165.000.000)
Withdrawals of investments in other entities 26 -
Interest earned, dividends and profits received 27 V.5 Via 3.B84.430.685
Net cash fTows from investing activities kL) (512.832.010.203)

(213.105.963.984)




ITEMS Code

11, Cash Mows from financing activities

|. Proceeds from issuing stocks and capital contributions
from owners

1. Repayment for capital contributions and re-purchases

of stocks already issued

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment for loan principal

Payments for financial lease principal

Dividends and profit paid to the owners

P LN L

Net cash flaws from financing activities

Net cash Mlows during the year

Beginning cash and cash equivalents

Effects of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates

Ending cash and cash equivalents

Al

Luong Thi Ngoc Trinh Bui Thi Thuy
Preparer Chiel Accountant

) 2024

3
2
1]
L
15
36

40

&l

T0

Note Current year Previous yvear

V.24a 1.259.158.750.000

V.2l 1.338.031.587.043 369.465.193.822

vl {1.137.256.968.113) (389.429.145.401)
V.20,V.24 (354.498.043.500) (119.354.500)

1.105,435.325.430 20.083.346.07%)

(204.104.599.992) 58.223.025.999
V.1 284.172.959.342 225.958.220.282
45.539.444 (8.286.939)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal vear ended 31 December 2024

I.  GENERAL INFORMATION
1.  Ownership form
Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company"”
or “the Parent Company™) is a joint stock company,
2.  Operating field
The Company’s operating fields are servicing, trading real estate and construction.
3.  Principal business activities
The Company's principal business activities are to maintain, repair and operate toll stations; to construct
civil and industrial works; to provide real estate brokerage, valuation, trading floor, consultancy,
auction, advertising, management and trading services.
4.  Normal operating cycle
The normal operating cycle of the Company is within 12 months. Particularly, the operating cycle of
real estate projects depends on each business plan.
S.  Effects of the Group's operation during the year on the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Group's revenue and profit during the year decreased sharply against the previous year, mainly due
to the challenges in the real estate market.
6.  Structure of the Group
The Group includes the Parent Company and 3 subsidiaries under the control of the Parent Company,
All subsidiaries are consolidated in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
6a. Information on the Group's restructuring
During the year, the Group has no additional acquisition, liquidation or divestment at its subsidiaries.
6b.  List of subsidiaries to be consolidated
Benefit rate Voting rate
Principal business Ending Beginning Ending Beginning
Subsidiaries Address activities balance balance balance balance
Becamex Becamex Hotel, No.  Operating restaurants and
Hospitality 230 Binh Duong providing catering, event

Company Limited Avenue, Thu Dau Mot organization, hotel

Becamex Trade
Company Limited 230 Binh Duong

WTC Binh Duong B11, Hung Vuong
One Member
Fompnny Limited Thu Dau Mot City,
")

City, Binh Duong
Province.

services. acting as an

airline and train ticket

agent. 100%  100%  100%  100%
Becamex Tower, No.  Operating trade centers,

providing tourism,

Avenue, Thu Dau Mot passenger transport

City, Binh Duong services, acting as an

Province. airline and train ticket

agent. 100%  100% 100%  100%
Providing management

Street, Hoa Phu Ward, consultancy, advertising,

organizing trade

Binh Duong Province. introduction and

promotion. 100%  100% 100%  100%




" On |8 February 2022, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company approved the Resolution No.
01/NQ-HPQT on transferring its entire share capital at WTC Binh Duong One Member Company
Limited to Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock Corporation. The Parent Company and
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock Corporation are currently carrying out procedures
to complete this transfer of capital.

6c.  Associate reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements by the equity method

Ownership rate Voling rate

Ending Beginning Ending Beginning
Associate Address Principal business activities  balance balence  balance  balance
Becamex Binh Highway 14, Minh Thanh Investing and trading in real
Phuoc Ward, Chon Thanh eslate
Infrastructure Town, Binh Phuoc
Development Joint Province
Stock Company I - 3%

7. Statement of information comparability on the Consolidated Financial Statements
The corresponding figures of the previous year can be comparable with figures of the current year.

8. Headcount

As of the balance sheet date, the Group's headcount is 768 (headcount at the beginning of the year:
775).

II. FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

1.  Fiscal year
The fiscal year of the Group is from 01 January to 31 December annually.

2.  Accounting currency unit

The accounting currency unit is Vietnamese Dong (VND) because the Group's transactions are
primarily made in VND.

III. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

1.  Accounting System
The Group applies the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System, which were issued together with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014
guiding the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21
March 2016, the Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 guiding the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements as well as other Circulars guiding implementation

of Vietnamese Accounting Standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparation and presentation of the
Consclidated Financial Statements.

2.  Statement of the compliance with the Accounting Standards and System

The Board of Management ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, which were issued together with the Circular
No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March
20186, the Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 as well as other Circulars guiding
the implementation of the Accounting Standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

s ) 2024

IV. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

Accounting convention
All the Consaolidated Financial Statements are prepared on the accrual basis (except for the information
related to cash flows).

Consolidation bases

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of the Parent Company and
those of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an enterprise that is controlled by the Parent Company. The
control exists when the Parent Company has the power to directly or indirectly govern the financial and
operating policies of the subsidiary to obtain economic benefits from its activities. In determining the
control power, the potential voting right arising from options or debt and capital instruments that can be
converted into common shares as of the balance sheet date should also be taken into consideration.

The financial performance of subsidiaries, which are acquired or disposed during the year, is included

in the Consolidated Income Statement from the date of acquisition or disposal of investments in those
subsidiaries.

The Financial Statements of the Parent Company and those of subsidiaries used for consolidation are
prepared in the same fiscal year and apply consistently accounting policies to the same types of
transactions and events in similar circumstances. In the case that the accounting policy of a subsidiary
is different from the accounting policy applied consistently in the Group, the Financial Statements of
that subsidiary will be properly adjusted before being used for the preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Intra-group balances in the Balance Sheet and intra-group transactions and unrealized profits resulting

from these transactions must be completely eliminated. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are also eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Benefits of non-controlling shareholders reflect profit or loss and net assets of subsidiary, which are not
hold by the Group and presented in a separate item of the Consolidated Income Statement and
Consolidated Balance Sheet (classified under “Owner's equity”). Benefits of non-controlling
shareholders include the values of their non-controlling benefits at the initial date of business
combination and those arise within the ranges of changes in owner’s equity from the date of business
combination. The losses arising in the subsidiaries are attributed equally to the ownership rate of non-

controlling shareholders, even if such losses are higher than the interest owned by these shareholders in
net assets of the subsidiaries,

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the actual exchange rates ruling as of the transaction

dates. The ending balances of monetary items in foreign currencies are converted at the actual exchange
rates ruling as of the balance sheet date.

Foreign exchange differences arisen from foreign currency transactions during the vear shall be included
into financial income or financial expenses. Foreign exchange differences due to the revaluation of
ending balances of the monetary items in foreign currencies after offsetting their positive differences
against negative differences shall be included into financial income or financial expenses.

The exchange rate used to convert foreign currency transactions is the actual exchange rate ruling as at

the time of these transactions. The actual exchange rates applied to foreign currency transactions are as

follows:

s  For the foreign currency trading contract (including spot contract, forward contract, future contract,
option contract, currency swap): the exchange rate stipulated in the contracts of trading foreign
currency between the Group and the Bank.

w
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¢ For capital contribution made or received: the buying rate of the bank where the Group opens its
account to receive capital contributed from investors as of the date of capital contribution.

e For receivables: the buying rate ruling as at the time of transaction of the commercial bank where
the Group designates the customers to make payments.

e For payables: the selling rate ruling as at the time of transaction of the commercial bank where the
Group supposes to make payments.

» For acquisition of assets or immediate payments in foreign currency (not included into payable
accounts): the buying rate of the commercial bank where the Group makes payments,

The exchange rate used to re-evaluate the ending balances of monetary items in foreign currencies which
only include cash in foreign currencies is the buying rate of Joint Stock Commercial
Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam (BIDV) where the Group frequently conducts
transactions,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term investments of which
the due dates do not exceed 3 months from the dates of the investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value as of the balance
sheet date.

Financial investments
Held-to-maturity investments
Investments are classified as held-to-maturity investments that the Group intends and is able to hold to

maturity. The Group's held-to-maturity investments only include term deposits for the purpose of
receiving periodical interest.

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at cost including the acquisition cost and other
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these investments are recorded at recoverable value. Interest
from these held-to-maturity investments after acquisition date is recognized in the profit or loss on the
basis of the interest income to be received. Interest arising prior to the Group's acquisition of held-to-
maturity investments is deducted to the costs as at the acquisition time.

When there are reliable evidence proving that a part or the whole investment cannot be recovered and
the loss is reliably determined, the loss is recognized as financial expenses during the year while the
investment value is derecognized.

Investments in equity instruments of other entities

Investments in equity instruments of other entities include such investments in equity instruments that
do not enable the Group to have the control, joint control or significant influence on these entities.

Investments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognized at costs, including cost of
acquisition plus other directly attributable transaction costs. Dividends incurred prior to the acquisition
of investments are deducted into investment costs. Dividends incurred after the acquisition of
investments are recorded into the Group's financial income.

Provisions for impairment of investments in equity instruments of other entities are made as follows:

* For investments in listed shares or fair value of investments which is reliably measured, provisions
are made on the basis of the market value of shares.

* For investments of which the fair value cannot be measured at the time of reporting, provision is
made based on the losses suffered by investees, with the amount defined by the difference between
owners' actual contributed capital and the total owners' equity as of the balance sheet date
multiplied (x) by the Group's rate of charter capital owning in these investees.

T :) 2024

Increases/(decreases) in the provisions for impairment of investments in equity instruments of other
entities as of the balance sheet date are recorded into financial expenses.

Receivables
Receivables are recognized at the carrying amounts less allowances for doubtful debts.

The classification of receivables as trade receivables and other receivables is made according the

following principles:

¢ Trade receivables reflect receivables conceming the commercial nature arising from purchase and
sale transactions between the Group and customers who are independent to the Group.

e Other receivables reflect receivables not concerning the commercial nature and irrelevant to
purchase and sale transactions.

Allowance is made for each doubtful debt on the basis of estimated loss.

Increases/(decreases) in the obligatory allowance for doubtful debts as of the balance sheet date are
recorded into general and administration expenses.

Inventories
Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Cost of inventories is determined as follows:

* For materials and merchandise: Costs comprise costs of purchases and other directly relevant costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditions.

*  Work-in-process: Costs comprise costs for land use right, construction costs, direct costs and general
costs arising for the property investment and construction.

¢  For real estate: Costs comprise all costs directly relevant to the investment and construction of real
estate to make the real estate ready for sale.

Stock-out costs are determined in accordance with the first-in first-out method and recorded in line with
the perpetual method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories in the ordinary year of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Allowance for devaluation of inventories is recognized for each type of inventories when their costs are
higher than their net realizable values. For services in progress, allowance is recognized for each type
of services at their own specific prices. Increases/(decreases) in the obligatory allowance for devaluation
of inventories as of the balance sheet date are recorded into costs of sales.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses comprise actual expenses incurred and relevant to financial performance in several
fiscal years. Prepaid expenses of the Group mainly include tools, expenses of Highway 13 maintenance
and repair, and automatic toll collection devices. These prepaid expenses are allocated over the
prepayment period or period in which corresponding benefits are realized.

Tools

Expenses of tools being put into use are allocated into costs in accordance with the straight-line method
for the maximum period of 3 years.
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1.

Expenses of Highway 13 maintenance and repair
Expenses of Highway 13 maintenance and repair are allocated into costs in accordance with the straight-
line method for the maximum period of 3 years.

Operating leased assets

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident
to ownership belonging to the lessor. The lease expenses are allocated in the Group’s operation costs in
accordance with the straight-line method over the lease term and do not depend on the method of lease
payment.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are determined by their historical costs less accumulated depreciation. Historical
costs of tangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Group to bring the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Other expenses arising subsequent to initial recognition are included into
historical costs of fixed assets only if it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of these assets. Those which do not meet
the above conditions will be recorded into operation costs during the year,

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are
written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated in accordance with the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The depreciation years applied are as follows:

Fixed assets Years
Buildings and structures 05-50
Machinery and equipment 05-10
Vehicles 06-10
Office equipment 05-10

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are determined by their initial costs less accumulated amortization.

Initial costs of intangible fixed assets include all the costs paid by the Group to bring the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Other costs relevant to intangible fixed assets arising subsequent
to initial recognition are included into operation costs during the year only if these costs are associated

with a specific intangible fixed asset and result in future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of these assets.

When an intangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its initial costs and accumulated amortization are

written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

The Group's intangible fixed assets include:

Land use right
Land use right includes all the actual expenses paid by the Group directly related to the land being used.
Land use right is amortized in accordance with the straight-line method in 50 years.

Research and development costs

Research costs which are spent for the purpose of obtaining new scientific or technical knowledge and
understandings are included into the Group's expenses when these costs are incurred.

(o) 2024
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Development costs related to the application of research findings to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially renovated products prior to the commencement of commercial production or use
are capitalized if, and only if, the Group can demonstrate all of the followings:

» the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for intended
use or sale,

the Group's intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

the Group's ability to use or sell that intangible asset.

the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset.

¢ the Group’s ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

Development costs capitalized include material costs, direct labor costs, directly attributable costs to
generate intangible asset, and part of general expenses which are reasonably and consistently allocated.
Other development costs are included into expenses as actually incurred.

Development costs capitalized are amortized in accordance with the straight-line method in 10 years.

Computer software
Expenses attributable to computer software, which is not a part associated with the relevant hardware,
will be capitalized. Costs of computer software include all the expenses paid by the Group until the date
the software is put into use. Computer software is amortized in accordance with the straight-line method
from 5 to 20 years.

Investment properties

Investment property is property which is land use right, a building or part of a building, infrastructure
held by the Group or by the lessee under a finance lease to earn rentals. Investment properties are
measured at their historical costs less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes all the expenses
paid by the Group or the fair value of other considerations given to acquire the assets up to the date of
its acquisition or construction.

Expenses related to investment property arising subsequent to initial recognition should be added to the
historical cost of the investment property when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing investment property, will flow to the
Group.

When the investment property is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are
written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposals is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

The transfer from owner-occupied property or inventories into investment property shall be made when,
and only when, there is a change in use evidenced by the end of owner-occupation and the
commencement of an operating lease to another party or the end of construction. The transfer from
investment property o owner-occupied property or inventories shall be made when, and only when,
there is a change in use evidenced by the commencement of owner-occupation or the commencement
of development with a view to sale. The transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property
or inventories does not change the historical cost or carrying value of investment property at the date of
transfer.

Investment property for lease is depreciated in accordance with the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. The depreciation years of the investment property are 50 years.
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Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress reflects the expenses (including relevant loan interest expenses following the
accounting policies of the Group) directly attributable to assets under construction, machinery and
equipment under installation for purposes of production, leasing and management as well as the repair
of fixed assets in progress. These assets are recorded at historical costs and not depreciated.

Business combination and goodwill

The business combination is accounted by applying acquisition method. The costs of business
combination include the fair values as at the acquisition date of the exchanged assets, the incurred or
assumed liabilities as well as the equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any cost directly attributable to the business combination. The acquired assets, the
identifiable and contingent liabilities assumed from the business combination are recognized at their fair
values as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination covers some accounting periods, the cost of business combination equals
the total investment made at the date of obtaining the control of subsidiaries plus the amount of previous
investments which are re-evaluated at fair value as at the date of obtaining the control of subsidiaries.
The difference between the re-evaluated amount and the cost of investment shall be recorded in the
financial performance provided that the Group does not have any significant influence on subsidiaries
prior the date of obtaining the control and the investment in subsidiaries is presented in line with the
cost method. In case where the Group has significant influence on the subsidiaries prior the date of
obtaining the control the investment in subsidiaries is presented in line with the equity method, the
difference between the re-evaluated amount and the cost of investment determined in line with the equity
method shall be recorded in the financial performance; and the difference between the investment
determined in line with the equity method and the cost of investment shall be directly recorded in
“Retained earnings” of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The benefit of non-controlling shareholders as at the date of business combination is initially measured
on the basis of the ownership share of non-controlling shareholders in the fair values of the assets, the
liabilities and the inherent liabilities recognized.

Contractual arrangement
Jaintly controlled operations

In respect of its interest in jointly controlled operations, the Group shall recognize in its Consolidated
Financial Statements:

e the assets that the Group controls.
e the liabilities that the Group incurs.

e the Group earns from the sale of goods or services by the joint venture.
* the expenses that the Group incurs.

Payables and accrued expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recorded for the amounts payable in the future associated with the
goods and services received. Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates for the
amounts payable.

The classification of payables as trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables is made on the

basis of following principles:

¢ Trade payables reflect payables of commercial nature arising from the purchase of goods, services,
or assets, of which the seller is an independent entity with the Group.

* Accrued expenses reflect expenses for goods, services received from suppliers or supplied to
customers but have not been paid, invoiced or lack of accounting records and supporting documents;
pay on leave payable to employees; and accrual of operation expenses.
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o Other payables reflect payables of non-commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase, sales of goods
or provisions of services.

The payables and accrued expenses are classified as short-term and long-term items in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet on the basis of their remaining term as of the balance sheet date.

Ordinary bonds
Ordinary bonds are bonds that cannot be converted into shares.

The carrying value of ordinary bonds is reflected on the net value of the face value minus discount and
plus bond premium.

The Group follows discount and premium for each type of issued ordinary bonds and the allocation of
each discount and premium when determining borrowing costs included into expenses or capitalized for
each period. Details are as follows:

* Bond discounts are gradually allocated into borrowing costs for each period during the term of
bonds.

* Bond premiums are gradually allocated as a decrease into borrowing costs for each period during
the term of bonds.

The Group may choose to apply the effective interest method or straight-line method to allocate

discounts or premiums:

* For the effective interest method, discounts or premiums are allocated to each period by the
differences between the interest expenses payable in each interest payment period (calculated by the
beginning balance of the bonds multiplied by the actual market interest rate) with the amount
payable for each period.

¢ For straight-line method: discounts or premiums are gradually allocated throughout the term of
bonds.

Issuing costs of convertible bonds are allocated matching the term of bonds under the straight-line
method or the effective interest rate method and recognized in financial expenses or capitalized.

Owner's equity

Owner's capital

The contributed capital is recorded according to the actual amounts invested by shareholders of the
Company.

Share premiums

Share premiums are recorded in accordance with the difference between the issuance price and face
value upon the [PO, additional issue or the difference between the re-issuance price and carrying value
of treasury shares and the equity component of convertible bonds upon maturity date. Expenses directly
related to the additional issue of shares and the re-issuance of treasury shares are recorded as a decrease
in share premiums.

Profit distribution

Profit after tax is distributed to the shareholders after appropriation for funds under the Charter of the
Company as well as legal regulations and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The distribution of profits to the shareholders is made with consideration toward non-cash items in the
retained earnings that may affect cash flows and payment of dividends such as profit due to revaluation
of assets contributed as investment capital, profit due to revaluation of monetary items, financial
instruments and other non-cash items.
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Dividends are recorded as pavables upon approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Recognition of revenue and income

Revenue from sales of merchandise

Revenue from sales of merchandise shall be recognized when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

« The Group transfers most of risks and benefits incident to the ownership of merchandise to
customers.

* The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the merchandise sold.

¢ The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contracts stipulate that buyers have the
right to return merchandise purchased under specific conditions, the revenue is recorded only when
those specific conditions are no longer exist and buyers retains no right to return merchandise
(except for the case that such returns are in exchange for other goods or services).

o The Group received or shall probably receive the economic benefits associated with sale
transactions.

* The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the sale transaction can be measured reliably,

Revenue from provisions of services

Revenue from provisions of services shall be recognized when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer is
entitled to return the services provided under specific conditions, the revenue is recognized only
when these specific conditions are no longer existed and the buyer is not entitled to return the
services provided.

¢ The Group received or shall probably receive the economic benefits associated with the provision
of services.

* The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of reporting period can be measured reliably.

¢ The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably.

In the case that the services are provided in several accounting periods, the determination of revenue is
done on the basis of the volume of work done as of the balance sheet date.

Revenue from sales of real estare
Revenue from sales of real estate that invested by the Group shall be recognized when all of the
following conditions are satisfied:

¢  The real estate is fully completed and handed over to the buyers, and the Group transfers most of
risks and benefits incident to the ownership of real estate to the buyer.

¢ The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the real estate sold.

* The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
¢ The Group received or shall probably receive the economic benefits associated with the transaction.
¢ The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

In case the customer has the right to complete the interior of the real estate and the Group completes the
interiors according to the designs, models as requested by customer under a separate contract on interior
completion, revenues are recognized upon the completion and handover of the main construction works
to customers.
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Revenue from operating lease

Revenue from operating lease is recognized in accordance with the straight-line method during the lease
term. Rentals received in advance for several periods are allocated to revenues in consistence with the
lease term.

Interest
Interest is recorded, based on the term and the actual interest rate applied in each particular period.

Dividends and profit shared
Dividends and profit shared are recognized when the Group has the right to receive dividends or profit
from the capital contribution.

Construction contract
Construction contract is a contract agreed for acquisition of an asset or combined assets closely relevant
or mutually dependent on their design, technology, function or basic using purpose.

When the results of the contract implementation can be estimated reliably:

* For construction contracts in which the contractor is entitled to pay according to construction
progress: revenue and expenses relevant to the contracts are recognized to corresponding completed
assignment determined by the Group as of the balance sheet date.

¢ For construction contract in which the contractor is entitled to pay according to volume of work
done: revenue and expenses relevant to the contracts are recognized to corresponding completed
assignment confirmed by customer and are reflected in the invoices.

Increases/Decreases in construction volume, compensations and other receivables are only recognized
into revenue when these are mutually agreed with the customer.

When the results of the contract implementation cannot be estimated reliably:

* The revenue is only recognized equivalent to the contract’s expenses and the payment is relatively
reliable.

¢ The Contract's expenses are only recognized as the expenses when they occur,

Difference between total accumulated revenue from construction contract recognized and the
accumulated amount in the invoice of payment under the contract plan is recognized as receivable or
payable under the contract plan.

Revenue deductions

Revenue deductions only include sales returns incurred in the same period of providing products,
merchandise, services in which revenues are derecognized.

In case of products, merchandise, services provided in the previous years but sales returns incurred in
the current year, revenues are derecognized as follows:

» If sales returns incur prior to the release of the Consolidated Financial Statements, revenues are
derecognized on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current year.

e If sales returns incur after the release of the Consolidated Financial Statements, revenues are
derecognized on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the following year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group directly incurs in connection with the
borrowing,

o




24,

25.

Borrowing costs are recorded as an expense when it is incurred. In case the borrowing costs are directly
attributable to the construction or the production of an asset in progress, which takes a substantial period
of time (over 12 months) to get ready for intended use or sales of the asset, these costs will be included
in the cost of that asset. To the extent that the borrowings are especially for the purpose of construction
of fixed assets and investment properties, the borrowing cost is eligible for capitalization even if
construction period is under 12 months. Incomes arisen from provisional investments as loans are
recognized as a decrease in the costs of relevant assets.

In the event that general borrowings are partly used for the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset in progress, the costs eligible for capitalization will be determined by applying the capitalization
rate to average accumulated expenditure on construction or production of that asset. The capitalization
rate is computed at the weighted average interest rate of the borrowings not yet paid during the year,
except for particular borrowings serving the purpose of obtaining a specific asset.

Expenses
Expenses are those that result in outflows of the economic benefits and are recorded at the time of

transactions or when incurrence of the transaction is reliable regardless of whether payment for expenses
is made or not.

Expenses and their corresponding revenues are simultaneously recognized in accordance with matching
principle. In the event that matching principle conflicts with prudence principle. expenses are recognized
based on the nature and regulations of accounting standards in order to guarantee that transactions can
be fairly and truly reflected.

Corporate income tax
Corporate income tax includes current income tax and deferred income tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is the tax amount computed based on the taxable income. Taxable income is different
from accounting profit due to the adjustments of temporary differences between tax and accounting
figures, non-deductible expenses as well as those of non-taxable income and losses brought forward.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is the amount of corporate income tax payable or refundable due to temporary
differences between book values of assets and liabilities serving the preparation of the Financial
Statements and the values for tax purposes. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all the
temporary taxable differences. Deferred income tax assets are recorded only when there is an assurance

on the availability of taxable income in the future against which the temporarily deductible differences
can be used.

Carrying values of deferred corporate income tax assets are considered as of the balance sheet date and
will be reduced to the rate that ensures enough taxable income against which the benefits from part of
or all of the deferred income tax can be used. Deferred corporate income tax assets, which have not been
recorded before, are considered as of the balance sheet date and are recorded when there is certainly
enough taxable income to use these unrecognized deferred corporate income tax assets.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are determined at the estimated rate to be
applied in the year when the assets are recovered or the liabilities are settled based on the effective tax
rates as of the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax is recognized in the Income Statement. In the
case that deferred income tax is related to the items of the owner's equity, corporate income tax will be
included in the owner's equity.
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The Group shall offset deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if:
e The Group has the legal right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities; and
e Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are relevant to corporate income tax
which is under the management of one tax authority either:
- Of the same subject to corporate income tax; or
- The Group has intention to pay current income tax liabilities and current income tax assets on a
net basis or recover tax assets and settle tax liability simultaneously in each future period to the
extent that the majority of deferred income tax liabilities or deferred income tax assets are paid
or recovered.

Related parties

A party is considered a related party of the Group in case that party is able to control the Group or to
cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as the operations of the Group. A party is also
considered a related party of the Group in case that party is under the same control or is subject to the
same material effects.

Considering the relationship of related parties, the nature of relationship is focused more than its legal
form.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in manufacturing or
providing products or services and that is subject to risks and retums that are different from those of
other business segments.

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in manufacturing
or providing products or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic environments.

The segment information is prepared and presented in conformity with the accounting policies
applicable to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents

Ending balance Beginning balance
Cash on hand 2.020.401.804 2.120.295.395
Cash in banks 63.806.425.753 240.015.710.964
Cash in transit 87.071.237 36.952.983
Cash equivalents (bank deposits of which the
principal maturity is from 3 months or less) 14.000.000.000 42.000.000.000
Tatal 79.913.898.794 284.172.959.342

Financial investments

The financial investments of the Group include held-to-maturity investments and investments in other
entities. The Group's financial investments are as follows:

Held-to-maturity investments
This item reflects bank deposits of which the principal maturity is more than 3 months to 12 months.
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Investments in associate

According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 3800405138, amended for the 10® time on 12
November 2024, granted by Binh Phuoc Province Department of Planning and Investment, the
Company invests in Becamex Binh Phuoe Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company an amount
of VND 684.165.000.000, equivalent to 31,77% of charter capital. During the year, the Company
invested in Becamex Binh Phuoc Infrastructure Development Joint Stock Company an amount of VND
484.165.000.000. As of the balance sheet date, the Company invested VND 684.165.000.000,
equivalent to 31,77% of charter capital (beginning balance: VND 200.000.000.000, equivalent to 15%

i

(1)

On 25 February 2022, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company approved the Resolution No.
02/NQ-HBQT on acquiring 1.700.000 shares of Vietnam Technology & Telecommunication Joint
Stock Company at the total acquisition price of VND 17.000.000.000.

According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 3702291330, amended for the 3™ time on 21
October 2022, granted by Binh Duong Province Department of Planning and Investment, the Company
invests in Becamex International General Hospital Joint Stock Company an amount of VND
10.000.000.000, equivalent to 10% of charter capital.

of charter capital).

The value of the Group's ownership in the associate is as follows:
Beginning balance

Increase due to capital contribution

Increase due to change of ownership rate in the associate

Gain or loss during the year

Dividends and profit shared during the vear

Decrease due to the associate's appropriation for funds and the Board of
Directors’ remuneration

Decrease due to the associate's change of its ownership rate in subsidiary
Ending balance

Operation of the associate

200.000.000.000
484.165.000.000
22.517.793.326
121.669.299.256
(7.500.000.150)

(8.245.637.164)
(4.960.176.000)

807.646.279.268

The associate has been in the normal operation and has not experienced any significant change as

compared to that of the previous year.

Transactions with the associate

The Group has the following transactions with Becamex Binh Phuoc Infrastructure Development Jaint

Stock Company:
Current vear

Previous vear

Binh Phuoc workers® houses -

128.874.330.855

Fair value

The Group has not measured the fair value of the investments because there is no specific instruction on

measurement of fair value,

Provisions for investments in other entities

Changes in provisions for investments in other entities are as follows:

Current year Previous vear
Beginning balance 3.400.000.000 4.080.000.000
Reversal of provision (3.400.000.000) (680.000.000)
Ending balance - 3.400.000.000

3.  Trade receivables
Ja. Short-term trade receivables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Receivables from related parties 58.422.551.833 108.011.429.303
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock
Corporation 46.150.890.558 86.389.790.616

My Phuoc Hospital Joint Stock Company
Binh Duong Trade and Development Joint-Stock

8.493.397.500

8.493.397.500

Costs for leasing, managing and operating workers' 5.631.272.724 11.262.545.453
houses
Service provision 788.970.922 1.302.210
Capital contribution 484.165.000.000 -
Dividends shared 7.500.000.150 -
2e.  [Investments in other entities
Ending balance Beginning balance

Original Original

amount Provision amount Provision
Vietnam Technology &
Telecommunication Joint
Stock Company"” 17.000,000.000 - 17.000.000.000  (3.400.000.000)
Becamex International
General Hospital Joint
Stock Company™ 10.000.000.000 - 10.000.000.000 -
Becamex Binh Phuoc
Infrastructure Development
Joint Stock Company - - 200.000.000.000 -
Total 27.000.000.000 - 227.000.000.000  (3.400.000.000)
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Company 2.336.829.107 12.493.438.400
Becamex Binh Phuoc Infrastructure Development

Joint Stock Company 828.820.200 -
Eastern International University 267.029.061 287.649.240
Vietnam Technology & Telecommunication Joint

Stock Company 250.871.516 105.337.372
Becamex Tokyu Co., Ltd, 86.586.831 67.228.425
Vietnam - Singapore Industrial Park Joint Venture Co., Ltd. 6.437.400 137.730.000
Becamex Binh Dinh Joint Stock Company 1.689.660 -
Becamex Binh Duong Football Club Joint Stock

Company - 36.857.750
Receivables from other customers 336.916.190.116 528.947.737.652
Total 595.338.741.949 ﬂﬁ.ﬂiﬂ_ﬁ&.ﬂﬁﬁ

3b.  Long-term trade receivables

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Receivables from related parties 12.966.583.500 12.966.583.500
Becamex Urban Development Joint Stock Company 11.437.719.000 11.437.719.000
My Phuoc Hospital Joint Stock Company 999.652.500 699.652.500
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock

Corporation 529.212.000 529.212.000
Receivables from other customers 286.599,166.307 292.469.828.943
Total 299.565.749.807 305.436.412.443
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4.  Short-term prepayments to suppliers ) This is a business project cooperated with Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock

Ending balance Beginning balance Corporation to construct Becamex City Center with a total area of over 61.000m?, and a total investment
Prepayments to related party 106.000.600 106.000.000 of up to VND 2.500 billion. This project is a complex comprising offices, high-end apartments, trade
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock Corporation 106.000.000 106.000.000 center, 5-star hotel, entertainment area, parking lot, park, etc. and many other utilities. Some of the
Prepayments to other suppliers 5.959.421.040 3.279.890.022 project’s works have been completed and put into operation, while others are still under construction.
Sac Mau Trading Service Production Company Limited 1.494 288.170 -
Innovative Technology Development Corporation 891.340.380 891.340.380 6. Overdue debts
A.A.P Planning Architecture Consulting Company Limited 739.886.020 588.164.647 Ending balance Beginning balance
Binh Duong Power Company 493.218.856 493.218.856 Overdue Recoverable Overdue Original Recoverable
Other suppliets 2.340.687.614 1.307.166.139 —— period Original amount amount period amount amount
Total 6.065.421.040 3.385.890.022 s T
arganizations
5. Other receivables and
5a.  Other shori-term receivables individuals 9.015.278.650 4.428.816.147 1.124.202.354 786.941.648
Ending balance Beginning balance manﬁ:jr’g? From 6 months
Value Allowance Value Allowance - i w1
Receivables from related parties 29.284.538.871 - 22.141.336.104 . i SO (OSEARE (RSN i, USRS RN
Investment and l':ndustml Development Joint 2years  8.007.158.386  3.764.101.722
Stock Corporation - Profit shared from From 2 years
Becamex City Center project 27.703.478.871 - 16.185.034.893 - to 3 years 102,424 400 30.727.320
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Receivables for
Stock Corporation - Management fee sales of real
receivable 1.581.060.000 - 5.956.301.211 - estate 462.250.057.035 462.250.057.035 432.689.951.692 432.689.951.692
Receivables from other organizations and Less thas § kst than
individuals 10.086.534.108 . 12.115.270.224 " ;‘-’amh; 29.667.060.207 29.667.060.207 months 19.524.130.173  19.524.130.173
Corporate income tax provisionally paid for = umﬁ::rz ! i ik
the amount received in advance from the ) year 22.069.395.000  22.069.395.000 o [ year 29.580.071.250 29.580.071.250
transfer of property 119.040.732 - 79.545.185 . From 1 year to From | year to
Bank deposit interest to be received 294.172.050 - 452.411.508 - 2years 51.268.820.173 53.268.820.173 2years 85919.829.150 85.919.829.150
Advance to employees 818.226.927 - 1.510.226.842 - From 2 years From 2 years to
Short-term deposits and maortgages 440.000.000 - 2.363.221.000 - fo 3 years 75.306.322.150 75.306.322.150 3 years 35.811.722.450 35811.722.450
Other short-term receivables 8.415.094.399 - 7.709.865.689 - hioxe tan 3 More than 3
Total 39.371.072.979 - 34.256.606.318 = years 281.938.459.505 281.938.459.505 years 261.854.198.669 261.854.198.669
Taotal 471.265.335.685 466.678.873.182 433.814.154.046  433.476.893.340
5b.  Other long-term receivabies Eoding Naliacs R Changes in allowances for doubtful debts are as follows:
Value Allowance Value Allowance Beginni Current year Previous year
Receivables from related parties 474.328.361.961 - 473.812.161.961 . E"g'"“!“g e 337.260,706 5
livestmentt and Industrial Developmenit Joint xtannnn for allowance 4.249.201.797 337.260.706
Stock Corporation - Investment in Becamex Ending balance 4.586.462.503 337.260.706
City Center project " 473.602.061.961 - 473.602.061.96] -
Investment and Industrial Development Joint 7.  Inventories
Stock Corporation - Deposit for project Ending balance Beginning balance
management and construction 210.100.000 - 210.100.000 - Original costs _ Allowance Original costs __ Allowance
Becamex Binh Phuoc Infrastructure Materials and supplies 3.131.660.735 3.273.867.513 -
Development Joint Stock Company - Tools 1.807.036.335 1.814.742.339 -
Deposit for leasing houses 516.200.000 - - - Work-in-process " 3.665.323.498.011 2.747.120.743 498 -
Receivables from other organizations 285.000.000 - 285.000.000 - Real estate 11.057.252.817 11.543.542.017 =
Long-term deposits and mortgages 285.000.000 - 285.000.000 - Merchandise 1.441.165.622 1.738.725.807 -
Total 474.613.361.961 - 474.097.161.961 - Total 3.682.760.613.520 2.765.491.621.174 -
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) Work-in-process mainly includes costs of construction works such as townhouses, commercial areas,

villas, apartments, etc., in which the total carrying velue of work-in-process of Sunflower Villa B:ilr'::;ﬁ:_::d M::lﬂ:em'i"'fd Viiislas Mﬂiﬁr::nt ﬂm:;‘:::t" otal
(expanded part), Prince Town (expanded part) and other projects as of the balance sheet date is VND e
1.542.669.550.667 (beginning balance: VND 1.598.833.699.090). These projects are under Beginning balance 488.919.497.337  10354.593334 _ 6191046804 58438710658 32812500 _ 563.936.660.633
construction, so this item mostly reflects costs of receiving land use right transfer. Additionally, there Ending balance 456864809001  10.591820.769  6.070.839.343 . 58358848 474 21862800 | 531904 850,087
are some other costs such as costs for geological survey, rough construction of houses, construction of P B
traffic, drainage systems, capital costs, capitalized loan interest, etc. Fivn b lt;“pami]y -
in use &
Some work-in-process with a carrying amount of VND 5§96.265.535.747 have been mortgaged to secure Assets waiting for
loans from BIDV - Binh Duong Branch (see Note No. V.21). liquidation . - -
Total borrowing costs capitalized into work-in-process during the year are VND 15.305.757.788 10. Intangible fixed assets
(previous year: VIND 26.609.790.823). Research and
Computer development
8.  Prepaid expenses Land use right software costs Total
8a. Short-term prepaid expenses Initial costs
Ending balance Beginning balance Beginning balance 3.913.993.558 25.915.934.282 412.500.000 30.242.427.840
Tools 2.295.861.121 1.353.964.658 Acquisition during the year - 325.970.544 - 325.970.544
Other short-term prepaid expenses 3.104.954.476 2.686.309.256 Liquidation and disposal - (1.290.446.664) - (1.290.446.664)
Total £.400.815.597 4.040.273.914 Ending balance 3.911.993.558 24.951.458.162 412.500.000 29.277.951.720
In which:
8b.  Long-term prepaid expenses A?‘Isl‘,“ fully amortized but :
Endlng balance Beginning balance still in use - 4126345831 412.500.000 4,538.845.831
Tools 4.165.824.297 5.114.210.104 hsraitiea
Expenses of Highway 13 maintenance and repair 24.173.198.680 26.881.899.934 Beginning balance 136.989.783 11.677.145.040  391.875.000  12.206.009.823
Lcasmg‘and management costs of Binh Phuoc Amortization during the year 78.279.876  2.523.909.603 20.625.000 2.622.814.479
workers' houses 2.815.616.367 8.446.909.09] Liquidation and disposal - (1.267.730.296) - (1.267.730.296)
Other long-term prepaid expenses 269.949.339 122.446.259 Ending balance 215.269.659 12.933.324.347  412.500.000  13.561.094.006
Total 31.424.608.683 40.565.465.388
Carrying values
9.  Tangible fixed assets Beginning balance 3.777.003.775 14.238.789.242 20.625.000 18.036.418.017
Buildings and Machinery and Office Other tangible Eﬂdlﬂ.g balance 3.698.723.899 12.018.133.815 = 15.716.857.714
structures equipment Vehicles equipment fixed assets Tatal In which;
Historical costs Assets temporarily not in use . . :
Beginning balance 1.015898571.644 16609810622 14277473905 105.945.885.382 45.000.000 1.152.777.143.553 Assets waiting for
Acquisition during the liquidation -
year 18.082.147.545 2046623000  1.019.516728  7.614.750.275 28 763.037.548 . .
Completed
constructions 10.030,285.020 . ’ N 10.030.285.020 L1.  Investment property
Liquidation and disposal __ (25.780.674.157) - (455.626.455) (1.924.508.544) - (30.160.809.156) Investment property for lease
Ending balance 1.018.230.732.052  18.656.433.612  14.841.364.178 109.636.127.113 45.000.000 1.161.409.656.965 Accumulated
In which, o Historical costs depreciation Carrying values
Assets fully depreciated Beginning balance 728.378.745.510 55.792.262.699 672.586.482.811
but still in use 24.360.342.127  2.824.154951  4.348.379.865  27.580.487.727 - 59.113.364.670 Acquisition during the year 154.725.000
o ) ) ) ) ) A Transfer to inventories (3.142.852.149) (192.063.179)
q Depreciation during the yvear 12.536.636.568
Depreciation Liquidation and disposal (185.090.978.661)  (42.355.310.880)
Depreciation during the
year 40.479.760.855  1.809.395.565  1.139.724.189  7.652649.717 11.250.000 $1.092.780.326
Liquidation and disposal __ (6.093.314.111) - (455.626.455) (3.879.545.802) (10.428.486.368)
Ending balance 561.365.923.051  8.064.612.85)  8.770.524.835  51.280.278.639 23.437.500 _ 629.504.776.878

)
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List of investment properties as of the balance sheet date is as follows: 15. Trade payables

Accumulated 15a. Short-term trade payables
Historical costs depreciation Carrying values Ending balance Beginning balance
Commercial area of Aroma Payables to related parties 671.138.977.907 428.272.500.838
Apartment project 31.967.268.997 2.088.935.248 20.878.333.749 Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock
Workers' houses in Hoa Loi Corporation 667.726.443.671 398.054.580.334
Residence 475.659.231.049 21.282.735.757  454.376.495.292 Vietnam Technology & Telecommunication Joint Stock
Sunflower villas 32.673.139.654 2.409.854.203 30.263.285.451 Company _ 2.742.783.845 21.479.243.940
Total 540.299.639.700 25.781.525.208 514.518.114.492 Binh Duong Trade and Development Joint-Stock Company 541.635.391 2.770.361.564
Becamex Binh Phuoc Infrastructure Development Joint Stock
Some investment properties of which the carrying amount of land use right is VND 327.299.502.540 Company ‘ o : 5.840.200.000
have been mortgaged to secure loans from BIDV - Binh Duong Branch (see Note No. V.21). Eastern International University 128.115.000 128.115.000
Payables to other suppliers 25.540.875.473 63.241.469.494
According to Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 05 “Investment property”, it is required to present ACC Binh Duong Investment and Construction Joint Stock ;
fair value of investment property as of the balance sheet date. However, the Group has not had conditions Company o ) 4.339.419.295 3.815.283.043
10 measure rﬂir Vﬂ]uﬂ ﬂf inv&stmznt_ prﬂpﬂﬂ}’. Eal:h Fhu{}ng E"glmn"g SUI““U“ CO. Ltd-. - 4.] ?2.ﬂ25.4|ﬂ
Other suppliers 21.201.456.178 55.254.160.039
12. Long-term work-in-process Total 696.679.853.380 491.513.970.332

This item reflects expenses paid for the residence project at Hamlet 5C Lai Uyen and Hoa Loi

Resettlement Area project. 15b. Long-term trade payables

This item reflects payables for acquiring land from Binh Duong Trade and Development Joint-Stock

13. Construction-in-progress Company - a related party.
Inclusion into
Beginning  Increase during  fixed assets Ending I5c. Overdue debts
balance the year during the year balance The Group has no overdue trade payables.
Acquisition of fixed assets 184.000.000

184.000.000
) 16. Short-term advances from customers

Construction-in-progress 2.565.149.596  7.465.135.424 (10.030.285.020)

- Camfr‘w‘fﬂn ﬂfral'nwajfr Ending hl]lntﬂ nginl'.lillg hilinﬂ.‘
drainage system 2.565.149.596 _ 7.465.135.424 (10.030.285.020) - f;dvﬂﬂc?frﬂm f’”‘:’gﬂ""" _ g.g;.::g -
Total 2.749.149.596 _ 7.465.135.424 (10.030.285.020 184.000.000 astern International University 229, .
{ ) : Advances from other customers 10.802.746.834 6.685.614.848
Mr. Dam Van Khanh 1.187.577.000 1.187.577.000
14. Deferred income tax assets .
Oisrecogniced n.ff”:‘,d o e Hawa Development Corporation 792.860.250 792.860.250
The Group has not recognized deferred income tax assets for taxable losses of Becamex Hospitality Other customers 8.822.309.584 4.705.177.598
Company Limited. Total 10.808.976.400 6.685.614.848
Losses
carried 17.  Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget
forward as Amount
Loss carried determined Loss carried Beginning  payable during  Amount paid

Losses forward from by tax forward in the Remaining loss balance the year during the year Ending balance
incurred previous years  authorities current year  carried forward VAT on local sales 61.254909.059 24916014315 (83.500.492.924) 2.670.430450
2020 21.202.068.301 (10.700.614.148) (344.300.572) (1.287.333.895) 8.369.819.686 Corporate income tax (" 133.373.725.634 60.792.747.868 (173.871.765.201) 20.294.708.301
2021 0.437.121.549 - (12.993.047) - 0.424.128.502 Personal income tax 324,338.075 15.783.049.703 (10.698.766.668)  5.408.621.110
2023 921.625 - (921.625) : . Other taxes 2.988.529 872.582.876 (874.784.700) 786.705
Total 30.640.111.475 (10.700.614.148) (358.215.244)  (1.187.333.595) 18.293.948.188 Total 194.955.961.297 102.364.394.762 (268.945.809.493) 28.374.546.566

"

According to the current Law on Corporate Income Tax, the loss of any tax year is brought forward to
offset against the profit of the following years for the maximum period of 5 years from year after the
loss suffering year. Deferred income tax assets are not recognized for these accounts since there is little
possibility on the availability of taxable income in the future against which these accounts can be used.

) 2024

Corporate income tax payable during the year includes:

- Current corporate income tax 60.753.252.321
- Corporate income tax provisionally paid for the amount received in advance
from the transfer of property which was recognized in revenue during the year 19.495.547
Total 60.792.747.868




™4

18.

19.

Value added tax (VAT)

The Group companies have paid VAT in accordance with the deduction method. The tax rates applied
are as follows:

- Transfer of land use right MNot subject to tax
- Collection of water charges 5%
= Other activities'™ 10%

During the year, the Company applies the VAT rate of 8% for some goods and services according to the
Government's Decree No. 94/2023/ND-CP dated 28 December 2023 guiding the Resolution No.
110/2023/QH |5 dated 29 November 2023 and the Government's Decree No, 72/2024™NB-CP dated 30
June 2024 guiding the Resolution No. 142/2024/QH 15 dated 29 June 2024 of the National Assembly.

Corporate income tax
The Group companies have to pay corporate income tax on taxable income at the rate of 20%.

Corporate income tax payable during the year of the Group companies are as follows:

Current year Previous year

Becamex Infrastructure Development Joint Stock

Company 50.058.879.016 88.129.344318
Becamex Hospitality Company Limited 6.926.443.00] 7.714.704.293
Becamex Trade Company Limited 1.881.001.717 1.904.419.405
WTC Binh Duong One Member Company Limited 1.886.928.587 1.791.286.608
Corporate income tax payable 60.753.252.321 99.539.754.629

Determination of corporate income tax liability of the Group companies is based on currently applicable
regulations on tax. Nonetheless, these tax regulations may change from time to time and tax regulations
applicable to variety of transactions can be interpreted differently. Hence, the tax amounts presented in
the Consolidated Financial Statements can be changed upon the inspection of tax authorities.

Corporate income tax provisionally paid for the amount received in advance from the transfer of
properly

The‘{]rm{p companies have to pay provisionally corporate income tax at the rate of 1% on the amount
received in advance from the transfer of property in accordance with regulations of the Circular No.
78/2014/TT-BTC dated 18 June 2014 of the Ministry of Finance. The Group companies will finalize the
accounts of corporate income tax payable for this activity upon handing-over of property.

Other taxes
The Group companies have declared and paid these taxes in line with the prevailing regulations.

Payables to employees
This item reflects salary to be paid to employees.

Short-term accrued expenses

Ending balance Beginning balance
Payables to related parties 160.606.863.001 214.951.046.058
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock
Corporation: 158.183.120.89! 213.127.711.867
- Accrual for transfer of land use right at 1JC2
Commercial Town 6.457.153.249 6.457.153.249
- Accrual for transfer of land use right at LJC Urban
Area 43.252.740.876 46.455.404.618

) 2024

20.

Ending balance

Beginning balance

- Interesis on late dividend payment

- Accrual of premises rental

Vietnam — Singapore Industrial Park Joint Venture

Co,, Ltd.

- Accrual for transfer af land use right at Hamlet
I, Hamiet 5 Vinh Tan

Vietnam Technology & Telecommunication Joint
Stock Company — Telephone charges

108.473.226.766

2.423.343.359

2.423.343.359

398.751

148.000.000.000
12.215.154.000

1.823.334.191

1.823.334.191

Payables to other organizations and individuals 121.922.708.821 122.458.186.704
Accrual of costs of infrastructure of Hoa Loi
Resettlement Area 294.694.5035 294.694.505
Accrual of costs of infrastructure of Sunflower 2 Villa
Area 5.801.228.680 -
Accrual of costs of infrastructure of LJC Urban Area 108.674.169.675 108.674.169.675
Loan interest expenses 1.889.725.612 9.745.651.442
Other short-term accrued expenses 5.262.890.349 3.743.671.082
Total 282.529.571.822 337.409.232.762
Other payables
20a. Other short-term payables

Ending balance Beginning balance
FPayables to related parties 311.704.903.569 225.085.493.769
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock
Corporation: 311.704.903.569 225.085.493.769

- Dividends payable

- Payables for collection of Sunrise apartment-related
amounts on this corporation's behalf

- Payables for collection of Becamex Tower office
rental on this corporation s behalf

- Payables for collection of New Horizon apartmeni-
related amounts on this corporation’s behalf

- Payables for collection from Sunrise Apartment's
Management Office on this corporation's behalf

262.029.793.000

43.192.787.216

2.646.826.798

1.948.734.160

1.886.762.395

175.445.596.200

43.157.574.216

2.646,.826.798

1.948.734.160

1.886.762.395

Payables to other organizations and individuals 38.432.967.763 211.554.107.987
Trade Union’s expenditure, social insurance premiums 1.205.021.183 1.161.688.790
Remuneration of the Board of Directors, the

Supervisory Board and the Secretary 1.218.000.000 1.859.200.000
Dividends payable 1.246.392.145 177.904.763.645
Payables for revenue from stalls at Becamex Trade

Center 136.215.907 136.215.907
Receipt of short-term deposits, mortgages 24,504 527814 17.822.837.815
Other short-term payables 10.122.810.714 12.669.401.830
Total 350.137.871.332 436.639.601.756




20b. Other long-term payables

20¢.

21.

This item mainly reflects deposits of lessees to lease stalls at Becamex Trade Center.

Overdue debts
The Group has no other overdue payables.
Borrowings and financial leases
21a. Short-term borrowings
Ending balance Beginning balance
Short-term loans payable to other organizations and
individuals 646.866.826.138 781.193.167.208
Short-term loans from banks 493.514.326.138 470.320.667.208
BIDV — Bink Duong Branch(i} 121.453.960.345 470.320.667.208
Vietcombank — Binh Duong Branchiii) 199,999 552 523 -
SeABank — Binh Duong Branch(iii) 45.746.388.500 -
VIB (iv) 126.284.424.770
Short-term loans from other individuals (v) 2.000.000.000 16.600.000.000
Current portions of long-term loans - 99.920.000.000

(i)

(L]

(i)

(133]

v

Current portions of long-term ordinary bonds (see

Note No. V.21b) 151.352.500.000 194.352.500.000

Total 646.866.826.138 781.193.167.208

The loan from BIDV - Binh Duong Branch is to supplement the working capital. This loan is secured
by mortgaging land use right, ownership of house and other land-attached assets in Hoa Phu Ward, Thu
Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province according to the following Mortgage Contracts:

e The Mortgage Contract No. 01/2023/1728454/HDBD dated 21 March 2023;

¢ The Mortgage Contract No. 04/2023/1728454/HDBD dated 26 September 2023,

The loan from Vietcombank — Binh Duong Branch is to supplement the working capital. This loan is
secured by mortgaging land use right, ownership of house and other land-attached assets in Hoa Phu
Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province according to the Mortgage Contract No. 022TC24 dated
24 April 2024,

The loan from SeABank - Binh Duong Branch is to supplement the working capital. This loan is secured
by mortgaging land use right, ownership of house and other land-attached assets in Thoi Hoa Ward, Ben
Cat City, Binh Duong Province according to the Mortgage Contracts No.
REF2414300418/HDTC/BDS/231277/2 dated 25 June 2024 and No.
REF2414300418/HDTC/BDS/231277/1 dated 25 June 2024.

The loan from VIB is to supplement the working capital. This loan is secured by mortgaging land use
right, ownership of house and other land-attached assets in Hoa Phu Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh
Duong Province according to the Morigage Contracts No. 1057116.24.882; 1057154.24.882;
1057144.24.882 dated 20 December 2024.

These are loans from individuals at interest rates as announced from time to time.

The Group is solvent over short-term loans.

Details of increases/(decreases) of short-term borrowings during the year are as follows:

s 2024

Transfer from Allocation of
Beginning Increase during long-term Amount repaid  bond issuance
balance the year borrowings _ during the year expenses  Ending balance

Short-term loans

from banks 470320667208 791.230.627.043 - (768.056.968.113)

- 493.514.326,118

Short-term loans

from individuals 16.600.000.000 = [ 14.600.000.000) - 200,000, 004
Current partions of
leng-term loens Q9. 920000000 = 20600000000  (120.520.000.000) -

Current portions of
long-term ordinary

bonds

Total

194.352.500.000 - 150352 500,000  (195.000.000.000) 1.647.500.000 151.352.500.000
T81.193.167.208 791.150.627.043 170.952.500.000 (1.098.176.968.113) 1.647.500.000 646.866.826.138

21b. Long-term borraowings

n

i)

Ending balance Beginning balance
Long-term loans from banks 546.780.960.000 59.680.000.000
Viet Capital Bank - Binh Duong Branch - 8.680.000.000

MSB - Ho Chi Minh City Branch - 51.000.000.000
MBBank - Binh Duong Branch (i) 546.780.960. 000
Long-term ordinary bonds (ii) -

Total 546.780.960.000

150.352.500.000
210.032.500.000

The loan from MBBank — Binh Duong Branch is to pay for the land use right in Hoa Phu Ward, Thu
Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province according to the Credit Contract No. 273803.25.140.579294.TD
dated 31 December 2024. This loan is secured by mortgaging 3 certificates of land use right, ownership
of house and other land-attached assets in Thoi Hoa Ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province
according to the Mortgage Contract No. 273984.25.140.579294.BD dated 10 January 2025.

Bonds issued to increase the operating capital.

- Date of issuance : 31 December 2020.

- Date of maturity : 31 December 2025.

- Interest payment term  : Every 3 months.

- Interest rate . Fixed rate at 10,3%/year

- Fund use plan Paying expenses (including both incurred and to-be-incurred expenses)
for construction of infrastructure, residence and urban area, construction
of architectural infrastructure, completion of interior decoration of
works for which the Issuer is the Investor/contractor and other expenses
as prescribed; Fulfilling customers’ financial needs including payment
to the State Budget (paying taxes, fees of all kinds, land use levies, fees
for changing land use purposes, etc.); Paying expenses (including both
incurred and to-be-incurred expenses) for receiving transfer, doing
business, investing, leasing, subleasing land to invest in assets and
technical infrastructure on land for transfer to Investors; Meeting other
working capital needs in accordance with current regulations.

This loan is secured by mortgaging assets owned by Investment and
Industrial Development Joint Stock Corporation including the value of
land use right, all assets/benefits formed from the project on land at
Residence 5B, Bau Bang District, Binh Duong Province.

- Collateral

The Group is solvent over long-term loans.

Repayment schedule of long-term borrowings is as follows:




2le.

22

23.

24,
2da

24b.

More than 1 yvear

Total debts 1 year or less to 5 years

Ending balance

Long-term loans from banks 546.780.960.000 - 546.780.960.000
Ordinary bonds 151.352.500.000 151.352.500.000 -
Total 698.133.460.000 151.352.500.000 546.780.960.000
Beginning balance

Long-term loans from banks 159.600.000.000 99.920.000.000 59.680.000.000
Ordinary bonds 344.705.000.000 194.352.500.000 150.352.500.000
Total 504.305.000.000 294.272.500.000 210.032.500.000

Details of increase/(decrease) of long-term borrowings during the vear are as follows:

Transfler to

Beginning Increase during Amount repaid shart-term
balance the year during the year borrowings Ending balance

Long-term loans from
banks 59 680.000.000 546.780.960.000 (39.080.000.000) (20.600.000.000) 546.780 960.000
Ordinary bonds 150.352.500.000 - - (150.352.500.000) -
Total 210.032.500.000 £46.780.960.000 (39.080.000.000) IITIJ.PSI.EW.UWI 546.780.960.000
Overidue borrowings

The Group has no overdue loans.

Bonus and wellare funds
Increase due to
Beginning appropriation  Disbursement Ending
balance from profit during the year balance
57.930.988.749 30.335.824225 (24.414.698.920) 63.852.114.054

Bonus and welfare funds

Bonus fund for the Executive
Board 190.200.000 - - 190.200.000

Total 58.121.188.749 30.335.824.225 (24.414.698.920) 64.042.314.054

Long-term unearned revenues
This item reflects the payment according to contract progress of customers, who have not received the
real estate handover.

Owner's equity
Statement of changes in owner’s equity
Information on changes in owner's equity is presented in the attached Appendix 01.

Details of owner’s capiral

Ending balance Beginning balance

Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock

Corporation 1.879.774.240.000 1.253.182.830.000
Other sharcholders 1.897.709.600.000 1.265.142.260.000
Total 3.777.483.840.000 2.518.325.090.000

o) (2024

2de.

24d.

According to the Resolution No. 01/NQ-DHDCB dated 07 April 2023 of 2023 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders, and the Resolutions No. 14/NQ-HPQT dated 26 May 2023, No. 26/NQ-HPQT dated
03 August 2023, No. 39/NQ-HDQT dated 11 December 2023, No. 05/NQ-HDQT dated 07 February
2024 and No. 09/NQ-HPQT dated 28 March 2024 of the Board of Directors, the share offering plan to
increase the charter capital from YND 2.518.325.090.000 to VND 3.777.487.630.000 was approved.

During the period from 01 January 2024 to 05 April 2024, the Company conducted a public offering of
shares according to the issuance plan approved by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam under
the Certificate No. 14/GCN-UBCK dated 07 February 2024 and Notice No. 224/TB-SGDHCM dated
19 February 2024 of the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange regarding the due registration date.
Additionally, according to the Resolution No. 10/NQ/HDQT dated 02 April 2024 of the Board of
Directors, the results of the subscription and payment for shares by existing shareholders and the plan
of handling the remaining undistributed shares were approved.

Results of the share offer: The total number of shares distributed was 125,915,875 shares, the number
of shares used to handle fractional shares was 379 shares. The average successful offering price was
VND 10.000/share. The total amount raised from the share offering was VND 1.259.158.750.000,
According to the Resolution No. |1/NQ-HBQT dated 05 April 2024 of the Board of Directors, the
registration for the change of the Company’s charter capital was unanimously approved.

On 25 April 2024, the Company was granted the 14" amended Business Registration Certificate by Binh
Duong Province Department of Planning and [nvestment regarding this capital increase. On 04 May
2024, the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange issued the Notice No. 91 1/TB-SGDHCM regarding the.
change in the number of listed shares.

Shares
Ending balance Beginning balance
Number of shares registered to be issued 377.748.384 251.832.509
Number of shares sold to the public 377.748.384 251.832.509
- Common shares 377.748. 384 251.832.509
- Preferred shares . .
Number of shares repurchased - -
- Common shares - -
- Preferred shares - .
Number of outstanding shares 377.748.384 251.832.509
- Common shares 377.748.384 251.832.509
- Preferred shares - -

Face value of outstanding shares: VND 10.000.

Profit distribution

During the year, the Parent Company distributed the profit of 2023 according to the Resolution No.
01/NQ-DHBCD dated 19 April 2024 of 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and notified the
official dividend payment according to the Resolution No. 30/NQ-HDQT dated 13 September 2024 of
the Board of Directors as follows:

e  Appropriation for investment and development fund
* Appropriation for bonus and welfare funds 18.592.286.257
s Payment of dividends at the rate of 7% 264,423 868.800

Total 394.569,872.600

111.553.717.543

(1) I



25,

Off-Consolidated balance sheet items

25a. External leased assets
The total minimum lease payment in the future for irrevocable leasing contracts will be settled as

25h.

Ia.

1b.

follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance
| year or less 11.611.922.727 11.292.000.000
More than | yearto 5 years 8.618.975.758 5.792.000.000
Total 20.230.898.485 17.084.000.000

The Group leases the business premises under an operating lease. The leases have been valid from 1 to
10 years and can be extended. The leasing rates are annually increased in line with market prices.

Foreign currencies
Ending balance

Beginning balance

US Dollar (USD) 55.429.08
Hong Kong Daollar (HKD) 2

Japanese Yen (JPY) . =

29.971,57
1.000,00
30.000,00

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of services
Gross revenue

Current year

Previous vear

Revenue from sales of toll tickets 309.445.902.345
Revenue from sales of real estate 326.261.452.336
Revenue from sales of investment properties 25.488.608.297

Revenue from construction contracts -
Revenue from business cooperation contracts 23.892.473.550
Revenue from operation of restaurants and hotels 216.977.509.777
Revenue from sales of goods in supermarkets 125.045.431
Revenue from provisions of services 121.141.774.833

293.808.943.727
719.602.258.469
31.125.767.222
128.874.330.855
13.331.735.073
213.415.937.032
2.257.603.706
113.280.947.514

Total 1.026.332.766.569

1,515.697.523.598

Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of services to related parties
Sales of goods and service provisions to other related parties are as follows:

Current year

Previous vear

Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock
Corporation

Revenue from business cooperation

Transfer of 4 floors of Becamex Tower

Service provision

Revenue from sales of airline tickets

23.892.473.550
177.355.200.000
32.290.024314
1.353.423.871

Binh Duong Trade and Development Joint-Stock

Company

Service provision -
Transfer of land use right -

W 2)  nei2024

13.331.735.073

29.601.593.485
B64.590.791

35.300.000
344.683.679.772

Becamex Binh Dinh Joint Stock Company
Service provision

Becamex Tokyu Co., Ltd.
Service provision

Tokyu Development Company Limited
Service provision

Vietnam — Singapore Industrial Park Joint Venture
Co., Lid.

Service provision

Eastern International University
Service provision

Vietnam Technology & Telecommunication Joint
Stock Company

Service provision

Revenue from sales of airline tickets

Becamex Binh Duong Football Club Joint Stock
Company
Service provision

Vietnam - Singapore Smart Energy Solutions Joint
Stock Company
Service provision

Becamex - Vsip Power Investment and Development
Joint Stock Company

Service provision

East Saigon Investment and Industrial Development
Joint Stock Company

Service provision

Revenue deductions

Current year Previous year
35.069.750 3.699.750
1.040.955.864 1.164.192.113
- £.813.889
1.508.029.997 2

3.093.369.760

2.750.522.495

R.eal estate returned
Merchandise returned

Total

679.934.584 519.390.030
146.531.300 284.043.079
144.428.681

17.191.650 -
2.785.650 -
1.144.500 -
Current year Previous vear
6.073.906.698 21.202.946.671
- 150.567.015
6.073.906.698 21.353.513.686




3.

Costs of sales

Costs of toll tickets

Costs of real estate

Costs of investment properties

Costs of construction activities

Costs shared from business cooperation contracts
Costs for operation of restaurants and hotels
Costs of goods in supermarkets

Costs of other services

Total

Current year

Previous year

77.240.225.664
227.438.024.139
12.263.414.863

12.374.029.572

68.928.136.040
425.651.936.630
16.553.375.219
100.851.092.019

Financial income

Term deposit interest

Demand deposit interest

Exchange gain arising

Exchange gain due to the revaluation of monetary
items in foreign currencies

Dividends received

Other financial income

Total

Financial expenses

Loan interest expenses

Cash discount given to customers

Allocation of bond issuance expenses

Reversal of provision for investments in other entities
Interests on late dividend payment

Exchange loss arising

Exchange loss due to the revaluation of monetary
items in foreign currencies

Other expenses
Total

Selling expenses

Expenses for employees

Materials, tools
Depreciation/(amortization) of fixed assets
Brokerage commission expenses
Expenses for external services

Other expenses

Total

W (s:) 2024

13.954.248.748

144.367.310.017 141.125.851.998
1.162.006.917 3.148.078.188
87.048.431.837 73.463.766.871
561.893.443.009 843.676.485.713
Current year Previous vear
1.536.191.227 3.172.636.922
316.018.391 135.432.411
142.628.544 67.708.860
45539444 60.059
2.190.000.000 1.190.000.000
1.724.260 162.945.612
4.232.101.866 4.728.783.864

Current year Previous vear
43.705.007.564 70.041.284.363
35.550.000 458.902.800
1.647.500.000 1.647.500.000
(3.400.000.000) (680.000.000)
10.473.226.766 -
- 30.680.709

- 8.346.998
2.292.827.019 734.162
54.754.111.349 71.507.449.032
Current vear Previous year
20.837.804.095 24,609,997 204
1.023.123.836 172.588.897
7.683.972.932 6.675.725.400
490.909.091 709.090.910
880.692.222 2.866.835.344
1.796.602.322 2.234.7331.953
32,713.104.498 37.268.971.708

10.

General and administration expenses

Current year

Previous year

Expenses for emplovees

47.568.919.464

45.569.039.762

Office supplies - 1.465.750
Office stationery 969,997,931 864.380.642
Depreciation/(amortization) of fixed assets 3.046.610.875 2.668.901.627
Allowance for doubtful debts 3.104.576.236 -
Expenses for external services 10.849.930.314 5.895.330.891
Other expenses 10.717.224.202 8.546.618.032
Total 76.257.259.022 63.545.736.704
Other income
Current vear Previous vear
Proceeds from liquidation of fixed assets 6.109.075.389

Fines for contract violations, fines for late payments
Collection of power, water and internet charges
Income from construction and connection of
infrastructure to sewerage system of Highway 13
Other income

4.228.321.725
8.607.520.539

5.382.663.542

2.385.676.819
12.615.605.685

3.592.264.141
7.736.761.592

Total

214.317.581.195

28.330.308.237

Other expenses

Current vear

Previous vear

Fines for administrative violations
Power, water and internet charges
Other expenses

11.820.929.482
16.149.190.025
2.008.658.997

33.123.261
14.953.010.103
2.025.677.896

Total

29.978.778.504

17.011.811.260

Earnings per share

10a. Basic/diluted earnings per share

Current vear

Previous year

Accounting profit after corporate income tax of the
Farent Company’s shareholders

Appropriation for bonus and welfare funds
Profit used to calculate basic/diluted eamings per share

The average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year

354.137.893.485
(30.335.824.225)

394.852.892.967

(27.614.437.882)

Basic/diluted earnings per share

323.802.069.260 367.238.455.085
347.733.878 251.832.509
931 1.458

10b. Other information
There is no transaction over the common share or potential common share from the balance sheet date

11.

until the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Operating costs by factors

Current year

Previous year

Materials and supplies

Labor costs

Depreciation/(amortization) of fixed assets
Expenses for external services

Other expenses

37.632.902.722
135.426.839.107
66.252.231.373
136.220.368.634
29.030.842.504

51.676.631.796
132.219.938.652
59.305.919.497
116.482.479,745
22.436.572.910

Total

4214.563.184.340

382.121.542.600
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

As of the balance sheet date, payables for acquisition of fixed assets are as follows:
Ending balance Beginning balance

2.431.058.010 21.143.456.757
1.494 288.170 -

Payables for acquisition of fixed assets
Prepayments for acquisition of fixed assets

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Operating leased assets
As at the balance sheet date, the total minimum rental to be collected in the future from irrevocable
operating leases is as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance
| year or less 1.388.843.288 32.143.970.518
More than | year to 5 years 1.080.909.091 55.885.825.276
Total 2.479,752.379 88.029.795.795

Transactions and balances with related parties
The Group's related parties include key managers, their related individuals and other related parties.

Transactions and balances with the key managers and their related individuals

The Group’s key managers include the Board of Directors and the Executive Board of the Paremt
Company (the Board of Management and the Chief Accountant). The key managers’ related individuals
are their close family members.

Transactions with the key managers and their related individuals
The Group has no sales of goods and service provisions and no other transactions with the key managers
and their related individuals.

Receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals
The Group has no receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals.

Remuneration of the key managers and the Supervisory Board

Tatal

Position Salary Bonus Compensation remuneration
Current year
Mr. Do Quang Ngon Chairman 900.000.000 525000000 398.400.000 1.823.400.000
Mr. Quang Van Viet Cuong  Vice Chairman - - 3I18.700.000  318.700.000
Ms. Le Thi Xuan Dieu BOD Member - 185.900.000 185.900.000
Mr. Tran Thien The BOD Member . 185.900.000 185.900.000
Mr. Nguyen Hai Hoang Head of

Supervisory Board - - 185.900.000 185.900.000
Ms. Le Thi Thuy Duong Supervisory Board

Member - - 132.800.000 132.800.000
Ms. Chau Thi Van Supervisory Board -

Member . - 132.800.000 132.800.000
Mr. Trinh Thanh Hung Chief Executive

Officer £40.000.000 490.000.000 - 1.330.000.000
Ms. Vo Thi Huyen Trang BOD Member

Deputy Chief

Executive Officer 660,000,000 385.000.000 185900.000 1.230.900.000

Repon 2024
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Mr. Tran Ngoc Hien
Mr. Viu Phi Hung

Ms. Bui Thi Thuy
Total

Previous year
Mr. Do Queang Ngon

Mr. Quang Van Viet Cuong
Ms. Le Thi Xuoan Dieu

Mr. Le Duc Thinh

Mr. Tran Thien The
Mr. Nguyen Hai Hoang

Ms. Le Thi Thuy Duong
Ms. Chau Thi Van
Mr. Trinh Thanh Hung

Ms. Vo Thi Huyven Trang

Mr. Tran Ngoe Hien

Ms. Bul Thi Thuy
Total

Total

Position Salary Bonus Compensation  remuneration

Deputy Chief

Executive Officer 660.000.000 385.000.000 = 1.045.000.000

Deputy Chief

Executive Officer 214.545.455 110.000.000 324.545.455

Chiefl Accountant 660.000.000 385.000.000 - 1.045.000.000
3.934.545.455 2.280.000.000 1.726.200.000 7.940.845.455

Chairman 900,000,000 375.000.000 528900000 1.803.900.000

Vice Chairman - - 423.100.000 423.100.000

BOD Member

fappointed on 07 - - - -

April 2023)

BOD Member

fresigned on 07 - - 246.800.000 246.800.000

April 28023)

BOD Member . - 246.800.000  246.800.000

Head of

Supervisory Board - B 246.800.000 246.800.000

Supervisory Board

Nideihize - - 176.300.000 176.300.000

Supervisory Board

Member - 176.300.000 176.300.000

Chief Executive

Officer 840.000.000 A18.000.000 1. 458.000.000

BOD Member

Deputy Chief 660.000.000 452.000.000 246.,800.000 |.358.800.000

Executive Officer

Deputy Chiefl

Executive Officer 660.000.000 452.000.000 «  1.112.000.000

Chief Accountant 660.000.000 452.000.000 1.112.000.000
3.720.000.000 2.349.000.000 2.291.800.000 §.360.800.000

Transactions and balances with ether related parties
Other related parties of the Group include:

Other related parties

Relationship

Investment and [ndustrial

Corporation

Stock Company

Development Joint

Becamex Urban Development Joint Stock Company

Company

My Phuoc Hospital Joint Stock Company

Eastern International University

Becamex International

Company

Stock

Shareholder with significant influence
Becamex Binh Phuoc Infrastructure Development Joint Associate

Subsidiary of Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation
Binh Duong Trade and Development Joint-Stock Company Subsidiary of Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation
Binh Duong Construction and Civil Engineering Joint Stock Subsidiary of Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation
Subsidiary of Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation
Subsidiary of Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation
General Hospital Joint Stock Subsidiary of Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation

@




Other related parties

Relationship

Current year Previous year
Binh Duong Rubber Joint Stock Company Associate of Investment and Industrial Interest on late dividend payment 10.473.226.766 =
. _ ‘ Development Joint Stock Corporation Transfer of Sth Floor of Becamex Tower 25.568.000.000 -
Vietnam — Singapore Industrial Park Joint Venture Co., Ltd. Associate of Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation Vietois < Sinvavore udisivial Park Jolut Ventara
Setia — Becamex Joint Stock Company Associate of Investment and Industrial Co., Lid. e
‘ — Development Joint Stock Corporation Receipt of land use right transfer 991.008.000 8.144.626.776
Savi Pharmaceutical Joint Stock Company Associate of Investment and Industrial
Development Joint Stock Corporation Vi ;
tmam Technology & Tel icati H
Vietnam Technology & Telecommunication Joint Stock Associate of Investment and Industrial S::ckﬂéﬂbm:;n;ﬂ PR & S eiecommuNicarion dom
Company Develn?pmer;tl Joint Stock C:r:p;raﬂqnl Infrastructure construction 7.988.240.000 17.179.998.288
Becamex Tokyw Co,, Lic. geﬁﬁf;“;;:m s s Service charges 1.809.477.616 2.227.108.552
Purch f 041.22 338,
Eastern Educational Development Joint Stock Company Associate of Investment and Industrial Pzrrzh::: zf ﬁ:ﬁ I '}: ; glg‘gg; Eg ;gg 2:2
| ; " : ase 910. 970.
‘ . Development Joint Stock Corparation Acquisition of fixed assets 298.864.000 1.048.850.000
BW Industrial Development Joint Stock Company Associate of Investment and Industrial L
Development Joint Stock Corporation Dividends shared 1.190.000.000 1.190.000.000
Becamex Binh Dinh Joint Stock Company Associate of Investment and Industrial . N
Development Joint Stock Corporation Eastern International University
Vietnam - Singapore Smart Energy Solutions Joint Stock Associate of Investment and Industrial Purchase of services : 199.879.000
Company Development Joint Stock Corporation ) '
East Saigon Investment and Industrial Development Joint Associate of Investment and Industrial My Phuoc Hospital Joint Stock Company
Stock Company Development Joint Stock Corporation Receipt of service provision 156.070.800 559.050.999
Becamex - Vsip Power Investment and Development Joint Associate of Investment and Industrial
Stock Company Development Joint Stock Corporation Binh Duong Trade and Development Joint-Stock
VSIP Can Tho Joint Stock Company Associate of Investment and Industrial Company
Development Joint Stock Corporation Purchase of merchandise, services 7.486.935.424 2.565.149.596
Ha Tien Kien Giang - Becamex Cement Joint Stock Subsidiary of Binh Duong Trade and
Company Development Joint-Stock Company Becamex International General Hospital Joint Stock
Becamex Construction Material Joint Stock Company Subsidiary of Binh Duong Trade and Company
Development Joint-Stock Company Receipt of service provision 1.167.000 -

Sinviet J.I Co., Ltd. Associate of Binh Duong Trade and
Development Joint-Stock Company
Subsidiary of Becamex Binh Phuoc
Infrastructure Development Joint Stock

Company

The prices of merchandise and services supplied to other related parties are agreed by the parties
involved by themselves. The purchases of merchandise and services from other related parties are done
at the agreed prices.

Becamex Binh Phuoc Power Joint Stock Company

Receivables from and payables to other related parties

Receivables from and payables to other related parties are presented in Notes No. V.3, V.4, V.5, V.15,
V.16, V.19 and V.20.

Transactions with ather related parties

Apart from sales of goods and service provisions to other related parties presented in Note No. VL 1b,
the Group also has other transactions with other related parties as follows:

Current year Previous year The receivables from other related parties are unsecured and will be paid in cash. No allowances have
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock been made for the receivables from other related parties.
Corporation
Lending 80.000.000.000 3. Segment information

Distribution of dividends in cash 131.584.196.800

Distribution of 2021 dividends in form of shares

175.445.596.200
172.852.800.000

The main segment report is the business segments based on the internal organizational and management
structure as well as the internal financial reporting system of the Group.

54.329.569.000

Premises rental 37.042.308.000
Cost of business cooperation 12.374.029.572 13.954.248.748
Management and operation of social houses 446,295,455 1.233.318.182
Leasing basement 218.181.818 218.181.818

Receipt of land use right transfer 1.242.887.409.696 -

W e:) (2024




Ja. Information on business segment
The Group has the following main business segments:

Sales of toll tickets: sales of toll tickets for Highway 13.

Trading real estate: investment in construction and operation of technical infrastructure of industrial
parks, residences and urban areas.

Trading investment properties: leasing premises in Becamex Tower.
Construction: construction of social houses, public works.

Business cooperation contract: cooperation in implementing Becamex City Center Project with
Investment and Industrial Development Joint Stock Corporation.

Others: leasing equipment and furniture, operating restaurants, hotels.

Information on business segment of the Group is presented in the attached Appendix 02.

3b.  Information on geographical segment
All of the Group’s operations take place in the territory of Vietnam, mainly in Binh Duong Province.

4. Subsequent events

There are no material subsequent events which are required adjustments or disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Luong Thi Ngoe Trinh
Preparer

RANTSZ i
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Bui Thi Thuy “Trinh Thanh Hung

Chief Accountant Chiel Executive Officer

(o) 2024
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Investment and

development fund

(Mher sources of

Total

3.816.219.356.890

Retained earnings

Share premiums capital

Owner's capital

10.801.285.907 464.669.540.313 958.469.074.670

211.326.226.000

2.170.973.230.000

Beginning balance of the previous year

(347.351.860.000)
304.852.892.967

(186.580.468.998)
(352.565.512.600)

347.351.860.000

Increase in charter capital from share issuance
Profit in the previous year

394.852.892.967
(34.939.900.085)
(352.565.512.600)

151.640.568.913

Appropriation for funds in the previous year

3.821.586.837.172

466.824.126.039

616.310.109.226

10.801.285.907

211.326.226.000

1.518.325.090.000

Distribution of dividends in the previous year
Ending balance of the previous year

10.801.285.907 616.310.109.226 466.824.126.039 3823586837172

211.326.226.000

2.518.325.090.000

Beginning balance of the current year

1.259.158.750.000

1.259.158.750.000

Increase in charier capital from share issuance

Profit in the current year

354.137.893.485
(30.335.824.225)

354.137.893.485
(145.686.375.174)

115.350.550.949

Appropriation for funds in the current year

Rewm of fund to Becamex Infrastructure
Development Joint Stock Company

19.180.333.293

(19.180.333.293)

Effects due 1o change of ownership rate in

associale

9.311.980.162
{264.423.868.800)

5.151.435.767.7M4

§.311.980.162
(264,427 868.800)

439.344.089.005

Distribution of dividends in the current year
Ending balance of the current year

712.480.326.882

10.801.285.907

211.326.226.000

3.777.483.840.000

Trinh Thanh Hung
Chiel Executive CHTicer

Bui Thi Thuy
Chiefl Accountant

Luong Thi Ngoc Trinh

Preparer

o
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é BECAMEX 1JC
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(0274) 3848 789
www.becamexijc.com
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